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YP CORP.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 6, 2005

To Our Stockholders:

The 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of YP Corp. will be held at the Mesa Marriott, 200 North Centennial Way,
Mesa, Arizona 85201, on April 6, 2005, beginning at 10:00 a.m. local time. The Annual Meeting is being held for the
following purposes:

1. To elect two directors to the Company's Board of Directors to serve for terms of three years;

2.To ratify the appointment of Epstein, Weber & Conover, P.L.C., as our independent auditors for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2005; and

3. To transact such other business that may properly come before the meeting.

Stockholders of record at the close of business on February 8, 2005 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting
or any postponement or adjournment thereof. Your vote is important. In order to assure your representation at the
meeting, you are requested to complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy as promptly as possible and return it to us
via facsimile to the attention of W. Chris Broquist at (480) 325-4358 or in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Peter Bergmann
Chairman of the Board
February 15, 2005
Mesa, Arizona
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YP Corp.
4840 East Jasmine Street
Suite 105
Mesa, Arizona 85205-3321
(480) 654-9646

PROXY STATEMENT FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 6, 2005

This Proxy Statement relates to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of YP Corp. The Annual Meeting will be
held on April 6, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. local time, at the Mesa Marriott, 200 North Centennial Way, Mesa, Arizona
85201, or at such other time and place to which the Annual Meeting may be adjourned or postponed. The enclosed
proxy is solicited by our board of directors. The proxy materials relating to the Annual Meeting are first being
mailed to stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting on or about February 15, 2005.

ABOUT THE MEETING
What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will act upon the matters outlined in the accompanying Notice of Annual
Meeting and this Proxy Statement, including the election of two directors and the ratification of auditors. In addition,
management will report on our most recent financial and operating results and respond to questions from stockholders.

Who is entitled to attend and vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on the record date, February 8, 2005, or their duly appointed
proxies, are entitled to receive notice of the Annual Meeting, attend the meeting, and vote the shares that they held on
that date at the meeting or any postponement or adjournment of the meeting. At the close of business on January 26,
2005, there were issued, outstanding and entitled to vote approximately 50,288,802 shares of our common stock, par
value $.001 per share, which are entitled to approximately 50,288,802 votes. You may not cumulate votes in the
election of directors.

How do I vote?

You can vote on matters to come before the meeting in two ways: (i) you can attend the meeting and cast your vote in
person; or (ii) you can vote by completing, dating and signing the enclosed proxy card and returning it to us or by the
use of mail or facsimile. If you do so, you will authorize the individuals named on the proxy card, referred to as the
proxyholders, to vote your shares according to your instructions or, if you provide no instructions, according to the
recommendations of our board of directors.

1
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What if I vote and then change my mind?

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by either (i) filing with our Corporate Secretary a notice
of revocation; (ii) sending in another duly executed proxy bearing a later date; or (iii) attending the meeting and
casting your vote in person. Your last vote will be the vote that is counted.

What are the board's recommendations?

Unless you give other instructions on your proxy card, the persons named on the proxy card will vote in accordance
with the recommendations of our board of directors. Our board's recommendations are set forth together with a
description of such items in this Proxy Statement. In summary, our board recommends a vote FOR election of the
nominated slate of directors and FOR the ratification of the auditors.

With respect to any other matter that properly comes before the meeting, the proxy holders will vote as recommended
by our board of directors or, if no recommendation is given, in their own discretion.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding
shares on the record date will constitute a quorum, permitting us to conduct our business at the Annual Meeting.
Proxies received but marked as abstentions and broker non-votes (defined below) will be included in the calculation of
the number of shares considered to be present at the meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.

What vote is required to approve each item?

Election of Directors. Election of a director requires the affirmative votes of the holders of a plurality of the shares
present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at a meeting at which a quorum is present. The two
persons receiving the greatest number of votes will be elected as directors. Since only affirmative votes count for this
purpose, a properly executed proxy marked "WITHHOLD AUTHORITY" with respect to the election of one or more
directors will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes
of determining whether there is a quorum. Stockholders may not cumulate votes in the election of directors.

Ratification of Auditors. The ratification of the appointment of Epstein, Weber & Conover, P.L.C., as our
independent auditors will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented in person
or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal. A properly executed proxy marked "ABSTAIN" with respect to any
such matter will not be voted, although it will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum.
Accordingly, an abstention will have the effect of a negative vote.

Effect of Broker Non-Votes. If your shares are held by your broker in "street name," you are receiving a voting
instruction form from your broker or the broker's agent asking you how your shares should be voted. Please complete
the form and return it in the envelope provided by the broker or agent. No postage is necessary if mailed in the United
States. If you do not instruct your broker how to vote, your broker may vote your shares at its discretion or, on some
matters, may not be permitted to exercise voting discretion. Votes that could have been cast on the matter in question
if the brokers have received their customers' instructions, and as to which the broker has notified us on a proxy form in
accordance with industry practice or has otherwise advised us that it lacks voting authority, are referred to as "broker
non-votes." Thus, if you do not give your broker or nominee specific instructions, your shares may not be voted on
those matters and will not be counted in determining the number of shares necessary for approval. Shares represented
by such "broker non-votes," however, will be counted in determining whether there is a quorum. Accordingly, a
broker non-vote will have the effect of a negative vote.
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Can I dissent or exercise rights of appraisal?

Under Nevada law, holders of our voting stock are not entitled to dissent from any of the proposals to be presented at
the Annual Meeting or to demand appraisal of their shares as a result of the approval of any of the proposals.

Who pays for this proxy solicitation?

The Company will bear the entire cost of solicitation, including the preparation, assembly, printing and mailing of this
Proxy Statement, the proxy card and any additional solicitation materials furnished to the stockholders. Copies of
solicitation materials will be furnished to brokerage houses, fiduciaries and custodians holding shares in their names
that are beneficially owned by others so that they may forward the solicitation material to such beneficial owners.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Proposal No. 1)

General

Our board of directors is divided into three classes, as nearly equal in number as possible. Each class serves three
years with the terms of office of the respective classes expiring in successive years. The term of office of directors in
Class III expires at the 2005 Annual Meeting. Our board of directors proposes that the nominees described below,
both of whom are currently serving as Class III directors, be reelected to Class III for a new term of three years, or
until their earlier resignation or removal, or until their successors are duly elected and qualified. Our board of directors
has no reason to believe that either of the nominees will not serve if elected, but if either of them should become
unavailable to serve as a director, and if the board designates a substitute nominee, the persons named as proxies will
vote for the substitute nominee designated by our board.

Vote Required

If a quorum is present and voting, the two nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected to our board
of directors.
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Our board of directors recommends a vote FOR election of each of the director nominees.
Nominees

The names of the nominees and certain information about them are set forth below:

Name of Proposed

Nominee Class Term Age Title
John T. 111 2008 48 Director
Kurtzweil

Paul Gottlieb  III 2008 59 Director

JOHN T. KURTZWEIL. Mr. Kurtzweil brings more than 25 years of high-level corporate management background
to our board. In March 2004, Mr. Kurtzweil became the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cirrus
Logic, Inc., a publicly-held corporation that is a premier supplier of high-performance analog, mixed-signal and
digital processing solutions for consumer entertainment electronics, automotive entertainment and industrial product
applications. He possesses a strong financial background, including public company experience with Quepasa
Corporation as the interim Chief Financial Officer from September 2003 to March 2004; ON Semiconductor as the
Chief Financial Officer from March 2002 to April 2003, as the Chief Financial Officer of Read-Rite Corporation for
the seven years prior to ON Semiconductor and Honeywell, Inc. Mr. Kurtzweil maintains active CPA and CMA
licenses and earned his MBA from the University of St. Thomas in St. Paul, MN and his Accounting Degree from
Arizona State University in Tempe, AZ.

PAUL GOTTLIEB. Mr. Gottlieb is an attorney with Snow Becker Krauss, PC in New York City. His practice
involves estate planning, tax, corporate and securities matters. Mr. Gottlieb received his undergraduate degree from
Queens College of City University of New York, after which he served as a journalist in the United States Army.
Upon completion of his military service, Mr. Gottlieb attended New York Law School, where he received his law
degree. Mr. Gottlieb worked as a senior attorney with the Internal Revenue Service before entering private practice.

Other Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of five members. In addition to John T. Kurtzweil and Paul Gottlieb, both of
whom are named above as directors, our board of directors includes the following individuals:

Current
Name Class Age Term Position
P et e r 1 55 2006 Chairman of the

Bergmann Board of Directors,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

DeVal Johnson II 40 2007 Director

Daniel L. 1II 51 2007 Director

Coury, Sr.

10
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PETER BERGMANN. Mr. Bergmann has served as a director of the Company since May 2002. In May 2004 he was
appointed Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. Since January 1999, Mr. Bergmann has served as the
President of Perfect Timing Media, Inc., a television development and production company, which he founded. From
1994 to 1999, Mr. Bergmann was a member of the faculty at Fairleigh Dickinson University, where he inaugurated the
electronic Filmmaking and Digital Video Design program, which is a distinctive program in video and
computer-generated graphics technologies offering students an opportunity to study commerce and art. In 1988, Mr.
Bergmann joined Major Arts, Inc., a division of Paramount Communications, Inc., as the head of its television
division where he was responsible for developing projects for television production. In 1987, Mr. Bergmann served as
the President of Odyssey Entertainment, Inc. where he engineered the purchase of Coast Productions, Inc., which
subsequently became Odyssey Filmmakers, Inc. From 1984 through 1987, Mr. Bergmann served as President of The
Film Company, where he had directorial and production responsibilities for theatrical releases and projects for
television. During the 14 years prior to 1984, Mr. Bergmann was employed in various capacities by the American
Broadcasting Company. These positions included line producer, division head, and assistant to the President,
Executive Vice President and Special Assistant to the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Bergmann received his PhD from
New York University.

DEVAL JOHNSON. Mr. Johnson has served as a director of the Company since October 1999. Prior to the
acquisition of Telco Billing, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, Mr. Johnson was part of the team that created what is
now the YP.com concept. When Telco Billing was acquired in June 1999, Mr. Johnson left to create Simple.Net, an
Internet service provider. In October 1999, Mr. Johnson was asked to return to serve as a director of the Company.
Until recently, Mr. Johnson had been the art director responsible for the design of the in-house sales presentations and
creation of the corporate logo(s) and image for YP Corp. In 2001, Mr. Johnson consolidated his other business
interests, GraffitiWorx, a graphic design firm and SiteForce, a web site design firm, into Advanced Internet
Marketing, Inc. to provide design and marketing services to a variety of companies. Prior to 1997, Mr. Johnson
created the PrintPro franchise concept for Design Concept Printing & Signs, Inc. and headed up their graphic design
department. Mr. Johnson is actively involved with web site promotion, interactive design, Internet advertising and
public relations. Mr. Johnson continues his business Simple.Net where he serves as an officer and director.

DANIEL L. COURY, SR. Mr. Coury has served as a director of YP Corp. since February 2000. Since 1990, Mr.
Coury has served as President and Chairman of Mesa Cold Storage, Ltd., which owns and operates the largest cold
storage facilities in Arizona. Before Mr. Coury purchased Mesa Cold Storage, he had experience in international trade,
real estate development, real estate exchanges and serving as a consultant to various family businesses, including five
General Motors dealerships, numerous commercial and residential developments and mortuary services.

How are directors compensated?

The directors receive $2,000 per meeting or per quarter, whichever is greater, for their service on the board and may
receive $250 per hour for services related to any board committees, standing, temporary or otherwise, on which they
serve. All directors were awarded 50,000 shares of common stock upon their appointment to the board. The shares

awarded were earned monthly for director services performed.

5
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We have an arrangement with one of our outside directors, Mr. Coury, whereby we have agreed to pay $10,000 per
month for board and committee services to DLC Consulting, Inc., an entity owned by Mr. Coury, instead of paying
Mr. Coury directly.

In fiscal 2004, our directors received the following compensation for their service as directors:

Director Cash

Paul Gottlieb $2,000
DeVal Johnson $14,000
John T . $4,000

Kurtzweil
Daniel L .$138,000
Coury, Sr.
P e t e r $37,800
Bergmann

How often did the board meet during fiscal 2004?

Our board of directors met nine times during fiscal 2004, either telephonically or in person. Attendance by directors at
the meetings of the board and board committees on which they served was 100% during fiscal 2004.

What committees has the Board established?

Our board of directors has standing compensation and audit committees. We do not maintain a standing nominating
committee or any other committee performing similar functions.

Nominating Committee. The Company does not have a standing nominating committee. Due to the size of the
Company and the resulting efficiency of a board of directors that is also limited in size, the board of directors has
determined that it is not necessary or appropriate at this time to establish a separate nominating committee. Potential
candidates are discussed by the entire board of directors, and director nominees are selected by a majority of the
independent directors meeting in executive sessions.

Compensation Committee. The purpose of the compensation committee is to (a) discharge the responsibilities of the
board of directors relating to our compensation programs and compensation of our executives and directors, including
administering our 2003 Stock Plan and approving stock grants to officers and employees under that plan. Messrs.
Coury, Gottlieb, and Kurtzweil are currently the members of the compensation committee. Mr. Coury serves as the
committee's chairman. Our compensation committee met ten times during fiscal 2004.

Audit Committee. The purpose of the audit committee is to (a) oversee the accounting and financial reporting
processes of our company and audits of our financial statements; (b) provide assistance to the board of directors with
respect to its oversight of the integrity of our financial statements, our compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, our independent auditor's qualifications and independence, and its oversight of the performance of our
independent auditors; and (c) to prepare the report that SEC rules require to be included in our proxy statement.
Messrs. Coury, Gottlieb and Kurtzweil are currently the members of our audit committee. Each of the members of the
audit committee is independent in accordance with Section 121(A) of the AMEX listing standards. Mr. Kurtzweil
serves as the committee's chairman and is the "audit committee financial expert" as defined under Item 401 of
Regulation S-B. Our audit committee reports its findings directly to the full board. The board of directors has adopted
a charter, a copy of which is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement. Our audit committee met three times

12
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation. There were no interlocking relationships between the
Company and other entities that might affect the determination of the compensation of our executive officers.

How can investors communicate with the board of directors?

Although we do not have a formal policy regarding communications with our board of directors, stockholders may
communicate with the board by submitting an email to rogerb@ypcorp.com or by writing to us at YP Corp.,
Attention: Investor Relations, 4840 East Jasmine Street, Suite 105, Mesa, Arizona, 85205-3321. Stockholders who
would like their submission directed to a specific member of the board of directors may so specify, and the
communication will be forwarded, as appropriate.

Does the company have a code of ethics?

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees of the company, including the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technical Officer. A copy of our
code of ethics will be mailed, at no charge, upon request submitted to YP Corp., Attention: Investor Relations, 4840
East Jasmine Street, Suite 105, Mesa, Arizona, 85205-3321. If we make any amendment to, or grant any waivers of, a
provision of the code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller where such amendment or waiver is required to be disclosed under applicable SEC
rules, we intend to disclose such amendment or waiver and the reasons therefor on Form 8-K or on our Internet
website at www.yp.com.

7
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Audit Committee Report

The Securities and Exchange Commission rules require us to include in our proxy statement a report from the audit
committee of our board of directors. The following report concerns the audit committee's activities regarding
oversight of our financial reporting and auditing process and does not constitute soliciting material and should not be
deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other filing that we make under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent we specifically incorporate this report in such filings.

It is the duty of the audit committee to provide independent, objective oversight of our accounting functions and
internal controls. The audit committee acts under a written charter that sets forth the audit-related functions we are
expected to perform. Our audit functions are to:

-Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor YP Corp.'s financial reporting process and system of internal
control structure;

Review and appraise the audit efforts of YP Corp.'s independent auditors; and

-Provide an open avenue of communication among the independent auditors, financial and senior management, and
the board of directors.

We meet with management periodically to consider the adequacy of YP Corp.'s internal controls and the objectivity of
its financial reporting. We discuss these matters with YP Corp.'s independent auditors and with appropriate financial
personnel. We regularly meet privately with the independent auditors, who have unrestricted access to the audit
committee. We also recommend to the board the appointment of the independent auditors and review periodically
their performance and independence from management. Toward that end, we have considered whether any non-audit
related services provided by YP Corp.'s independent auditors are compatible with their independence. In addition, we
review our financing plans and report recommendations to the full board for approval and to authorize action.

Management of YP Corp. has primary responsibility for its financial statements and the overall reporting process,
including its system of internal control structure. The independent auditors (a) audit the annual financial statements
prepared by management, (b) express an opinion as to whether those financial statements fairly present YP Corp.'s
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
and (c) discuss with YP Corp. any issues they believe should be raised. Our responsibility is to monitor and review
these processes.

It is not our duty or responsibility to conduct auditing or accounting reviews or procedures. We are not employees of
YP Corp. and we may not be, and we may not represent ourselves to be or to serve as, accountants or auditors by
profession or experts in the fields of accounting and auditing. Therefore, we have relied, without independent
verification, on management's representation that the financial statements have been prepared with integrity and
objectivity and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and on
the representations of the independent auditors included in their report on YP Corp.'s consolidated financial
statements. Our oversight does not provide us with an independent basis to determine that management has
maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles or policies, or appropriate internal controls and
procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations.
Furthermore, our considerations and discussions with management and the independent auditors do not assure that YP
Corp.'s consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, that the audit of YP Corp.'s consolidated financial statements has been carried out in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards or that YP Corp.'s independent accountants are in fact
"independent."
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This year, we reviewed YP Corp.'s audited consolidated financial statements and met with both management and
Epstein, Weber & Conover, P.L.C., YP Corp.'s independent auditors, to discuss those consolidated financial
statements. Management has represented to us that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have received from and discussed
with Epstein, Weber & Conover, P.L.C. the written disclosure and the letter required by Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees). These items relate to that firm's
independence from YP Corp. We also discussed with Epstein, Weber & Conover, P.L.C. any matters required to be
discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees), as amended by
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 89 and No. 90.

Based on these reviews and discussions, we recommended to the board that YP Corp.'s audited consolidated financial
statements should be included in YP Corp.'s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2004.

The Audit Committee

John Kurtzweil, Chairman
Paul Gottlieb
Daniel L. Coury, Sr.

9
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION
Executive Officers and Significant Employees

Our management consists of the following personnel, in addition to Peter Bergmann, our Chief Executive Officer and
President, who is named above as a director.

Name Age Position

W. Chris Broquist 47 Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
John Raven 40 Chief Technology Officer

Penny Spaeth 38 Chief Operating Officer

W. CHRIS BROQUIST. Mr. Broquist has served as our Chief Financial Officer since August 2004. In November
2004, Mr. Broquist replaced Mr. Johnson as our Corporate Secretary. Prior to joining YP Corp., Mr. Broquist was
employed as Vice President and CFO of GBD Graphics, Inc. from May 2003 to August 2004. Prior to May 2003, Mr.
Broquist served as Corporate Treasurer of Century Media, Inc. from February 2000 to December 2002. Between
December 2002 and May 2003, Mr. Broquist was an independent consultant.

JOHN RAVEN. Mr. Raven was appointed Chief Technology Officer for YP.Net, Inc. in September 2003. Mr. Raven
has over ten years experience in the technology arena and 16 years of overall leadership experience working with
companies such as Perot Systems (PER), where he worked in 2003 and managed 640 staff members, Read-Rite Corp
(RDRT), where he worked from 2000 to 2003, and as Cap Gemini Ernst & Young (CAPMF), where he worked from
2000 to 2002. Mr. Raven also served as Director of Information Technology at Viacom's ENG Network division,
where he worked from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Raven has experience in software engineering, data and process
architecture, systems development, and database management systems. At NASA's Jet Propulsion Laboratory, where
he worked from 1993 to 1996, Mr. Raven was a team member and information systems engineer for the historic 1997
mission to Mars conducted with the Pathfinder space vehicle and the Sojourner surface rover. Mr. Raven received his
Bachelors of Science in Computer Science from the California Institute of Technology in 1991. His certifications
include Cisco Internetwork Engineer, Project Management from the Project Management Institute, Certified Project
Manager from Perot Management Methodology Institute, Microsoft Certified System Engineer, and Certified Novel
Engineer.

PENNY SPAETH. Ms. Spaeth has served as our Chief Operating Officer since April 2004. From November 2002
until April 2004, Ms. Spaeth served as our Call Center Manager. Ms. Spaeth was employed as Call Center Director of
TeleSpectrum from November 2000 to November 2001. Prior to November of 2000, Ms. Spaeth served as Call Center
Director/Client Services Manager of Zacson from November 1990 to October 1999.

10
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Executive Compensation Summary

The following table sets forth the total compensation for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
paid to or accrued for our Chief Executive Officer, our three other executive officers who provided services to us at
September 30, 2004, excluding executive officers paid less than $100,000 annually. Additionally, we have included
the compensation for our former Chief Executive Officer and two former executive officers who departed during the
last fiscal year and whose compensation actually paid would have placed them among the four most highly
compensated. These executive officers are collectively referred to as the "Named Executive Officers."

Summary Compensation Table

limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our
indebtedness, among other things, our ability to borrow additional
funds, pay cash dividends or engage in or enter into certain
transactions; and

prevent us
from selling
additional
receivables
to our
commercial
paper
conduit.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
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Our principal properties as of January 31, 2007, were as follows:

Location

United States:

Batavia, Illinois

Beloit, Kansas

Duluth, Georgia

Hesston, Kansas

Jackson, Minnesota

Kansas City, Missouri
International:

Stoneleigh, United Kingdom
Desford, United Kingdom
Beauvais, France()

Ennery, France
Marktoberdorf, Germany
Baumenheim, Germany
Randers, Denmark®
Linnavuori, Finland
Suolahti, Finland

Sunshine, Victoria, Australia
Haedo, Argentina

Canoas, Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil

Santa Rosa, Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil

Mogi das Cruzes, Brazil

Description of Property

Parts Distribution
Manufacturing

Corporate Headquarters
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

Parts Distribution/Warehouse

Regional Headquarters

Parts Distribution
Manufacturing

Parts Distribution
Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Manufacturing
Manufacturing/Parts Distribution

Regional Headquarters/Parts Distribution

Parts Distribution/Sales Office
Regional
Headquarters/Manufacturing/Parts
distribution

Manufacturing
Manufacturing/Parts distribution

() Includes our joint venture with GIMA, in which we own a 50% interest.

() We are currently marketing a portion of the Randers, Denmark property for sale.

Leased
(Sq. Ft.)

310,200

125,000

563,900

85,000
298,000

32,000

Owned
(Sq. Ft.)

164,500

1,276,500
596,000

1,094,500
417,500
714,500
471,400
683,000
306,000
549,900

95,000

615,300
386,500
722,200

We consider each of our facilities to be in good condition and adequate for its present use. We believe that we have

sufficient capacity to meet our current and anticipated manufacturing requirements.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In February 2006, we received a subpoena from the SEC in connection with a non-public, fact-finding inquiry entitled

In the Matter of Certain Participants in the Oil for Food Program. This subpoena requested documents concerning
transactions under the United Nations Oil for Food Program by AGCO and certain of our subsidiaries. The subpoena
arises from sales by our subsidiaries of farm equipment to the Iraq ministry of agriculture. We are cooperating fully
with the inquiry. The subpoena does not imply there have been any violations of the federal securities or other laws.
However, should the SEC (or the U.S. Department of Justice, which is participating in the SEC s inquiry) determine
that we have violated federal law, we could be subject to civil or criminal fines and penalties, or both. A similar
proceeding has been initiated against one of our subsidiaries in Denmark, and on November 28, 2006, the French
government initiated an investigation of one of our subsidiaries in France. It is not possible to predict the outcome of
these inquiries or their impact, if any, on us.

We are a party to various legal claims and actions incidental to our business. We believe that none of these claims or
actions, either individually or in the aggregate, is material to our business or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission Of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not Applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market For Registrant s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ( NYSE ) and trades under the symbol AG. As of the
close of business on February 16, 2007, the closing stock price was $37.88, and there were 596 stockholders of record.
(This number does not include stockholders who hold their stock through brokers, banks and other nominees.) The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock for each
quarter within the last two years, as reported on the NYSE.

High Low
2006
First Quarter $ 20.99 $ 16.31
Second Quarter 28.53 20.66
Third Quarter 26.93 22.94
Fourth Quarter 32.93 24.61
High Low
2005
First Quarter $ 21.31 $ 18.16
Second Quarter 19.54 16.57
Third Quarter 21.30 18.06
Fourth Quarter 17.91 14.74

DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently do not pay dividends. We cannot provide any assurance that we will pay dividends in the foreseeable
future. Although we are in compliance with all provisions of our debt agreements, our credit facility and the indenture
governing our senior subordinated notes contain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in certain circumstances.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables present our selected consolidated financial data. The data set forth below should be read together
with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our historical
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes. Our operating data and selected balance sheet data as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were derived from the 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003
and 2002 Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm. The Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the reports thereon, which refer to changes in the methods of accounting for
share-based payment and defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and the method of quantifying errors
in 2006, are included in Item 8 in this Form 10-K. The historical financial data may not be indicative of our future

performance.

Operating Data:

Net sales

Gross profit

Income from operations

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income per common share
diluted®

Weighted average shares outstanding
diluted®

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital

Total assets

Total long-term debt, excluding current

portion

Stockholders equity
Other Data:

Number of employees

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005M 200434 2003M 2002M
(in millions, except per share data)

$ 54350 $ 54497 $ 52733 $ 34953 $ 29227
927.8 933.6 952.9 6164 531.8
68.9 274.7 323.5 184.3 103.5

$ (649 $ 316  $ 1588  § 744 $ (844

$ (071 $ 035 $ L.71  $ 098 $ (1.14)

90.8 90.7 95.6 75.8 74.2
As of December 31,
20060 2005 20044 2003 2002M

(in millions, except number of employees)

$ 4011 $ 2206 $ 3256 $§ 1470 § 34.3

685.4 825.8 1,045.5 7554 5994
4,114.5 3,861.2 4,297.3 2,8394 2,349.0
5774 841.8 1,151.7 711.1 636.9
1,493.6 1,416.0 1,422.4 906.1 717.6
12,804 13,023 14,313 11,278 11,555

() During the fourth quarter of 2006, we completed our annual impairment analysis of goodwill and other
intangible assets under the guidance of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and concluded
that the goodwill associated with our Sprayer business was impaired. We therefore recorded a write-down of the
total amount of such goodwill of approximately $171.4 million. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we
recognized a non-cash income tax charge of approximately $90.8 million related to increasing the valuation
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allowance for our U.S. deferred income tax assets. During 2003 and 2002, we recorded restructuring and other
infrequent expenses of approximately $27.6 million and $42.7 million, respectively, primarily related to the
closure of our tractor manufacturing facility located in Coventry, England. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we
recognized a non-cash income tax charge of approximately $91.0 million related to increasing the valuation
allowance for our U.S. deferred income tax assets.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we adopted the provisions of EITF 04-08, which required that shares subject
to issuance from contingently convertible debt should be included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
using the if-converted method regardless of whether a market price trigger has been met. We therefore included
approximately 9.0 million additional shares of common stock that may have been issued upon conversion of our
former 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes in our diluted earnings per share calculation for the year
ended December 31, 2004 and 0.2 million additional shares of common stock for the year ended December 31,
2003. On June 29, 2005, we completed an exchange of our 13/4% convertible senior subordinates notes for new
notes that provide for settlement upon conversion in cash up to the principal amount of the converted new notes
with any excess conversion value settled in shares of our common stock. The impact of the exchange resulted in
a reduction in the diluted weighted average shares outstanding of approximately 9.0 million shares on a
prospective basis. In the future, dilution of weighted shares will depend on our stock price once the market price
trigger or other specified conversion circumstances are met for the excess conversion value using the treasury
stock method. Our 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes issued in December 2006 will also potentially
impact the dilution of weighted shares outstanding for the excess conversion value using the treasury stock
method. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
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approximately 1.2 million and 4.4 million shares, respectively, were excluded from diluted weighted average
shares outstanding calculation related to the assumed conversion of our 13/4% convertible senior subordinated
notes as the impact would have been antidilutive. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements where
this impact and the exchange are described more fully.

(3) On January 5, 2004, we acquired the Valtra tractor and diesel engine operations of Kone Corporation, a Finnish
company, for 604.6 million, net of approximately 21.4 million cash acquired (or approximately $760 million,
net). The results of operations for the Valtra acquisition have been included in our Consolidated Financial
Statements from the date of acquisition. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements where the
acquisition of Valtra is described more fully.

@ On April 7, 2004, we sold 14,720,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public offering and
received net proceeds of approximately $300.1 million. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
where this offering is described more fully.

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We are a leading manufacturer and distributor of agricultural equipment and related replacement parts throughout the
world. We sell a full range of agricultural equipment, including tractors, combines, hay tools, sprayers, forage
equipment and implements and a line of diesel engines. Our products are widely recognized in the agricultural
equipment industry and are marketed under a number of well-known brand names, including AGCO®, Challenger®,
Fendt®, Gleaner®, Hesston®, Massey Ferguson®, New Idea®, RoGator®, Spra-Coupe®, Sunflower®, Terra-Gator®,
Valtra®, and White'™ Planters. We distribute most of our products through a combination of approximately 3,200
independent dealers, distributors, associates and licensees. In addition, we provide retail financing in the United
States, Canada, Brazil, Germany, France, the United Kingdom, Australia, Ireland and Austria through our finance
joint ventures with Rabobank.

Results of Operations

We sell our equipment and replacement parts to our independent dealers, distributors and other customers. A large
majority of our sales are to independent dealers and distributors that sell our products to the end user. To the extent
practicable, we attempt to sell products to our dealers and distributors on a level basis throughout the year to reduce
the effect of seasonal demands on our manufacturing operations and to minimize our investment in inventory.
However, retail sales by dealers to farmers are highly seasonal and are linked to the planting and harvesting seasons.
In certain markets, particularly in North America, there is often a time lag, which varies based on the timing and level
of retail demand, between our sale of the equipment to the dealer and the dealer s sale to a retail customer.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items
included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 82.9 82.9 81.9
Gross profit 17.1 17.1 18.1
Selling, general and administrative expenses 10.0 9.6 9.7
Engineering expenses 24 2.2 2.0
Restructuring and other infrequent expenses
Goodwill impairment charge 3.1
Amortization of intangibles 0.3 0.3 0.3
Income from operations 1.3 5.0 6.1
Interest expense, net 1.0 1.5 1.5
Other expense, net 0.6 0.6 0.4
(Loss) income before income taxes and equity in net earnings of affiliates 0.3) 2.9 4.2
Income tax provision 1.4 2.7 1.6
(Loss) income before equity in net earnings of affiliates (1.7) 0.2 2.6
Equity in net earnings of affiliates 0.5 0.4 0.4
Net (loss) income (1.2)% 0.6% 3.0%
2006 Compared to 2005

Net loss for 2006 was $64.9 million, or $0.71 per diluted share, compared to net income for 2005 of $31.6 million, or
$0.35 per diluted share. Our results for 2006 include the following items:

a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $171.4 million, or $1.81 per share, related to our Sprayer business in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets ( SFAS No. 142 ); and

restructuring and other infrequent expenses of $1.0 million, or $0.01 per share, primarily related to the
rationalization of certain parts, sales, marketing and administrative functions in the United Kingdom and

Germany, as well as the rationalization of certain Valtra European sales offices.

Our results for 2005 included the following items:

a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million, or $0.95 per share, related to increasing the valuation
allowance against our United States deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
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Income Taxes ( SFAS No. 109 ); and

the redemption of our $250 million 91/2% senior notes due 2008 at a price of approximately $261.9 million,
which included a premium of 4.75% over the face amount of the notes. At the time of redemption, we recorded
interest expense for the premium of approximately $11.9 million, or $0.13 per share, and approximately

$2.2 million, or $0.02 per share, for the write-off of the remaining balance of the deferred debt issuance

costs; and

the exchange of our former 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes with new notes in June 2005 that
resulted in a reduction in the diluted weighted average shares outstanding of approximately 9.0 million shares

on a prospective basis.

Net sales for 2006 were approximately 0.3% lower than 2005 primarily due to significant sales declines in the North
America, South America and Asia/Pacific regions, primarily due to weak market demand. The
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decline was partially offset by sales growth in the Europe/Africa/Middle East region, particularly in Europe. Income
from operations, including restructuring and other infrequent expenses and a $171.4 million goodwill impairment
charge, was $68.9 million in 2006 compared to $274.7 million in 2005. In addition to the impairment charge, the
decrease in income from operations was due primarily to lower operating income in the North America and
Asia/Pacific regions as a result of sales declines, partially offset by improvements in our Europe/Africa/Middle East
and South American operations. Operating margins declined in 2006 as a result of reduced production levels, sales
declines, higher engineering expenses and negative currency impacts. Productivity improvements and favorable sales
mix helped to offset a portion of the decline.

In our Europe/Africa/Middle East operations, income from operations improved approximately $36.9 million in 2006
compared to 2005. The increase is the result of higher sales levels compared to 2005, particularly in Germany, the
United Kingdom, Scandinavia and Central and Eastern Europe, as well as margin improvements achieved through
productivity improvements and sales mix. Income from operations in our South American operations increased
approximately $7.4 million in 2006 compared to 2005. This improvement was the result of higher margins. In North
America, income from operations decreased approximately $54.9 million in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to a
reduction in net sales resulting from lower dealer deliveries that led to a reduction in dealer inventory levels, as well as
weaker market conditions. We estimate that dealer inventory levels in North America as of December 31, 2006
declined approximately 14% compared to end of year 2005 levels. Income from operations in our Asia/Pacific region
decreased approximately $14.7 million in 2006 compared to 2005 due to lower sales and weaker market conditions in
Asia, particularly in Japan, New Zealand and Australia.

Retail Sales

Worldwide industry equipment demand declined in 2006, with the largest reductions in North America and South
America as well as the Asia/Pacific region. In North America, industry demand declined particularly in higher
horsepower equipment segments. A reduction in net farm income, caused by an increase in fuel and fertilizer input
costs, contributed to the decline in demand. In Europe, industry demand increased slightly compared to the prior year
due to growth in the German, U.K., Scandinavian and Eastern and Central European markets. In South America,
industry demand continued to decline in 2006 due to reduced farm profits resulting from dry weather conditions, the
impact of the strong Brazilian currency on exports of commodities and high farmer debt levels. Demand stabilized in
the latter half of the year in the major market of Brazil, primarily due to solid growth in the citrus and sugar cane
sectors.

In the United States and Canada, industry unit retail sales of tractors decreased approximately 3% in 2006 compared
to 2005, resulting from declines in the compact and high horsepower tractor segments, offset by a slight increase in
the utility tractor segment. Industry unit retail sales of combines decreased approximately 6% when compared to the
prior year. Our unit retail sales of tractors and combines in North America also decreased compared to 2005 levels. In
Europe, industry unit retail sales of tractors increased approximately 3% in 2006 compared to 2005. Retail demand
improved in Germany, the United Kingdom, Scandinavia and Central and Eastern Europe but declined in France, Italy
and Finland. Our unit retail sales of tractors were higher during 2006 compared to 2005. In South America, industry
unit retail sales of tractors in 2006 decreased approximately 1% compared to 2005. Retail sales of tractors in the major
market of Brazil increased approximately 15% during 2006. Industry unit retail sales of combines during 2006 were
37% lower than the prior year, with a decline in Brazil of approximately 33% compared to the prior year. Our unit
retail sales of tractors and combines in South America were also lower in 2006 compared to 2005. In other
international markets, our net sales for 2006 were approximately 16% lower than the prior year, particularly in Asia,
the Middle East, Australia and New Zealand.

Statements of Operations
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Net sales for 2006 were $5,435.0 million compared to $5,449.7 million for 2005. The decrease was primarily
attributable to significant sales declines in the North America, South America and Asia/Pacific regions, partially offset
by sales growth in the Europe/Africa/Middle East region, as well as positive currency translation impacts. Currency
translation positively impacted net sales by approximately $114.7 million, primarily due to the continued
strengthening of the Brazilian Real and the Euro. The following table sets forth,
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for the periods indicated, the impact to net sales of currency translation by geographical segment (in millions, except
percentages):

Change due to
Currency
Change Translation

2006 2005 $ % $ %
North America $ 1,283.8 $ 1,607.8 $ (324.0) 202)% $ 115 0.7%
South America 657.2 648.5 8.7 1.3% 44.9 6.9%
Europe/Africa/Middle East 3,334.4 2,988.7 345.7 11.6% 57.4 1.9%
Asia/Pacific 159.6 204.7 (45.1) (22.0)% 0.9 0.5%
$ 54350 $ 54497 $ (14.7) 03)% $ 1147 2.1%

Regionally, net sales in North America decreased during 2006 primarily resulting from weaker market conditions and
lower dealer deliveries, which led to a reduction in dealer inventory levels. In the Europe/Africa/Middle East region,
net sales increased in 2006 primarily due to sales growth in Germany, the United Kingdom, Scandinavia and Central
and Eastern Europe. In South America, net sales, excluding the impact of currency translation, decreased during 2006
compared to 2005 primarily as a result of weak market conditions in the region. In the Asia/Pacific region, net sales
decreased in 2006 compared to 2005 due to decreases in industry demand in the region, particularly in Asia, Australia
and New Zealand. We estimate that consolidated price increases during 2006 contributed approximately 2% as an
offset to the decrease in net sales. Consolidated net sales of tractors and combines, which consisted of approximately
71% of our net sales in 2006, were relatively flat compared to 2005. Unit sales of tractors and combines decreased
approximately 5% during 2006 compared to 2005. The difference between the unit sales decrease and the decrease in
net sales is the result of foreign currency translation, pricing and sales mix changes.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items
included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations:

2006 2005
% of % of
$ Net Sales $ Net Sales

Gross profit $ 927.8 171% $ 933.6 17.1%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 541.7 10.0% 520.7 9.6%
Engineering expenses 127.9 2.4% 121.7 2.2%
Restructuring and other infrequent expenses 1.0

Goodwill impairment charge 171.4 3.1%

Amortization of intangibles 16.9 0.3% 16.5 0.3%
Income from operations $ 689 1.3%  $ 274.7 5.0%

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales was flat during 2006 as compared to 2005. The impact of lower production
levels and negative currency impacts were offset by the impact of pricing, improved productivity and new products.
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Margins in North America were affected by the weak United States dollar on products imported from our European

and Brazilian facilities and higher warranty costs. Unit production of tractors and combines during 2006 was
approximately 9% lower than 2005. Productivity improvements were achieved through purchasing initiatives,
resourcing of components and labor efficiencies. We recorded approximately $0.1 million of stock compensation
expense, within cost of goods sold, during 2006 associated with applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123R (Revised
2004), Share-Based Payment ( SFAS No. 123R ), as is more fully explained in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Selling, general and administrative ( SG&A ) expenses as a percentage of net sales increased during 2006 compared to
2005 primarily as a result of the impact of lower sales volumes in 2006. We recorded approximately $3.5 million of
stock compensation expense, within SG&A, during 2006 associated with applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123R,

as is more fully explained in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial
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Statements. The increase in SG&A expenses was primarily a result of currency translation impacts. Engineering
expenses increased during 2006 as a result of our increase in spending to fund product improvements and cost
reduction projects.

The restructuring and other infrequent expenses in 2006 primarily related to severance costs associated with the
rationalization of certain parts, sales, marketing and administrative functions in the United Kingdom and Germany, as
well as the rationalization of certain Valtra European sales offices located in Denmark, Norway, Germany and the
United Kingdom. The restructuring and other infrequent expenses in 2005 primarily related to the rationalization of
our Randers, Denmark combine manufacturing operations. During the second quarter of 2005, we completed auctions
of remaining machinery and equipment at the Randers facility and recorded a gain associated with such actions. The
gain was offset by restructuring expenses associated with the Randers rationalization, consisting primarily of
employee retention payments and other facility closure costs. We also recorded restructuring expenses during 2005
associated with severance costs, retention payments, asset write-downs and contract termination costs related to the
rationalization of our Finnish tractor manufacturing, parts distribution and sales operations. See Restructuring and
Other Infrequent Expenses.

In 2006, sales and operating income of our Sprayer operations declined significantly as compared to prior years. In
addition, our projections for our Sprayer business did not result in a valuation sufficient to support the carrying
amount of the goodwill balance on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. As a result, during the fourth quarter of 2006, we
recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $171.4 million related to our Sprayer operations in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 142.

Interest expense, net was $55.2 million for 2006 compared to $80.0 million for 2005. The decrease in interest expense,
net during 2006 was primarily due to the redemption of our $250 million 91/2% senior notes during the second quarter
of 2005. We redeemed the notes at a price of approximately $261.9 million, which included a premium of 4.75% over
the face amount of the notes. The premium of approximately $11.9 million and the write-off of the remaining balance
of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the senior notes of approximately $2.2 million were recognized in
interest expense, net in the second quarter of 2005. In December 2006, we issued $201.3 million of 11/4% convertible
senior subordinated notes and received proceeds of approximately $196.4 million, after related fees and expenses. We
used the net proceeds received from the issuance of the notes, as well as available cash on hand, to repay a portion of
our outstanding United States and Euro denominated term loans. We recorded interest expense of approximately

$2.0 million for the proportionate write-off of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the term loan balances that
were repaid. See Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Other expense, net was $32.9 million in 2006 compared to $34.6 million in 2005. Losses on sales of receivables
primarily under our securitization facilities were $29.9 million in 2006 compared to $22.4 million in 2005. The
increase during 2006 is primarily due to higher interest rates in 2006 compared to 2005. This increase in other
expense, net was offset by foreign exchange gains during 2006 versus foreign exchange losses during 2005.

We recorded an income tax provision of $73.5 million in 2006 compared to $151.1 million in 2005. During the fourth
quarter of 2005, we recognized a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million related to increasing the
valuation allowance against our United States deferred tax assets. SFAS No. 109 requires the establishment of a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, we assessed the likelihood that our deferred tax assets would be
recovered from estimated future taxable income and available income tax planning strategies. In 2006 and 2005, our
effective tax rate was negatively impacted by incurring losses in tax jurisdictions where we recorded no tax benefit.
The most significant impact related to losses incurred in the United States. In 2006, we incurred losses in the United
States primarily due to lower operating margins as further discussed below. In 2005, we incurred losses in the United
States due in part to costs associated with the second quarter redemption of our senior notes, as discussed above, as
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well as lower operating margins as discussed above. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had gross deferred tax assets
of $472.5 million and $429.8 million, respectively, including $246.6 million and $192.9 million, respectively, related
to net operating loss carryforwards. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had recorded total valuation allowances as
an offset
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to the gross deferred tax assets of $291.4 million and $252.8 million, respectively, primarily related to net operating
loss carryforwards in Brazil, Denmark and the United States. Realization of the remaining deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2006 depends on generating sufficient taxable income in future periods, net of reversing deferred tax
liabilities. We believe it is more likely than not that the remaining net deferred tax assets will be realized.

2005 Compared to 2004

Net income for 2005 was $31.6 million, or $0.35 per diluted share, compared to net income for 2004 of
$158.8 million, or $1.71 per diluted share. Our results for 2005 include the following items:

a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million, or $0.95 per share, related to increasing the valuation
allowance against our United States deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS No. 109; and

the redemption of our $250 million 91/2% senior notes due 2008 at a price of approximately $261.9 million,
which included a premium of 4.75% over the face amount of the notes. At the time of redemption, we recorded
interest expense for the premium of approximately $11.9 million, or $0.13 per share, and approximately

$2.2 million, or $0.02 per share, for the write-off of the remaining balance of the deferred debt issuance

costs; and

the exchange of our former 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes with new notes in June 2005 that
resulted in a reduction in the diluted weighted average shares outstanding of approximately 9.0 million shares
on a prospective basis.

Our results for 2004 included the following item:

the implementation of Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) Issue No. 04-08, Accounting Issues Related to
Certain Features of Contingently Convertible Debt and the Effect on Diluted Earnings per Share, which
resulted in the addition of approximately 9.0 million shares to our weighted average shares outstanding for
purposes of computing diluted net income per share.

Net sales for 2005 were approximately 3% higher than 2004 primarily due to sales growth in the North America and
Europe/Africa/Middle East regions, as well as positive currency translation impacts. This growth was offset by
significant sales declines in South America due to weak market demand. Income from operations, including
restructuring expenses and restricted stock compensation, was $274.7 million in 2005 compared to $323.5 million in
2004. The decrease in income from operations was primarily due to lower operating income in South America and
North America, partially offset by improvements in our Europe/Africa/Middle East operations. Operating margins
declined in 2005 as a result of reduced margins in South America primarily due to a significant reduction in industry
demand and the impact of the strengthening Brazilian Real.

In our Europe/Africa/Middle East region, income from operations improved $55.7 million in 2005 compared to 2004.
The increase reflects higher sales outside Western Europe and margin improvements achieved through productivity
improvements, new product introductions, expense control measures and pricing changes. Operating income in South
America decreased $89.2 million during 2005 compared to 2004, due to sales declines resulting from the deterioration
in market conditions. Operating margins in South America declined significantly in 2005 resulting from lower
production levels, unfavorable sales mix and the impact of the continued strengthening of the Brazilian Real on sales
outside of Brazil. In North America, operating income decreased $15.1 million during 2005 compared to 2004.
Although higher sales volumes were achieved from improved market conditions and sales performance in North
America, these benefits were offset by reduced margins due to higher costs from the impact of the weak United States
dollar on products produced primarily in Brazil, higher warranty costs and increased engineering expenses related to
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new product offerings. Operating income in our Asia/Pacific region increased $2.1 million in 2005 compared to 2004
due to higher sales in Asia.
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Retail Sales

Worldwide industry equipment demand declined in 2005, with the largest reductions in Europe and South America. In
North America, industry demand remained relatively stable supported by solid farm income, although drought
conditions in certain areas of the United States impacted demand in the latter part of the year. In Europe, industry
demand softened in the second half of 2005 as a result of lower agricultural production mainly due to dry weather
conditions in Southern Europe, as well as uncertainty related to Common Agricultural Policy farm subsidy reforms. In
South America, industry demand declined significantly in 2005 due to drought conditions in Southern Brazil and
reduced farm profits resulting from lower commodity prices and the continued strengthening of the Brazilian Real.

In the United States and Canada, industry unit retail sales of tractors were relatively flat in 2005 compared to 2004,
resulting from a decrease in the compact tractor segment, offset by increases in the utility and high horsepower
segments. Industry unit retail sales of combines increased approximately 1% when compared to the prior year. Our
unit retail sales of tractors in North America increased over 2004 levels, while our unit retail sales of combines
decreased compared to 2004 levels. In Europe, industry unit retail sales of tractors decreased approximately 4% in
2005 compared to 2004. Retail demand improved in Germany, Scandinavia and Eastern Europe but declined in Spain,
France, the United Kingdom and Finland. Our unit retail sales of tractors were relatively flat during 2005 compared to
2004. In South America, industry unit retail sales of tractors in 2005 decreased approximately 24% compared to 2004.
Retail sales of tractors in the major market of Brazil declined approximately 38% during 2005. Industry unit retail
sales of combines during 2005 were 58% lower than the prior year, with a decline in Brazil of approximately 73%
compared to the prior year. Our unit retail sales of tractors and combines in South America were also significantly
lower in 2005 compared to 2004. In other international markets, our net sales for 2005 were approximately 26%
higher than the prior year, particularly in the Middle East.

Statements of Operations

Net sales for 2005 were $5,449.7 million compared to $5,273.3 million for 2004. The increase was primarily
attributable to sales growth in the North America and Europe/Africa/Middle East regions, as well as positive currency
translation impacts. Currency translation positively impacted net sales by approximately $94.6 million, primarily due
to the continued strengthening of the Brazilian Real. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
impact to net sales of currency translation by geographical segment (in millions, except percentages):

Change due to
Currency
Change Translation

2005 2004 $ % $ %
North America $ 1,607.8 $ 1,4125 $ 1953 138% $ 179 1.3%
South America 648.5 796.8 (148.3) (18.6)% 84.3 10.6%

Europe/Africa/ Middle East 2,988.7 2,873.0 115.7 4.0% (11.2) (0.4)%

Asia/Pacific 204.7 191.0 13.7 7.2% 3.6 1.9%
$ 54497 $ 52733 $ 1764 33%  $ 946 1.8%

Regionally, net sales in North America increased during 2005 primarily due to strong retail sales and improved
product availability. In the Europe/Africa/Middle East region, net sales increased in 2005 primarily due to sales
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growth in Germany, Eastern Europe and the Middle East. Net sales in South America decreased during 2005
compared to 2004 primarily as a result of weak market conditions in the region. In the Asia/Pacific region, net sales
increased in 2005 compared to 2004 due to increases in industry demand in the region, particularly in Asia. We
estimate that consolidated price increases during 2005 contributed approximately 4% to the increase in net sales.

Consolidated net sales of tractors and combines, which consisted of approximately 71% of our net sales in 2005,
increased approximately 3% in 2005 compared to 2004. Unit sales of tractors and combines decreased
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approximately 6% during 2005 compared to 2004. The difference between the unit sales decrease and the increase in
net sales is the result of foreign currency translation, pricing and sales mix changes.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items
included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations:

2005 2004
% of % of
$ Net Sales $ Net Sales

Gross profit $ 933.6 171% $ 9529 18.1%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 520.7 9.6% 509.8 9.7%
Engineering expenses 121.7 2.2% 103.7 2.0%
Restructuring and other infrequent expenses 0.1

Amortization of intangibles 16.5 0.3% 15.8 0.3%
Income from operations $ 2747 50% $ 3235 6.1%

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales declined during 2005 primarily due to lower gross margins in South America
resulting from lower production levels, unfavorable sales mix and negative currency impacts. These declines were
partially offset by improved margins in the Europe/Africa/Middle East region, which were positively impacted by
improved productivity, new product introductions, expense control measures and pricing changes. Productivity
improvements were achieved through purchasing and material cost initiatives, outsourcing initiatives, such as the
outsourcing of combine manufacturing in Europe, and enhanced production processes, resulting in material flow and
assembly improvements. Margins in North America were impacted by the weak United States dollar on products
imported from our European and Brazilian facilities and higher warranty costs.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased slightly during 2005 compared to 2004 primarily as a result of
higher sales levels and cost reduction initiatives. Engineering expenses increased during 2005 as a result of our
increase in spending to fund product improvements and cost reduction projects. We recorded $0.4 million and

$0.5 million of stock compensation expense in 2005 and 2004, respectively, within SG&A, in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.

The restructuring and other infrequent expenses in 2005 primarily related to the rationalization of our Randers,
Denmark combine manufacturing operations. During the second quarter of 2005, we completed auctions of remaining
machinery and equipment at the Randers facility and recorded a gain associated with such actions. The gain was offset
by restructuring expenses associated with the Randers rationalization, consisting primarily of employee retention
payments and other facility closure costs. We also recorded restructuring expenses during 2005 associated with
severance costs, retention payments, asset write-downs and contract termination costs related to the rationalization of
our Finnish tractor manufacturing, parts distribution and sales operations. The restructuring expenses in 2004
primarily related to charges incurred resulting from the Randers rationalization, as well as costs associated with
various rationalization initiatives in Europe and the United States, offset by gains on the sale of property, plant and
equipment related to our Coventry, England facility closure as well as a revision to a previously established provision
that resulted in the reduction in the estimated costs associated with our pension plan in the United Kingdom. See
Restructuring and Other Infrequent Expenses.
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Interest expense, net was $80.0 million for 2005 compared to $77.0 million for 2004. The increase in interest expense,
net during 2005 was due primarily to the redemption of our $250 million 91/2% senior notes during the second quarter
of 2005. We redeemed the notes at a price of approximately $261.9 million, which included a premium of 4.75% over
the face amount of the notes. The premium of approximately $11.9 million and the write-off of the remaining balance
of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the senior notes of approximately $2.2 million were recognized in
interest expense, net in the second quarter of 2005. In April 2004, we completed a common stock offering and
received net proceeds of approximately $300.1 million. We used the net proceeds to repay borrowings under our
credit facility, as well as to repay a $100.0 million interim bridge loan facility.
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Other expense, net was $34.6 million in 2005 compared to $22.1 million in 2004. Losses on sales of receivables
primarily under our securitization facilities were $22.4 million in 2005 compared to $15.6 million in 2004. The
increase during 2005 was primarily due to higher interest rates in 2005 compared to 2004, as well as additional
outstanding funding during portions of 2005. We also experienced foreign exchange losses during 2005 compared to
foreign exchange gains in 2004.

We recorded an income tax provision of $151.1 million in 2005 compared to $86.2 million in 2004. During the fourth
quarter of 2005, we recognized a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million related to increasing the
valuation allowance against our United States deferred tax assets. SFAS No. 109 requires the establishment of a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, we assessed the likelihood that our deferred tax assets would be
recovered from estimated future taxable income and available income tax planning strategies and determined that an
adjustment to the valuation allowance was appropriate. The effective tax rate excluding the non-cash deferred income
tax charge was 37.7% for 2005 compared to 38.4% during 2004. In both years, our effective tax rate was negatively
impacted by incurring losses in tax jurisdictions where we recorded no tax benefit. The most significant impact related
to losses incurred in the United States in 2005 and Denmark in 2004. In 2005, we incurred losses in the United States
due in part to costs associated with the second quarter redemption of our senior notes, as discussed above, as well as
lower operating margins as discussed above. In 2004, we incurred losses in Denmark primarily due to the
rationalization of our combine manufacturing operations in Randers, Denmark. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, we
had gross deferred tax assets of $429.8 million and $430.8 million, respectively, including $192.9 million and

$188.2 million, respectively, related to net operating loss carryforwards. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had
recorded total valuation allowances as an offset to the gross deferred tax assets of $252.8 million and $142.9 million,
respectively, primarily related to net operating loss carryforwards in Argentina, Brazil, Denmark and the United
States.
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Quarterly Results

The following table presents unaudited interim operating results. We believe that the following information includes
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly our results of operations
for the periods presented. The operating results for any period are not necessarily indicative of results for any future
period.

Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
(in millions, except per share data)

2006:

Net sales $ 1,168 $ 14505 $ 1,180.9 $ 1,633.8
Gross profit 206.3 251.3 204.3 265.9
Income (loss) from operations(!) 43.9 82.6 322 (89.8)
Net income (loss)(D 17.3 40.9 5.4 (128.5)
Net income (loss) per common share  diluted 0.19 0.45 0.06 (1.41)
2005:

Net sales $ 1,2569 $ 1,5743 $ 1,233.6 $ 1,384.9
Gross profit 219.5 271.2 219.0 2239
Income from operations) 53.0 109.2 58.8 53.7
Net income (loss)(D 21.5 46.1 27.8 (63.8)
Net income (loss) per common share  diluted 0.23 0.47 0.31 (0.71)

() For 2006, the quarters ended March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 included restructuring and
other infrequent expenses of $0.1 million, $0.0 million, $0.9 million and $0.0 million, respectively, thereby
impacting net income per common share on a diluted basis by $0.00, $0.00, $0.01 and $0.00, respectively.

For 2006, the quarter ended December 31 included a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $171.4 million, or
$1.81 per share, related to our Sprayer business in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. For 2005,
the quarter ended December 31 included a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million, or $0.95 per
share, related to increasing the valuation allowance against our U.S. deferred tax assets in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 109.

For 2005, the quarters ended March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 included restructuring and
other infrequent expenses (income) of $1.0 million, $(0.8) million, $0.0 million and $0.0 million, respectively,
thereby impacting net income per common share on a diluted basis by $0.01, $(0.01), $0.00 and $0.00,
respectively.

Restructuring and Other Infrequent Expenses

We recorded restructuring and other infrequent expenses of $1.0 million, $0.0 million and $0.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The charges in 2006 include severance costs associated with
the rationalization of certain parts, sales, marketing and administrative functions in the United Kingdom and

Germany, as well as the rationalization of certain Valtra European sales offices located in Denmark, Norway,
Germany and the United Kingdom. The net charges in 2005 include a $1.5 million gain on the sale of property, plant
and equipment related to the completion of auctions of machinery and equipment associated with the rationalization of
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our Randers, Denmark combine manufacturing operations. The gain was offset by $0.8 million of employee retention
payments and facility closure costs incurred associated with the Randers rationalization, as well as $0.7 million of
severance, asset write-downs and other facility closure costs related to the rationalization of our Finnish tractor
manufacturing, sales and parts operations. We did not record an income tax benefit or provision associated with the
charges or gain relating to the Randers rationalization during 2005. The 2004 net charges consisted of an $8.2 million
pre-tax write-down of property, plant and equipment associated with the Randers rationalization, $3.3 million of
severance and facility closure costs associated with the Randers rationalization, a $1.4 million charge associated with
the rationalization of certain administrative functions within our Finnish tractor manufacturing facility, as well as
$0.5 million of charges associated with various rationalization initiatives in Europe and the United States initiated in
2002, 2003 and 2004. These charges were offset by gains on the sale of our Coventry, England manufacturing facility
and related machinery and equipment of $8.3 million, $0.9 million of restructuring reserve reversals
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related to the Coventry closure and a reversal of $4.1 million of the previously established provision related to
litigation involving our U.K. pension plan. We did not record an income tax benefit associated with the charges
relating to the Randers rationalization during 2004, when the plan was announced.

Coventry, United Kingdom European headquarters rationalization

During the third quarter of 2006, we initiated the restructuring of certain parts, sales, marketing and administrative
functions within our Coventry, United Kingdom European headquarters, resulting in the termination of approximately
13 employees. We recorded severance costs of approximately $0.4 million associated with the restructuring during
2006. All employees had been terminated and all severance costs had been paid as of December 31, 2006. This
rationalization was completed to improve our ongoing cost structure and to reduce SG&A expenses. This
rationalization is more fully described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

German sales office rationalizations

During the third quarter of 2006, we announced the closure of two of our sales offices located in Germany, one of
which was a Valtra sales office. The closures will result in the termination of approximately 16 employees. We
recorded severance costs of approximately $0.5 million associated with the closures during 2006. None of the
severance costs had been paid as of December 31, 2006 and none of the employees had been terminated. The
severance costs and related terminations are expected to be paid and completed during 2007. These closures were
completed to improve our ongoing cost structure and to reduce SG&A expenses. These rationalizations are more fully
described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Valtra European sales office rationalizations

During the second quarter of 2005, we announced that we were changing our distribution arrangements for our Valtra
and Fendt products in Scandinavia by entering into a distribution agreement with a third-party distributor to distribute
Valtra and Fendt equipment in Sweden and Valtra equipment in Norway and Denmark. As a result of this agreement
and the decision to close other Valtra European sales offices, we initiated the restructuring and closure of our Valtra
sales offices located in the United Kingdom, Spain, Denmark and Norway, resulting in the termination of
approximately 24 employees. The Danish and Norwegian sales offices were transferred to the third-party
Scandinavian equipment distributor in October 2005, which included the transfer of certain employees, assets and
lease and supplier contracts. We recorded severance costs, asset write-downs and other facility closure costs of
approximately $0.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, related to these closures during 2005. During
the fourth quarter of 2005, we completed the sale of property, plant and equipment associated with the sales offices in
the United Kingdom and Norway and recorded a gain of approximately $0.2 million, which was reflected within
Restructuring and other infrequent expenses within our Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the first
quarter of 2006, we recorded an additional $0.1 million of severance costs related to these closures. As of
December 31, 2006, all of the employees had been terminated and all severance and other facility closure costs had
been paid. These closures were completed to improve our ongoing cost structure and to reduce SG&A expenses.
These rationalizations are more fully described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Valtra Finland administrative and European parts rationalizations

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we initiated the restructuring of certain administrative functions within our Finnish
operations, resulting in the termination of approximately 58 employees. During 2004, we recorded severance costs of
approximately $1.4 million associated with this rationalization. We recorded an additional $0.1 million of severance
costs during the first quarter of 2005 associated with this rationalization, and during the fourth quarter of 2005, we
reversed $0.1 million of previously established provisions related to severance costs as severance claims were
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finalized during the quarter. As of March 31, 2006, all of the 58 employees had been terminated. The $0.6 million of
severance payments accrued at December 31, 2006 are expected to be paid through 2009. In addition, during 2005, we
incurred and expensed approximately $0.3 million of contract termination costs associated with the rationalization of
our Valtra European parts distribution
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operations. These rationalizations were completed to improve our ongoing cost structure and SG&A expenses. These
rationalizations are more fully described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Randers, Denmark rationalization

During the third quarter of 2004, we announced and initiated a plan to restructure our European combine
manufacturing operations located in Randers, Denmark in order to reduce the cost and complexity of the Randers
manufacturing operation by simplifying the model range and eliminating the facility s component manufacturing
operations. Component manufacturing operations ceased in February 2005. We now outsource manufacturing of the
majority of parts and components to suppliers and have retained critical key assembly operations at the Randers
facility. By retaining only the facility assembly operations, we reduced the Randers workforce by 298 employees and
permanently eliminated 70% of the square footage utilized. Our plans also included a rationalization of the combine
model range assembled in Randers, retaining the production of the high specification, high value combines. We
achieved savings of approximately $6.6 million in 2005 and an additional $2.2 million in 2006 associated with the
restructuring plan. These savings primarily impacted cost of goods sold. Total cash restructuring costs were
approximately $4 million. During 2004, we recorded an $8.2 million write-down of property, plant and equipment, as
well as $3.3 million of severance costs, employee retention payments and facility closure costs. We also recorded
approximately $3.7 million of inventory write-downs during 2004, reflected in costs of goods sold, related to
inventory that was identified as obsolete as a result of the restructuring plan. During 2005, we recorded an additional
$0.8 million of restructuring costs related to the rationalization, primarily related to employee retention payments and
other facility closure costs. During the second quarter of 2005, we completed auctions of remaining machinery and
equipment and recorded a gain of approximately $1.5 million associated with such actions. The gain was reflected in

Restructuring and other infrequent expenses within our Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31,
2005, all of the 298 employees had been terminated. The components of the restructuring expenses incurred during
2004 and 2005 are summarized in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Coventry Rationalization

During 2002, we announced and initiated a restructuring plan related to the closure of our tractor manufacturing
facility in Coventry, England and the relocation of existing production at Coventry to our Beauvais, France and
Canoas, Brazil manufacturing facilities, resulting in the termination of 1,049 employees. The closure of this facility
was consistent with our strategy to reduce excess manufacturing capacity. In 2003, we completed the transfer of
production to our Beauvais facility. We estimate that we have reduced manufacturing overhead costs as a result of the
Coventry rationalization project by approximately $20 million when adjusted for changes in production volume from
year to year. During 2004, we recorded a gain of $6.9 million on the sale of our Coventry facility, as well as gains
totaling approximately $2.3 million related to the sale of machinery and equipment at the Coventry facility and certain
Coventry closure reserve reductions. During 2004, we also recorded a $4.1 million reversal of a previously established
provision related to our pension plan in the United Kingdom. The components of the restructuring expenses incurred
and paid during 2004 and 2005 related to the Coventry rationalization are summarized in Note 3 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

DeKalb Rationalization

In March 2003, we announced the closure of our Challenger track tractor facility located in DeKalb, Illinois and the
relocation of production to our facility in Jackson, Minnesota. Production at the DeKalb facility ceased in May 2003
and was relocated and resumed in the Minnesota facility in June 2003. The DeKalb plant assembled Challenger track
tractors in the range of 235 to 500 horsepower. After a review of cost reduction alternatives, it was determined that
current and future production levels at that time were not sufficient to support a stand-alone track tractor site. We sold
the DeKalb facility real estate during the fourth quarter of 2004 for approximately $3.0 million before associated
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selling costs, and recorded a net loss on the sale of the facilities of approximately $0.1 million. The loss was reflected
in Restructuring and other infrequent expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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2002, 2003 and 2004 Functional Rationalizations

In addition, during 2002 through 2004, we initiated several rationalization plans and recorded restructuring and other
infrequent expenses which in aggregate totaled approximately $5.0 million during 2002, 2003 and 2004. The expenses
primarily related to severance costs and certain lease termination and other exit costs associated with the
rationalization of our European engineering and marketing personnel, the rationalization of certain components of our
German manufacturing facilities located in Kempten and Marktoberdorf, Germany, the rationalization of our
European combine engineering operations and the closure and consolidation of our Valtra United States and Canadian
sales organizations. These rationalizations were completed to improve our ongoing cost structure and to reduce cost of
goods sold, as well as engineering and SG&A expenses. These expenses are discussed more fully in Note 3 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
In the preparation of these financial statements, we make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The significant accounting
policies followed in the preparation of the financial statements are detailed in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements. We believe that our application of the policies discussed below involves significant levels of judgment,
estimates and complexity.

Due to the level of judgment, complexity and period of time over which many of these items are resolved, actual
results could differ from those estimated at the time of preparation of the financial statements. Adjustments to these
estimates would impact our financial position and future results of operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We determine our allowance for doubtful accounts by actively monitoring the financial condition of our customers to
determine the potential for any nonpayment of trade receivables. In determining our allowance for doubtful accounts,
we also consider other economic factors, such as aging trends. We believe that our process of specific review of
customers combined with overall analytical review provides an effective evaluation of ultimate collectibility of trade
receivables. Our loss or write-off experience was approximately 0.1% of net sales in 2006.

Discount and Sales Incentive Allowances

Allowances for discounts and sales incentives are made at the time of sale based on retail sales incentive programs
available to the dealer or retail customer. The cost of these programs depends on various factors including the timing
of the retail sale and the programs in place at that time. These retail sales incentives may also be revised between the
time we record the sale and the time the retail sale occurs. We monitor these factors and revise our provisions when
necessary. At December 31, 2006, we had recorded an allowance for discounts and sales incentives of approximately
$82.6 million. If we were to allow an additional 1% of sales incentives and discounts at the time of retail sale, for
those sales subject to such discount programs, our reserve would increase by approximately $7.3 million as of
December 31, 2006. Conversely, if we were to decrease our sales incentives and discounts by 1% at the time of retail
sale, our reserve would decrease by approximately $7.3 million as of December 31, 2006.

Inventory Reserves
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Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Determination of cost includes estimates for surplus and obsolete
inventory based on estimates of future sales and production. Changes in demand and product design can impact these
estimates. We periodically evaluate and update our assumptions when assessing the adequacy of inventory
adjustments.
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Deferred Income Taxes

We establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets when we estimate it is more likely than not that the tax
assets will not be realized. We base these estimates on projections of future income, including tax-planning strategies,
in certain tax jurisdictions. Changes in industry conditions and the competitive environment may impact the accuracy
of our projections. SFAS No. 109 requires the establishment of a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, we
periodically assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from estimated future taxable income
and available tax planning strategies and determine if adjustments to the valuation allowance are appropriate. As a
result of these assessments, there are certain tax jurisdictions where we do not benefit further losses. We have not
benefited losses generated in the United States in 2004, 2005 or 2006 or with respect to the losses incurred in
Denmark in 2004. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we recognized a non-cash deferred income tax charge of

$90.8 million related to increasing the valuation allowance against our United States deferred tax assets. In accordance
with SFAS No. 109, we assessed the likelihood that our United States deferred tax assets would be recovered from
future taxable income and determined that an adjustment to the valuation allowance was appropriate. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, we had gross deferred tax assets of $472.5 million and $429.8 million, respectively, including

$246.6 million and $192.9 million, respectively, related to net operating loss carryforwards. At December 31, 2006
and 2005, we had recorded total valuation allowances as an offset to the gross deferred tax assets of $291.4 million
and $252.8 million, respectively, primarily related to net operating loss carryforwards in Brazil, Denmark and the
United States. Realization of the remaining deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 depends on generating
sufficient taxable income in future periods, net of reversing deferred tax liabilities. We believe it is more likely than
not that the remaining net deferred tax assets will be realized.

Warranty and Additional Service Actions

We make provisions for estimated expenses related to product warranties at the time products are sold. We base these
estimates on historical experience of the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims. In addition, the
number and magnitude of additional service actions expected to be approved, and policies related to additional service
actions, are taken into consideration. Due to the uncertainty and potential volatility of these estimated factors, changes
in our assumptions could materially affect net income.

Our estimate of warranty obligations is reevaluated on a quarterly basis. Experience has shown that initial data for any
product series line can be volatile; therefore, our process relies upon long-term historical averages until sufficient data
is available. As actual experience becomes available, it is used to modify the historical averages to ensure that the
forecast is within the range of likely outcomes. Resulting balances are then compared with present spending rates to
ensure that the accruals are adequate to meet expected future obligations.

See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding costs and assumptions for
warranties.

Insurance Reserves
We provide insurance reserves for our estimates of losses due to claims for worker s compensation, product liability
and other liabilities for which we are self-insured. We base these estimates on the ultimate settlement amount of

claims, which often have long periods of resolution. We closely monitor the claims to maintain adequate reserves.

Pensions
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We have defined benefit pension plans covering certain employees principally in the United States, the United
Kingdom, Germany, Finland, Norway, France, Australia and Argentina. Our primary plans cover certain employees in
the United States and the United Kingdom.
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In the United States, we sponsor a funded, qualified plan for our salaried employees, as well as a separate funded
qualified plan for our hourly employees. Both plans are frozen, and we fund at least the minimum contributions
required under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code to both plans. In addition, we sponsor an unfunded,
nonqualified pension plan for our executives. We also provide postretirement health care and life insurance benefits
for certain employees in the United States. Participation in these plans has been limited to older employees and
existing retirees.

In the United Kingdom, we sponsor a funded pension plan that provides an annuity benefit based on participants final
average earnings and service. Participation in this plan is limited to certain older, longer service employees and
existing retirees. No future employees will participate in this plan. See Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information regarding costs and assumptions for employee retirement benefits.

Nature of Estimates Required. The measurement of our pension obligations, costs and liabilities is dependent on a
variety of assumptions used by our actuaries as provided by management. These assumptions include estimates of the
present value of projected future pension payments to all plan participants, taking into consideration the likelihood of
potential future events such as salary increases and demographic experience. These assumptions may have an effect
on the amount and timing of future contributions.

Assumptions and Approach Used. The assumptions used in developing the required estimates include the following
key factors:

Discount rates Inflation
Salary growth Expected return on plan assets
Retirement rates Mortality rates

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we based the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit obligation
for our U.S. pension plans by matching the projected cash flows of our plans to the Citibank pension discount curve.
Prior to December 31, 2006, we based the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit obligation for our
U.S. pension plans on the Moody s Investor Service Aa bond yield as of December 31 of each year. For our
non-U.S. plans, we based the discount rate on comparable indices within each of those countries, such as the 15-year
iBoxx AA corporate bond yield in the United Kingdom. The indices used in the United States, the United Kingdom
and other countries were chosen to match our expected plan obligations and related expected cash flows. The
measurement date with respect to our U.K. pension plan is September 30 of each year. The measurement date with
respect to our U.S. pension plan and all other defined benefit plans is December 31 of each year. We adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans  an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R), (SFAS No. 158 ), as of the year ended December 31,
2006. SFAS No. 158 will require us to measure all defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of our
fiscal year end for years beginning after December 15, 2008, and therefore, the measurement date with respect to our
U.K. pension plan will change upon adoption of that provision during 2008. Our inflation assumption is based on an
evaluation of external market indicators. The salary growth assumptions reflect our long-term actual experience, the
near-term outlook and assumed inflation. The expected return on plan asset assumptions reflects asset allocations,
investment strategy, historical experience and the views of investment managers. Retirement and termination rates are
based primarily on actual plan experience and actuarial standards of practice. The mortality rates were updated during
2006 to reflect the most recent study released by the Society of Actuaries, which reflects pensioner experience and
distinctions for blue and white collar employees. The effects of actual results differing from our assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore, generally affect our recognized expense in such
periods.
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Our U.S. and U.K. pension plans represent approximately 92% of our consolidated projected benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2006. If the discount rate used to determine the 2006 projected benefit obligation for our U.S. plans was
decreased by 25 basis points, our projected benefit obligation would have increased by approximately $1.2 million at
December 31, 2006, and our 2007 pension expense would increase by a nominal amount. If the discount rate used to
determine the 2006 projected benefit obligation for our U.S. plans was increased by 25 basis points, our projected
benefit obligation would have decreased by
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approximately $1.2 million, and our 2007 pension expense would decrease by a nominal amount. If the discount rate
used to determine the projected benefit obligation for our U.K. plan was decreased by 25 basis points, our projected
benefit obligation would have increased by approximately $28.4 million at December 31, 2006, and our 2007 pension
expense would increase by approximately $2.3 million. If the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit
obligation for our U.K. plan was increased by 25 basis points, our projected benefit obligation would have decreased
by approximately $26.7 million at December 31, 2006, and our 2007 pension expense would decrease by
approximately $2.2 million.

Unrecognized actuarial losses related to our pension plans were $241.4 million as of December 31, 2006 as compared
to $251.3 million as of December 31, 2005. The decrease in unrecognized losses between years primarily reflects
increasing discount rates worldwide and gains as a result of better than expected asset returns, partially offset by
currency translation. The unrecognized actuarial losses will be impacted in future periods by actual asset returns,
discount rate changes, currency exchange rate fluctuations, actual demographic experience and certain other factors.
These losses will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of active employees
expected to receive benefits under most of our defined benefit pension plans. For some plans, the population covered
is predominantly inactive participants, and losses related to those plans will be amortized over the average remaining
lives of those participants while covered by the respective plan. As of December 31, 2006, the average amortization
period was 18 years for our U.S. pension plans, and 11 years for our non-U.S. pension plans. The estimated net
actuarial loss for defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from our accumulated other comprehensive loss
during the year ended December 31, 2007 is approximately $15.0 million compared to approximately $19.8 million
during the year ended December 31, 2006.

The weighted average asset allocation of our U.S. pension benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as
follows:

Asset Category 2006 2005

Large cap domestic equity securities 43% 47%
International equity securities 15% 12%
Domestic fixed income securities 19% 28%
Other investments 23% 13%
Total 100% 100%

The weighted average asset allocation of our non-U.S. pension benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as
follows:

Asset Category 2006 2005

Equity securities 49% 51%
Fixed income securities 31% 38%
Other investments 20% 11%
Total 100% 100%
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All tax  qualified pension fund investments in the United States are held in the AGCO Corporation Master Pension
Trust. Our global pension fund strategy is to diversify investments across broad categories of equity and fixed income
securities with appropriate use of alternative investment categories to minimize risk and volatility. Our U.S. target
allocation of retirement fund investments is 50% large cap domestic equity securities, 10% international equity
securities, 20% domestic fixed income securities, and 20% invested in other investments. We have noted that over
very long periods, this mix of investments would achieve an average return in excess of 9%. In arriving at the choice
of an expected return assumption of 8% for our U.S. based plans, we have tempered this historical indicator with
lower expectations for returns on equity investments in the future, as well as considered administrative costs of the
plans. To date, we have not invested pension funds in our own stock, and we have no intention of doing so in the
future. Our non-U.S. target allocation of retirement fund investments is 50% equity securities, 30% fixed income
securities and 20%
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percent invested in other investments. The majority of our non-U.S. pension fund investments are related to our
pension plan in the United Kingdom. We have noted that over very long periods, this target mix of investments would
achieve an average return in excess of 7.5%. In arriving at the choice of an expected return assumption of 7% for our
U.K. pension plan, we have tempered this historical indicator with a slightly lower expectation of future returns on
equity investments, as well as plan expenses.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $238.6 million in unfunded or underfunded obligations related to
our pension plans, due primarily to our pension plans in the United States and the United Kingdom. In 2006, we
contributed approximately $26.6 million towards those obligations, and we expect to fund approximately

$28.1 million in 2007. Future funding is dependent upon compliance with local laws and regulations and changes to
those laws and regulations in the future, as well as the generation of operating cash flows in the future. We currently
have an agreement in place with the trustees of the U.K. defined benefit plan, which obligates us to fund
approximately £10.0 to £12.0 million per year (or approximately $19.6 to $23.5 million) towards that obligation for
the next 12 years. The funding arrangement is based upon the current underfunded status and could change in the
future as discount rates, local laws and regulations and other factors change.

Other Postretirement Benefits (Retiree Health Care and Life Insurance)

We provide certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for certain employees, principally in the
United States. See Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding costs and
assumptions for other postretirement benefits.

Nature of Estimates Required. The measurement of our obligations, costs and liabilities associated with other
postretirement benefits, such as retiree health care and life insurance, requires that we make use of estimates of the
present value of the projected future payments to all participants, taking into consideration the likelihood of potential
future events such as health care cost increases, salary increases and demographic experience, which may have an
effect on the amount and timing of future payments.

Assumptions and Approach Used. The assumptions used in developing the required estimates include the following
key factors:

Health care cost trends Inflation
Discount rates Expected return on plan assets
Salary growth Mortality rates

Retirement rates

Our health care cost trend assumptions are developed based on historical cost data, the near-term outlook, efficiencies
and other cost-mitigating actions (including further employee cost sharing, administrative improvements and other
efficiencies) and an assessment of likely long-term trends. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we based the
discount rate used to determine the projected benefit obligation for our U.S. postretirement benefit plans by matching
the projected cash flows of our plans to the Citibank pension discount curve. Prior to December 31, 2006, we based
the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit obligation for our U.S. postretirement benefit plans on the
Moody s Investor Service Aa bond yield as of December 31 of each year. The index used was chosen to match our
expected plan obligations and related expected cash flows. Our inflation assumption is based on an evaluation of
external market indicators. The salary growth assumptions reflect our long-term actual experience, the near-term
outlook and assumed inflation. Retirement and termination rates are based primarily on actual plan experience and
actuarial standards of practice. The mortality rates were updated during 2006 to reflect the most recent study released
by the Society of Actuaries, which reflects pensioner experience and distinctions for blue and white collar employees.

55



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

The effects of actual results differing from our assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and,
therefore, generally affect our recognized expense in such future periods.

If the discount rate used to determine the 2006 projected benefit obligation for our U.S. postretirement benefit plans
was decreased by 25 basis points, our projected benefit obligation would have increased by approximately

$0.7 million at December 31, 2006, and our 2007 postretirement benefit expense would increase
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by a nominal amount. If the discount rate used to determine the 2006 projected benefit obligation for our
U.S. postretirement benefit plans was increased by 25 basis points, our projected benefit obligation would have
decreased by approximately $0.7 million, and our 2007 pension expense would decrease by a nominal amount.

Unrecognized actuarial losses related to our U.S. postretirement benefit plans were $3.7 million as of December 31,
2006 compared to $10.1 million as of December 31, 2005. The decrease in losses primarily reflects decreasing
participation in our retiree medical plans as a result of changes made to the plans during 2004 and 2005. In addition,
discount rate increases and lower than anticipated medical inflation also contributed to the decrease. The unrecognized
actuarial losses will be impacted in future periods by discount rate changes, actual demographic experience, actual
health care inflation and certain other factors. These losses will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service period of active employees expected to receive benefits, or the average remaining lives of inactive
participants, covered under the postretirement benefit plans. As of December 31, 2006, the average amortization
period was 15 years for our U.S. postretirement benefit plans. The estimated net actuarial loss for postretirement
health care benefits that will be amortized from our accumulated other comprehensive loss during the year ended
December 31, 2007 is approximately $0.1 million, compared to approximately $0.6 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $26.7 million in unfunded obligations related to our
U.S. postretirement health and life insurance benefit plans. In 2006, we contributed approximately $2.6 million
towards these obligations and we expect to contribute approximately $2.2 million towards these obligations in 2007.

For measuring the expected postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2006, a 9% health care cost trend rate
was assumed for 2007, decreasing 1% per year to 5% and remaining at that level thereafter. Changing the assumed
health care cost trend rates by one percentage point each year and holding all other assumptions constant would have
the following effect to service and interest cost for 2007 and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at
December 31, 2006 (in millions):

One One
Percentage Percentage
Point Point
Increase Decrease
Effect on service and interest cost $

“@ &L

Effect on accumulated benefit obligation 2.7 $ (2.3)

Litigation

We are party to various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. We closely monitor these claims
and lawsuits and frequently consult with our legal counsel to determine whether or not they may, when resolved, have
a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 142 establishes a method of testing goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on
an annual basis or on an interim basis if an event occurs or circumstances change that would reduce the fair value of a
reporting unit below its carrying value. Our initial assessment and our annual assessments involve determining an
estimate of the fair value of our reporting units in order to evaluate whether an impairment of the current carrying
amount of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets exists. Fair values are derived based on an evaluation

57



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

of past and expected future performance of our reporting units. A reporting unit is an operating segment or one level
below an operating segment (e.g., a component). A component of an operating segment is a reporting unit if the
component constitutes a business for which discrete financial information is available and our executive management
team regularly reviews the operating results of that component. In addition, we combine and aggregate two or more
components of an operating segment as a single reporting unit if the components have similar economic
characteristics. Our reportable segments reported under the guidance of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information, are not our reporting units, with the exception of our Asia/Pacific
geographical segment.
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We utilized a combination of valuation techniques, including a discounted cash flow approach and a market multiple
approach when making our annual and interim assessments. As stated above, goodwill is tested for impairment on an
annual basis and more often if indications of impairment exist. The results of our analyses conducted as of October 1,
2005 and 2004 indicated that no reduction in the carrying amount of goodwill was required. As a result of our analysis
as of October 1, 2006, we concluded that the goodwill associated with our Sprayer operations was impaired, and
recognized a write-down of the total amount of recorded goodwill of approximately $171.4 million during the fourth
quarter of 2006. The results of our analyses conducted as of October 1, 2006 associated with our other reporting units
indicated that no reduction in their carrying amounts of goodwill was required.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our financing requirements are subject to variations due to seasonal changes in inventory and receivable levels.
Internally generated funds are supplemented when necessary from external sources, primarily our revolving credit
facility and accounts receivable securitization facilities.

Our current financing and funding sources, with balances outstanding as of December 31, 2006, are our

$201.3 million principal amount 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2036, $201.3 million principal
amount 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033, 200.0 million (or approximately $264.0 million)
principal amount 67/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014, approximately $495.2 million of accounts receivable
securitization facilities (with approximately $429.6 million in outstanding funding as of December 31, 2006), a

$300.0 million multi-currency revolving credit facility (with no amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2006), a
$73.3 million United States dollar denominated term loan facility and a 28.9 million (or approximately $38.1 million)
term loan facility.

On December 4, 2006, we issued $201.3 million of 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due December 15,
2036 and received proceeds of approximately $196.4 million, after related fees and expenses. The notes are unsecured
obligations and are convertible into cash and shares of our common stock upon satisfaction of certain conditions, as
discussed below. The notes provide for (i) the settlement upon conversion in cash up to the principal amount of the
notes with any excess conversion value settled in shares of our common stock, and (ii) the conversion rate to be
increased under certain circumstances if the notes are converted in connection with certain change of control
transactions occurring prior to December 15, 2013. Interest is payable on the notes at 11/4% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears in cash on June 15 and December 15 of each year, beginning on June 15, 2007. The notes are
convertible into shares of our common stock at an effective price of $40.73 per share, subject to adjustment. Holders
may convert the notes only under the following circumstances: (1) during any fiscal quarter, if the closing sales price
of our common stock exceeds 120% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading
days ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quarter; (2) during the five business day period after a five
consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per note for each day of that period was less than 98% of the
product of the closing sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate; (3) if the notes have been called for
redemption; or (4) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions. Beginning December 15, 2013, we may
redeem any of the notes at a redemption price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest. Holders of the
notes may require us to repurchase the notes at a repurchase price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued
interest, on December 15, 2013, 2016, 2021, 2026 and 2031. Holders may also require us to repurchase all or a portion
of the notes upon a fundamental change, as defined in the indenture, at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the notes to be repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest. The notes are senior
subordinated obligations and are subordinated to all of our existing and future senior indebtedness and effectively
subordinated to all debt and other liabilities of our subsidiaries. The notes are equal in right of payment with our
67/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and our 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033.
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We used the net proceeds received from the issuance of the 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes, as well as
available cash, to repay $196.9 million of our outstanding United States dollar denominated term loan and

79.1 million of our outstanding Euro denominated term loan. In addition, we recorded interest expense of
approximately $2.0 million for the proportionate write-off of deferred debt issuance costs
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associated with the term loan balances that were repaid. Our United States dollar denominated and Euro denominated
term loans are discussed further below.

On June 29, 2005, we exchanged our $201.3 million of 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033 for new
notes which provide for (i) the settlement upon conversion in cash up to the principal amount of the converted new
notes with any excess conversion value settled in shares of our common stock, and (ii) the conversion rate to be
increased under certain circumstances if the new notes are converted in connection with certain change of control
transactions occurring prior to December 10, 2010, but otherwise are substantially the same as the old notes. The notes
are unsecured obligations and are convertible into cash and shares of our common stock upon satisfaction of certain
conditions, as discussed below. Interest is payable on the notes at 13/4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears
in cash on June 30 and December 31 of each year. The notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at an
effective price of $22.36 per share, subject to adjustment. Holders may convert the notes only under the following
circumstances: (1) during any fiscal quarter, if the closing sales price of our common stock exceeds 120% of the
conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the
preceding fiscal quarter; (2) during the five business day period after a five consecutive trading day period in which
the trading price per note for each day of that period was less than 98% of the product of the closing sale price of our
common stock and the conversion rate; (3) if the notes have been called for redemption; or (4) upon the occurrence of
certain corporate transactions. Beginning January 1, 2011, we may redeem any of the notes at a redemption price of
100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest. Holders of the notes may require us to repurchase the notes at a
repurchase price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest, on December 31, 2010, 2013, 2018, 2023
and 2028.

The impact of the exchange completed in June 2005, as discussed above, reduces the diluted weighted average shares
outstanding in future periods. The initial reduction in the diluted shares was approximately 9.0 million shares but
varies based on our stock price, once the market price trigger or other specified conversion circumstances have been
met.

As of December 31, 2006, the closing sales price of our common stock had exceeded 120% of the conversion price of
$22.36 per share for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days ending December 31, 2006, and,
therefore, we classified the 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes as a current liability. Future classification of
the notes between current and long-term debt is dependent on the closing sales price of our common stock during
future quarters. We believe it is unlikely the holders of the notes would convert the notes under the provisions of the
indenture agreement, as typically convertible securities are not converted prior to expiration unless called for
redemption, thereby requiring us to repay the principal portion in cash. In the event the notes were converted, we
believe we could repay the notes with available cash on hand, funds from our existing $300.0 million multi-currency
revolving credit facility, or a combination of these sources.

We redeemed our $250 million 91/2% senior notes on June 23, 2005 at a price of approximately $261.9 million,
which represented a premium of 4.75% over the senior notes face amount. The premium of approximately

$11.9 million was reflected in interest expense, net during the second quarter of 2005. In connection with the
redemption, we also wrote off the remaining balance of deferred debt issuance costs of approximately $2.2 million.
The funding sources for the redemption was a combination of cash generated from the transfer of wholesale
interest-bearing receivables to our United States and Canadian retail finance joint ventures, AGCO Finance LL.C and
AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd., as discussed below, revolving credit facility borrowings, and available cash on hand.

On January 5, 2004, we entered into a new credit facility that provides for a $300.0 million multi-currency revolving
credit facility, a $300.0 million United States dollar denominated term loan and a 120.0 million Euro denominated
term loan. The maturity date of the revolving credit facility is December 2008 and the maturity date for the term loan
facility is June 2009. We are required to make quarterly payments towards the United States dollar denominated term
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loan and Euro denominated term loan of $0.75 million and 0.3 million, respectively (or an amortization of one percent
per annum until the maturity date of each term loan). The revolving credit and term loan facilities are secured by a
majority of our U.S.,
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Canadian, Finnish and U.K. based assets and a pledge of a portion of the stock of our domestic and material foreign
subsidiaries. Interest accrues on amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility, at our option, at either

(1) LIBOR plus a margin ranging between 1.25% and 2.0% based upon our senior debt ratio or (2) the higher of the
administrative agent s base lending rate or one-half of one percent over the federal funds rate plus a margin ranging
between 0.0% and 0.75% based on our senior debt ratio. Interest accrues on amounts outstanding under the term loans
at LIBOR plus 1.75%. The credit facility contains covenants restricting, among other things, the incurrence of
indebtedness and the making of certain payments, including dividends. We also must fulfill financial covenants
including, among others, a total debt to EBITDA ratio, a senior debt to EBITDA ratio and a fixed charge coverage
ratio, as defined in the facility. As of December 31, 2006, we had total borrowings of $111.4 million under the credit
facility, which included $73.3 million under the United States dollar denominated term loan facility, 28.9 million
(approximately $38.1 million) under the Euro denominated term loan facility and no amounts outstanding under the
multi-currency revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2006, we had availability to borrow $292.2 million under
the revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, we had total borrowings of $401.5 million under the credit
facility, which included $272.5 million under the United States dollar denominated term loan facility, 108.9 million
(approximately $129.0 million) under the Euro denominated term loan facility and no amounts outstanding under the
multi-currency revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, we had availability to borrow $292.9 million under
the revolving credit facility.

On April 7, 2004, we sold 14,720,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public offering and received net
proceeds of approximately $300.1 million. We used the net proceeds to repay a $100.0 million interim bridge loan
facility that we used in part to acquire Valtra, to repay borrowings under our credit facility and to pay offering related
fees and expenses.

On April 23, 2004, we sold 200.0 million of 67/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and received proceeds of
approximately $234.0 million, after offering related fees and expenses. The 67/8% senior subordinated notes are
unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to any existing or future senior indebtedness. Interest
is payable on the notes semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning October 15, 2004.
Beginning April 15, 2009, we may redeem the notes, in whole or in part, initially at 103.438% of their principal
amount, plus accrued interest, declining to 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest, at any time on or
after April 15, 2012. In addition, before April 15, 2009, we may redeem the notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued interest and a make-whole premium. Before April 15, 2007,
we also may redeem up to 35% of the notes at 106.875% of their principal amount using the proceeds from sales of
certain kinds of capital stock. The notes include covenants restricting the incurrence of indebtedness and the making
of certain restricted payments, including dividends.

We used the net proceeds received from the issuance of the 67/8% senior subordinated notes, as well as available
cash, to redeem our $250.0 million principal amount of 81/2% senior subordinated notes on May 24, 2004.

Under our securitization facilities, we sell accounts receivable in the United States, Canada and Europe on a revolving
basis to commercial paper conduits through a wholly-owned special purpose U.S. subsidiary and a qualifying special
purpose entity ( QSPE ) in the United Kingdom. The United States and Canadian securitization facilities expire in April
2009 and the European facility expires in October 2011, but each is subject to annual renewal. The European facility
was renewed in October 2006 and restructured so that wholesale receivables are sold through a QSPE. The new
European securitization also eliminates the requirement to maintain certain debt rating levels from Standard and Poor s
and Moody s Investor Services that was applicable to the previous securitization facility. As of December 31, 2006, the
aggregate amount of these facilities was $495.2 million. The outstanding funded balance of $429.6 million as of
December 31, 2006 has the effect of reducing accounts receivable and short-term liabilities by the same amount. Our
risk of loss under the securitization facilities is limited to a portion of the unfunded balance of receivables sold, which
is approximately 15% of the funded amount. We maintain reserves for doubtful accounts associated with this risk. If
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the facilities were terminated, we would not be required to repurchase previously sold receivables but would be
prevented from selling additional receivables to the commercial paper conduit.
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These facilities allow us to sell accounts receivables through financing conduits which obtain funding from
commercial paper markets. Future funding under securitization facilities depends upon the adequacy of receivables, a
sufficient demand for the underlying commercial paper and the maintenance of certain covenants concerning the
quality of the receivables and our financial condition. In the event commercial paper demand is not adequate, our
securitization facilities provide for liquidity backing from various financial institutions, including Rabobank. These
liquidity commitments would provide us with interim funding to allow us to find alternative sources of working
capital financing, if necessary.

In May 2005, we completed an agreement to permit transferring, on an ongoing basis, the majority of our wholesale
interest-bearing receivables in North America to our United States and Canadian retail finance joint ventures, AGCO
Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd. We have a 49% ownership interest in these joint ventures. The transfer
of the wholesale interest-bearing receivables is without recourse to AGCO and we will continue to service the
receivables. The initial transfer of wholesale interest-bearing receivables resulted in net proceeds of approximately
$94 million, which were used to redeem our $250 million 91/2% senior notes. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
balance of interest-bearing receivables transferred to AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd. under this
agreement was approximately $124.1 million and $109.9 million, respectively.

Our business is subject to substantial cyclical variations, which generally are difficult to forecast. Our results of
operations may also vary from time to time resulting from costs associated with rationalization plans and acquisitions.
As aresult, we have had to request relief from our lenders on occasion with respect to financial covenant compliance.
While we do not currently anticipate asking for any relief, it is possible that we would require relief in the future.
Based upon our historical working relationship with our lenders, we currently do not anticipate any difficulty in
obtaining that relief.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $442.2 million during 2006, compared to $246.3 million during 2005.
The operating cash flows during 2005 reflect approximately $124.1 million of interest-bearing receivables that were
transferred to AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada Ltd., as discussed above. Operating cash flows in
2006 were higher than 2005 primarily due to reductions in working capital achieved in 2006.

Our working capital requirements are seasonal, with investments in working capital typically building in the first half
of the year and then reducing in the second half of the year. We had $685.4 million in working capital at

December 31, 2006, as compared with $825.8 million at December 31, 2005. Accounts receivable and inventories,
combined, at December 31, 2006 were $23.8 million higher than at December 31, 2005. Excluding the impact of
currency translation of approximately $110.8 million, accounts receivable and inventories at December 31, 2006 were
approximately $87.0 million lower than at December 31, 2005. Cash on hand at December 31, 2006 was
approximately $180.5 million higher than the prior year due to the increase in operating cash flow generated in 2006.

Capital expenditures for 2006 were $129.1 million compared to $88.4 million during 2005. Capital expenditures
during 2006 were used to support the development and enhancement of new and existing products, as well as to
expand our engine manufacturing facility.

In February 2005, we made a $21.3 million investment in our retail finance joint venture with Rabobank in Brazil, as
more fully described in ~ Related Parties below.

Our debt to capitalization ratio, which is total indebtedness divided by the sum of total indebtedness and stockholders

equity, was 34.5% at December 31, 2006 compared to 37.5% at December 31, 2005. The decrease is due to lower debt
levels during 2006.
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From time to time, we review and will continue to review acquisition and joint venture opportunities, as well as
changes in the capital markets. If we were to consummate a significant acquisition or elect to take advantage of
favorable opportunities in the capital markets, we may supplement availability or revise the terms under our credit
facilities or complete public or private offerings of equity or debt securities.
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We believe that available borrowings under the revolving credit facility, funding under the accounts receivable
securitization facilities, available cash and internally generated funds will be sufficient to support our working capital,
capital expenditures and debt service requirements for the foreseeable future.

Contractual Obligations

The future payments required under our significant contractual obligations, excluding foreign currency forward
contracts, as of December 31, 2006 are as follows (in millions):

Payments Due By Period
2008 to 2010 to 2012 and
Total 2007 2009 2011 Beyond

Long-term debt $ 7850 $ 2076 $ 1085 $ 1.7 $ 4672
Interest payments related to long-term debt()) 154.2 27.5 49.0 36.6 41.1
Capital lease obligations 3.9 2.3 1.6
Operating lease obligations 149.5 29.7 38.8 21.2 59.8
Unconditional purchase obligations? 128.4 64.1 50.0 9.2 5.1
Other short-term and long-term obligations®) 286.9 32.1 474 46.9 160.5
Total contractual cash obligations $ 1,507.9 $ 363.3 $ 2953 $ 1156 $ 7337

Amount of Commitment Expiration

Per Period
2012
2008 to 2010 to and
Total 2007 2009 2011 Beyond
Standby letters of credit and similar instruments $ 738 $ 738 $ $ $
Guarantees 88.0 79.1 8.9
Total commercial commitments and lines of credit $ 95.8 $ 86.9 $ 89 $ $

() Estimated interest payments are calculated assuming current interest rates over minimum maturity periods
specified in debt agreements. Debt may be repaid sooner or later than such minimum maturity periods.

@) Unconditional purchase obligations exclude routine purchase orders entered into in the normal course of
business. As a result of the rationalization of our European combine manufacturing operations during 2004, we
entered into an agreement with a third-party manufacturer to produce certain combine model ranges over a
five-year period. The agreement provides that we will purchase a minimum quantity of 200 combines per year,
at a cost of approximately 16.2 million per year (or approximately $21.4 million) through May 2009.
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Other short-term and long-term obligations include estimates of future minimum contribution requirements
under our U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension and postretirement plans. These estimates are based on
current legislation in the countries we operate within and are subject to change.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Guarantees

At December 31, 2006, we were obligated under certain circumstances to purchase, through the year 2010, up to
$7.2 million of equipment upon expiration of certain operating leases between AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO
Finance Canada Ltd., our retail finance joint ventures in North America, and end users. We also maintain a
remarketing agreement with these joint ventures whereby we are obligated to repurchase repossessed inventory at
market values. We have an agreement with AGCO Finance LL.C which limits our purchase obligations under this
arrangement to $6.0 million in the aggregate per calendar year. We believe that any losses that might be incurred on
the resale of this equipment will not materially impact our financial position or results of operations.

From time to time, we sell certain trade receivables under factoring arrangements to financial institutions throughout

the world. We evaluate the sale of such receivables pursuant to the guidelines of SFAS No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities a
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Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125, and have determined that these facilities should be accounted for as
off-balance sheet transactions in accordance with SFAS No. 140.

At December 31, 2006, we guaranteed indebtedness owed to third parties of approximately $80.8 million, primarily
related to dealer and end-user financing of equipment. We believe the credit risk associated with these guarantees is
not material to our financial position.

Other

At December 31, 2006, we had foreign currency forward contracts to buy an aggregate of approximately

$166.0 million United States dollar equivalents and foreign currency forward contracts to sell an aggregate of

approximately $172.3 million United States dollar equivalents. All contracts have a maturity of less than one year. See
Foreign Currency Risk Management for additional information.

Contingencies

As a result of recent Brazilian tax legislative changes impacting value added taxes ( VAT ), we have recorded a reserve
of approximately $20.0 million and $21.4 million against our outstanding balance of Brazilian VAT taxes receivable

as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, due to the uncertainty as to our ability to collect the amounts
outstanding.

In February 2006, we received a subpoena from the SEC in connection with a non-public, fact-finding inquiry entitled

In the Matter of Certain Participants in the Oil for Food Program. This subpoena requested documents concerning
transactions under the United Nations Oil for Food Program by AGCO and certain of our subsidiaries. The subpoena
arises from sales by our subsidiaries of farm equipment to the Iraq ministry of agriculture. We are cooperating fully
with the inquiry. The subpoena does not imply there have been any violations of the federal securities or other laws.
However, should the SEC (or the U.S. Department of Justice, which is participating in the SEC s inquiry) determine
that we have violated federal law, we could be subject to civil or criminal fines and penalties, or both. A similar
proceeding has been initiated against one of our subsidiaries in Denmark, and on November 28, 2006, the French
government initiated an investigation of one of our subsidiaries in France. It is not possible to predict the outcome of
these inquiries or their impact, if any, on us.

We are a party to various legal claims and actions incidental to our business. We believe that none of these claims or
actions, either individually or in the aggregate, is material to our business or financial condition.

Related Parties

Rabobank, a AAA rated financial institution based in the Netherlands, is a 51% owner in our retail finance joint
ventures which are located in the United States, Canada, Brazil, Germany, France, the United Kingdom, Australia,
Ireland and Austria. Rabobank is also the principal agent and participant in our revolving credit facility and our
securitization facilities. The majority of the assets of our retail finance joint ventures represent finance receivables.
The majority of the liabilities represent notes payable and accrued interest. Under the various joint venture
agreements, Rabobank or its affiliates are obligated to provide financing to the joint venture companies, primarily
through lines of credit. We do not guarantee the debt obligations of the retail finance joint ventures other than a
portion of the retail portfolio in Brazil that is held outside the joint venture by Rabobank Brazil. Prior to 2005, our
joint venture in Brazil had an agency relationship with Rabobank whereby Rabobank provided the funding. In
February 2005, we made a $21.3 million investment in our retail finance joint venture with Rabobank Brazil. With the
additional investment, the joint venture s organizational structure is now more comparable to our other retail finance
joint ventures and will result in the gradual elimination of our solvency guarantee to Rabobank for the portfolio that
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was originally funded by Rabobank Brazil. As of December 31, 2006, the solvency requirement for the portfolio held
by Rabobank was approximately $8.3 million.
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Our retail finance joint ventures provide retail financing and wholesale financing to our dealers. The terms of the
financing arrangements offered to our dealers are similar to arrangements they provide to unaffiliated third parties. As
discussed previously, at December 31, 2005 we were obligated under certain circumstances to purchase through the
year 2010 up to $7.2 million of equipment upon expiration of certain operating leases between AGCO Finance LLC
and AGCO Finance Canada Ltd, our retail joint ventures in North America, and end users. We also maintain a
remarketing agreement with these joint ventures, as discussed under Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

In addition, as part of sales incentives provided to end users, we may from time to time subsidize interest rates of retail
financing provided by our retail joint ventures. The cost of those programs is recognized at the time of sale to our
dealers. In addition, as discussed above, in May 2005, we completed an agreement to permit transferring, on an
ongoing basis, the majority of our wholesale interest-bearing receivables in North America to AGCO Finance LLC
and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd. We have a 49% ownership interest in these joint ventures. The transfer of the
wholesale interest-bearing receivables is without recourse to AGCO and we continue to service the receivables. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the balance of interest-bearing receivables transferred to AGCO Finance LL.C and
AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd. under this agreement was approximately $124.1 million and $109.9 million,
respectively.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we had net sales of approximately $190.9 million, $153.8 million and $162.8 million,
respectively, to BayWa Corporation, a German distributor, in the ordinary course of business. The President and CEO
of BayWa Corporation is a member of our Board of Directors.

During 2006 and 2005, we made license fee payments and purchased raw materials, including engines, totaling
approximately $211.3 million and $184.5 million from Caterpillar Inc., in the ordinary course of business. One of the
Group Presidents of Caterpillar Inc. is a member of our Board of Directors.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we purchased approximately $1.4 million, $4.4 million and $2.4 million, respectively,
of equipment components from our manufacturing joint venture, Deutz AGCO Motores SA, at prices approximating
cost.

Outlook

Our operations are subject to the cyclical nature of the agricultural industry. Sales of our equipment have been and are
expected to continue to be affected by changes in net cash farm income, farm land values, weather conditions, the
demand for agricultural commodities, farm industry related legislation and general economic conditions.

Worldwide industry retail sales of farm equipment in 2007 are expected to be flat compared to 2006 levels. In North
America, 2007 farm income is projected to be modestly higher, but continued uncertainty surrounding the renewal of
the farm bill is expected to keep industry retail sales flat compared to 2006. In South America, the income of soybean
farmers is expected to improve; however, high farmer debt levels are expected to continue to pressure investment in
farm equipment. Consequently, industry sales in South America are forecasted to be flat compared to 2006. In Europe,
continued expansion in Eastern Europe is expected to offset a slight reduction in sales in Western Europe.

Based on this market outlook, net sales for the full year of 2007 are expected to be slightly higher than 2006 due to
pricing, market share improvement, growth in Eastern Europe and the impact of favorable currency translation. Net
income is expected to improve in 2007 compared to 2006 resulting from sales increases and lower interest expense
due to debt refinancings. In 2007, strategic investments in the form of increased engineering expense, plant
productivity initiatives, a European system initiative, new market development and distribution improvements are
expected to limit operating margin improvement.
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Foreign Currency Risk Management
We have significant manufacturing operations in France, Germany, Brazil, Finland and Denmark, and we purchase a
portion of our tractors, combines and components from third-party foreign suppliers, primarily in various European

countries and in Japan. We also sell products in over 140 countries throughout the world.
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The majority of our net sales outside the United States is denominated in the currency of the customer location, with
the exception of sales in the Middle East, Africa, Asia and parts of South America where net sales are primarily
denominated in British pounds, Euros or United States dollars. See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
for net sales by customer location. Our most significant transactional foreign currency exposures are the Euro,
Brazilian Real and the Canadian dollar in relation to the United States dollar. Fluctuations in the value of foreign
currencies create exposures, which can adversely affect our results of operations.

We attempt to manage our transactional foreign exchange exposure by economically hedging foreign currency cash
flow forecasts and commitments arising from the settlement of receivables and payables and from future purchases
and sales. Where naturally offsetting currency positions do not occur, we hedge certain, but not all, of our exposures
through the use of foreign currency forward contracts. Our hedging policy prohibits foreign currency forward
contracts for speculative trading purposes. Our translation exposure resulting from translating the financial statements
of foreign subsidiaries into United States dollars is not hedged. Our most significant translation exposures are the
Euro, the British pound and the Brazilian Real in relation to the United States dollar. When practical, this translation
impact is reduced by financing local operations with local borrowings.

All derivatives are recognized on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. On the date a derivative
contract is entered into, we designate the derivative as either (1) a fair value hedge of a recognized liability, (2) a cash
flow hedge of a forecasted transaction, (3) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, or (4) a non-designated
derivative instrument. We currently engage in derivatives that are non-designated derivative instruments. Changes in
fair value of non-designated derivative contracts are reported in current earnings. During the second quarter of 2006,
we designated certain foreign currency option contracts as cash flow hedges of expected sales. The effective portion of
the fair value gains or losses on these cash flow hedges were recorded in other comprehensive income and
subsequently reclassified into net sales as the sales were recognized. These amounts offset the effect of the changes in
foreign exchange rates on the related sale transactions. The amount of the gain recorded in other comprehensive loss
that was reclassified to net sales during the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $4.0 million after-tax.
These contracts all expired prior to December 31, 2006.

The following is a summary of foreign currency derivative contracts used to hedge currency exposures. All contracts

have a maturity of less than one year. The net notional amounts and fair value gains or losses as of December 31,
2006 stated in United States dollars are as follows (in millions, except average contract rate):

Net Notional Average

Amount Contract Fair Value
Buy/(Sell) Rate* Gain/(Loss)
Australian dollar $ (31.5) 1.29 $ (0.5)
Brazilian Real 117.5 2.16 14
British pound 35.5 0.51
Canadian dollar (35.4) 1.14 1.0
Euro (78.8) 0.76 0.4)
Japanese yen 13.0 116.67 (0.3)
Mexican peso (10.2) 10.81
New Zealand dollar 2.1 1.42
Norwegian krone (5.5 6.26
Polish zloty (2.6) 291
Russian Rouble (1.5) 26.29
Swedish krona 4.7 6.87
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* Per United States dollar

Because these contracts were entered into for hedging purposes, the gains and losses on the contracts would largely be
offset by gains and losses on the underlying firm commitment.
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Interest Rates

We manage interest rate risk through the use of fixed rate debt and may in the future utilize interest rate swap
contracts. We have fixed rate debt from our senior subordinated notes and our convertible senior subordinated notes.
Our floating rate exposure is related to our revolving credit facility and our securitization facilities, which are tied to
changes in United States and European LIBOR rates. Assuming a 10.0% increase in interest rates, interest expense,
net and the cost of our securitization facilities for the year ended December 31, 2006 would have increased by
approximately $6.2 million.

We had no interest rate swap contracts outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Accounting Changes

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, ( SFAS No. 159 ). SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
liabilities at fair value and to provide additional information that will help investors and other users of financial
statements to understand more easily the effect on earnings of the company s choice to use fair value. It also requires
companies to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the company has chosen to use fair value

on the face of the balance sheet. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 159 on January 1, 2008 and are currently

evaluating the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 159 on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 108 Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements ( SAB 108 ). SAB 108 requires
that public companies utilize a dual-approach to assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This
dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. The
guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006.
The adoption of SAB 108 had an impact of increasing our consolidated retained earnings balance by approximately
$13.6 million as of January 1, 2006. Refer to Note 1 of our Consolidated Financial Statements where the adoption of
SAB 108 is discussed.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued SFAS No. 158. SFAS No. 158 requires
an employer that sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to (i) recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a benefit plan in its statement of financial position, (ii) recognize as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but
are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for
Pensions , or SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions , (iii) measure
defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer s fiscal year-end, and (iv) disclose in the

notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal
year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition assets or
obligations. SFAS No. 158 is effective for the year ended December 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had a
$26.8 million impact to our consolidated accumulated other comprehensive loss balance as of December 31, 2006,
related to our underfunded defined benefit pension plans, primarily in the U.K. and the U.S. Refer to Note 8 of our
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of our defined benefit pension and postretirement health care

benefit plans.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS No. 157 ). SFAS No. 157

establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to guidance regarding U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about
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such fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are
currently assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our 2008 consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

48

76



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ( FSP ) AUG AIR-1 Accounting for Planned Major
Maintenance Activities ( FSP AUG AIR-1 ). FSP AUG AIR-1 amends the guidance on the accounting for planned
major maintenance activities; specifically it precludes the use of the previously acceptable accrue in advance method.
FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The implementation of this standard

is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations, as we do not
employ the accrue in advance method.

In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements, ( EITF 06-4 ), which
requires the application of the provisions of SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions ( SFAS No. 106 ), to endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements. SFAS No. 106 would require
us to recognize a liability for the discounted future benefit obligation that we will have to pay upon the death of the
underlying insured employee. An endorsement-type arrangement generally exists when we own and control all

incidents of ownership of the underlying policies. EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2007. We may have certain policies subject to the provisions of this new pronouncement, but we do not believe the
adoption of EITF 06-4 will have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial position

during our 2008 fiscal year.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ( FIN 48 ). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and disclosure. FIN 48 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a

material effect on our 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 140 ( SFAS No. 156 ). SFAS No. 156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or liability
each time it undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract in specified
situations. Such servicing assets or liabilities would be initially measured at fair value, if practicable, and subsequently
measured at amortized value or fair value based upon an election of the reporting entity. SFAS No. 156 also specifies
certain financial statement presentations and disclosures in connection with servicing assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006 and may be adopted earlier but only if

the adoption is in the first quarter of the fiscal year. The adoption of SFAS No. 156 is not expected to have a material
effect on our 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (that is, Gross versus Net
Presentation) ( EITF 06-3 ), which allows companies to adopt a policy of presenting taxes in the income statement on
either a gross or net basis. Taxes within the scope of this EITF would include taxes that are imposed on a revenue
transaction between a seller and a customer; for example, sales taxes, use taxes, value-added taxes and some types of
excise taxes. EITF 06-3 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2006. EITF
06-3 will not impact the method for recording and reporting these sales taxes in our consolidated results of operations

or financial position as our policy is to exclude all such taxes from net sales and present such taxes in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations on a net basis.

In April 2005, the SEC adopted a new rule that changed the adoption date of SFAS No. 123R. We adopted
SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006, and are using the modified prospective method of adoption. The
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application of the expensing provisions of SFAS No. 123R in 2006 resulted in pre-tax expense of approximately
$3.6 million. Refer to Notes 1 and 10 of our Consolidated Financial Statements where our stock compensation plans
are discussed.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs-An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4
( SFAS No. 151 ). SFAS No. 151 amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43,
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Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing ( ARB No. 43 ), to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage). Among other provisions, the new rule requires that items such

as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight and rehandling costs be recognized as current-period

charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of so abnormal as stated in ARB No. 43. Additionally,

SFAS No. 151 requires that the allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.

Our adoption of SFAS No. 151 in 2006 did not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or
financial position.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk information required by this Item set forth under the
captions Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Foreign Currency
Risk Management and  Interest Rates on pages 46 through 48 under Item 7 of this Form 10-K are incorporated herein
by reference.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of AGCO and its subsidiaries for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006 are included in this Item:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 52
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31. 2006. 2005 and 2004 53
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31. 2006 and 2005 54
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 31. 2006, 2005 and 2004 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31. 2006. 2005 and 2004 56
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 57

The information under the heading Quarterly Results of Item 7 on page 31 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by
reference.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
AGCO Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AGCO Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the
consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule as listed in Item 15(a)(2).
These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of AGCO Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 1, 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its methods of
accounting for share-based payment and defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and its method of
quantifying errors in 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of AGCO Corporation s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
February 28, 2007
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AGCO CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net sales $ 5,435.0 $ 5,449.7 $ 5,273.3
Cost of goods sold 4,507.2 4,516.1 4,320.4
Gross profit 927.8 933.6 952.9
Selling, general and administrative expenses 541.7 520.7 509.8
Engineering expenses 127.9 121.7 103.7
Restructuring and other infrequent expenses 1.0 0.1
Goodwill impairment charge 171.4
Amortization of intangibles 16.9 16.5 15.8
Income from operations 68.9 274.7 3235
Interest expense, net 55.2 80.0 77.0
Other expense, net 329 34.6 22.1
(Loss) income before income taxes and equity in net earnings of affiliates (19.2) 160.1 224.4
Income tax provision 73.5 151.1 86.2
(Loss) income before equity in net earnings of affiliates 92.7) 9.0 138.2
Equity in net earnings of affiliates 27.8 22.6 20.6
Net (loss) income $ (649 $ 31.6 $ 1588
Net (loss) income per common share:
Basic $ (071 % 0.35 $ 1.84
Diluted $ (071 % 0.35 $ 1.71
Weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares
outstanding:
Basic 90.8 90.4 86.2
Diluted 90.8 90.7 95.6

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AGCO CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share amounts)

December 31,
2006

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 401.1
Accounts and notes receivable, net 677.1
Inventories, net 1,064.9
Deferred tax assets 36.8
Other current assets 129.1
Total current assets 2,309.0
Property, plant and equipment, net 643.9
Investment in affiliates 191.6
Deferred tax assets 105.5
Other assets 64.5
Intangible assets, net 207.9
Goodwill 592.1
Total assets $ 4,114.5

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt $
Convertible senior subordinated notes

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion

Pensions and postretirement health care benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12)

Stockholders Equity:

Preferred stock; $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
or outstanding in 2006 and 2005

6.3
201.3
706.9
629.7

79.4

1,623.6
5774
268.1
114.9

36.9

2,620.9

0.9

December 31,
2005

$ 220.6
655.7

1,062.5

39.7

107.7

2,086.2
561.4
164.7

84.1
56.6
211.5
696.7

$ 3,861.2

590.9
561.8
101.4

1,260.4
841.8
241.7

88.1
13.2

2,445.2

0.9
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Common stock; $0.01 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 91,177,903

and 90,508,221 shares issued and outstanding in 2006 and 2005,

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Unearned compensation

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

respectively
908.9
774.1
(190.3)
1,493.6

$ 4,114.5

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AGCO CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
(in millions, except share amounts)

EQUITY

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated
Defined Deferred Other
Benefit Cumulative GainsComprehensive Total Com
(Losses)
Paid-In Retained Unearned Pension Translation on

Additional

Common Stock Income Stockholders 1

Shares Amount Capital EarningSompensation Plans AdjustmenDerivatives (Loss) Equity

75,409,655 $ 0.8 $ 5903 $ 6350 $ (0.5 $ (1284) $ (188.4) $ (27) $ (319.5) $ 906.1
158.8 158.8 %

14,720,000 0.1 299.4 299.5

7,487 0.2 0.2

257,150 33 33

0.3 0.3

(18.9) (18.9) (18.9)

3.8 3.8 3.8

69.3 69.3 69.3

90,394,292 0.9 893.2 793.8 0.2) (147.3) (119.1) 1.1 (265.3) 1,422.4

31.6 31.6

4,449 0.1 0.1

109,480 14 1.4

0.1 0.1
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0.9

0.9

91,177,903 $ 0.9
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894.7

894.7
0.2
10.8

33

0.1)

$ 908.9

(2.8)
8254 0.1) (150.1)
13.6
839.0 0.1) (150.1)
(64.9)

0.1
6.6
(26.8)
$ 7741 $ $ (1703) $

(39.6)

(158.7)

(158.7)

136.7

(220) $ 20 $ (190.3) $ 14936 ¢

2.8

39

39

0.1

(2.0)

(2.8)

2.8

(39.6)

(304.9)

(304.9)

6.6

0.1

(2.0)

(26.8)

136.7

(2.8)

2.8

(39.6)

1,416.0

13.6
1,429.6

(64.9)
0.2

10.8
33

6.6

0.1

(2.0)

(26.8)

136.7
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See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AGCO CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation

Deferred debt issuance cost amortization

Goodwill impairment charge

Amortization of intangibles

Stock compensation

Equity in net earnings of affiliates, net of cash received
Deferred income tax provision

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Write-down of property, plant and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchase of

businesses:

Accounts and notes receivable, net
Inventories, net

Other current and noncurrent assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other current and noncurrent liabilities

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Sale/(purchase) of businesses, net of cash acquired

(Investments in)/proceeds from sale of unconsolidated affiliates, net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt obligations
Repayments of debt obligations

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Payment of debt issuance costs

Years Ended December 31,

2006

$ (649

98.6
6.4
1714
16.9
35
(8.8)
10.6
0.8)
0.3

325
66.2
(26.5)
55.1
443
374

507.1
4422
(129.1)

39
2.9)
(128.1)

538.2
(708.2)

10.8
4.9)

2005

$ 316

89.4
7.2

16.5
0.2
(14.5)
107.9
(3.0
0.3

103.6
(42.1)
(22.3)
39.8
(44.6)
(23.7)

214.7
246.3
(88.4)
10.5
0.4
(23.4)
(100.9)
670.2

(901.1)
1.4

2004

$ 158.8

84.3
13.2

15.8
0.3
(6.1)
14.5
8.7)
9.5

(39.9)

(65.1)

(10.5)
53.2
38.5
8.1

107.1
265.9
(78.4)
46.0
(765.7)
1.0
(797.1)
1,450.5
(1,036.9)

303.0
(21.1)
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Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (164.1)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 30.5
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 180.5
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 220.6
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 401.1

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(229.5)
(20.9)

(105.0)
325.6

$ 2206

695.5

14.3

178.6
147.0

325.6
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AGCO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business

AGCO Corporation ( AGCO orthe Company ) is aleading manufacturer and distributor of agricultural equipment and
related replacement parts throughout the world. The Company sells a full range of agricultural equipment, including
tractors, combines, hay tools, sprayers, forage equipment and implements. The Company s products are widely
recognized in the agricultural equipment industry and are marketed under a number of well-known brand names

including: AGCO®, Challenger®, Fendt®, Gleaner®, Hesston®, Massey Ferguson®, New Idea®, RoGator®,

Spra-Coupe®, Sunflower®, Terra-Gator®, Valtra® and White'™ Planters. The Company distributes most of its products
through a combination of approximately 3,200 independent dealers and distributors. In addition, the Company

provides retail financing in the United States, Canada, Brazil, Germany, France, the United Kingdom, Australia,

Ireland and Austria through its retail finance joint ventures with Codperative Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank

B.A., or Rabobank .

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements represent the consolidation of all wholly-owned companies, majority-owned
companies and joint ventures where the Company has been determined to be the primary beneficiary under Financial
Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ( FIN 46R ).
The Company records investments in all other affiliate companies using the equity method of accounting. Other

investments representing an ownership of less than 20% are recorded at cost. All significant intercompany balances

and transactions have been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
Joint Ventures

The Company currently has equity interests in joint ventures with other entities. For those joint ventures where the
Company is not the primary beneficiary as determined under FIN 46R, the Company accounts for its investments
under the equity method of accounting.

The Company analyzed the provisions of FIN 46R as they relate to the accounting for its investments in joint ventures
and determined that it is the primary beneficiary of one of its joint ventures, GIMA. GIMA was established in 1994
between AGCO and Renault Agriculture S.A. ( Renault ) to cooperate in the field of purchasing, design and
manufacturing of components for agricultural tractors. Each party has a 50% ownership in the joint venture and had an
original investment of approximately $4.8 million in the joint venture. GIMA has no third-party debt obligations. The
consolidation of GIMA does not have a material impact on the results of operations or financial position of the
Company. The equity interest of Renault is reported as a minority interest, included in Other noncurrent liabilities in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

On May 25, 2006, the Company established AGCO SM Group, a joint venture located in Russia between AGCO and
Sibmashholding, Co. Ltd., for the purpose of distributing Fendt and Valtra branded equipment throughout Russia and
Kazakhstan. The Company has a 51% ownership in the joint venture and had an original investment of less than

$0.1 million in the joint venture. The Company began consolidating the accounts of AGCO SM Group upon its
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establishment.
Revenue Recognition

Sales of equipment and replacement parts are recorded by the Company when title and risks of ownership have been
transferred to an independent dealer, distributor or other customer. Payment terms vary by market
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AGCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
and product with fixed payment schedules on all sales. The terms of sale generally require that a purchase order or
order confirmation accompany all shipments. Title generally passes to the dealer or distributor upon shipment and the
risk of loss upon damage, theft or destruction of the equipment is the responsibility of the dealer, distributor or
third-party carrier. In certain foreign countries, the Company retains a form of title to goods delivered to dealers until
the dealer makes payment so that the Company can recover the goods in the event of customer default on payment.
This occurs as the laws of some foreign countries do not provide for a seller s retention of a security interest in goods
in the same manner as established in the United States Uniform Commercial Code. The only right the Company
retains with respect to the title are those enabling recovery of the goods in the event of customer default on payment.
The dealer or distributor may not return equipment or replacement parts while its contract with the Company is in
force. Replacement parts may be returned only under promotional and annual return programs. Provisions for returns
under these programs are made at the time of sale based on the terms of the program and historical returns experience.
The Company may provide certain sales incentives to dealers and distributors. Provisions for sales incentives are
made at the time of sale for existing incentive programs. These provisions are revised in the event of subsequent
modification to the incentive program.

In the United States and Canada, all equipment sales to dealers are immediately due upon a retail sale of the
equipment by the dealer. If not already paid by the dealer in the United States and Canada, installment payments are
required generally beginning seven to 13 months after shipment with the remaining outstanding equipment balance
generally due within 12 to 18 months of shipment. Interest generally is charged on the outstanding balance six to

12 months after shipment. Sales terms of some highly seasonal products provide for payment and due dates based on a
specified date during the year regardless of the shipment date. Equipment sold to dealers in the United States and
Canada is paid in full on average within 12 months of shipment. Sales of replacement parts generally are payable
within 30 days of shipment with terms for some larger seasonal stock orders generally requiring payment within six
months of shipment.

In other international markets, equipment sales are generally payable in full within 30 to 180 days of shipment.
Payment terms for some highly seasonal products have a specified due date during the year regardless of the shipment
date. Sales of replacement parts generally are payable within 30 to 90 days of shipment with terms for some larger
seasonal stock orders generally payable within six months of shipment.

In certain markets, particularly in North America, there is a time lag, which varies based on the timing and level of
retail demand, between the date the Company records a sale and when the dealer sells the equipment to a retail
customer.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of the Company s foreign subsidiaries are translated into United States currency in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. Assets and
liabilities are translated to United States dollars at period-end exchange rates. Income and expense items are translated
at average rates of exchange prevailing during the period. Translation adjustments are included in Accumulated other
comprehensive loss in stockholders equity. Gains and losses, which result from foreign currency transactions, are
included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates
made by management primarily relate to accounts and notes receivable, inventories,
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AGCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
deferred income tax valuation allowances, valuation of goodwill and intangible assets and certain accrued liabilities,
principally relating to reserves for volume discounts and sales incentives, warranty, product liability and workers
compensation obligations and pensions and postretirement benefits.

Adoption of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 108
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements ( SAB 108 ). SAB 108 requires that public companies utilize a dual-approach to assessing the quantitative
effects of financial misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment,
sometimes referred to as the rollover method, and a balance sheet focused assessment, sometimes referred to as the
iron curtain method. The guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending
after November 15, 2006, or the Company s year ended December 31, 2006. The transition provisions of SAB 108
permit a registrant to adjust opening retained earnings for the cumulative effect of immaterial errors related to prior
years deemed to be material if corrected in the current year.

Historically, the Company has evaluated uncorrected misstatements utilizing the rollover method. Pursuant to the
adoption of SAB 108, the Company identified two uncorrected misstatements that it previously determined were not
material to prior years under the rollover method. Under the iron curtain method, these items were deemed to be
material to the Company s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, and, therefore, the Company
recorded an adjustment to increase its opening retained earnings balance as of January 1, 2006 by approximately
$13.6 million, net of taxes, in accordance with the implementation guidance of SAB 108. The first uncorrected
misstatement related to excess contingency reserve balances of approximately $10.9 million, net of taxes, that had
accumulated over several years. A majority of those excess contingency reserve balances ceased accumulating as of
December 31, 2001. The second uncorrected misstatement of $2.7 million related to the under-capitalization of certain
parts inventory volume and purchase-related variances during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents at December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $273.5 million and $146.3 million, respectively, consisted of overnight
repurchase agreements with financial institutions.

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts and notes receivable arise from the sale of equipment and replacement parts to independent dealers,
distributors or other customers. Payments due under the Company s terms of sale generally range from one to

12 months and are not contingent upon the sale of the equipment by the dealer or distributor to a retail customer.

Under normal circumstances, payment terms are not extended and equipment may not be returned. In certain regions,
including the United States and Canada, the Company is obligated to repurchase equipment and replacement parts

upon cancellation of a dealer or distributor contract. These obligations are required by national, state or provincial

laws and require the Company to repurchase dealer or distributor s unsold inventory, including inventory for which the
receivable has already been paid.
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For sales outside of the United States and Canada, the Company does not normally charge interest on outstanding
receivables with its dealers and distributors. For sales to certain dealers or distributors in the United States and
Canada, where approximately 22% of the Company s net sales were generated in 2006, interest is charged at or above
prime lending rates on outstanding receivable balances after interest-free periods. These interest-free periods vary by
product and generally range from one to 12 months, with the exception of certain seasonal products, which bear
interest after various periods up to 23 months depending on
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AGCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
the time of year of the sale and the dealer s or distributor s sales volume during the preceding year. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, 12.2% and 6.7% of the Company s net sales had maximum interest-free periods ranging from one
to six months and seven to 12 months, respectively. Net sales with maximum interest-free periods ranging from 13 to
23 months were insignificant during 2006. Actual interest-free periods are shorter than above because the equipment
receivable from dealers or distributors in the United States and Canada is due immediately upon sale of the equipment
to a retail customer. Under normal circumstances, interest is not forgiven and interest-free periods are not extended. In
May 2005, the Company completed an agreement to permit transferring, on an ongoing basis, the majority of
interest-bearing receivables in North America to its United States and Canadian retail finance joint ventures. Upon
transfer, the receivables maintain standard payment terms, including required regular principal payments on amounts
outstanding, and interest charges at market rates. Under this arrangement, qualified dealers may obtain additional
financing through the United States and Canadian retail finance joint ventures.

Accounts and notes receivable are shown net of allowances for sales incentive discounts available to dealers and for
doubtful accounts. Cash flows related to the collection of receivables are reported within Cash flows from operating
activities within the Company s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Accounts and notes receivable allowances at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

2006 2005
Sales incentive discounts $ 82.6 $ 92.1
Doubtful accounts 37.7 40.6

$ 1203 $ 1327

The Company transfers certain accounts receivable to various financial institutions primarily under its accounts
receivable securitization facilities (Note 4). The Company records such transfers as sales of accounts receivable when

it is considered to have surrendered control of such receivables under the provisions of SFAS No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a Replacement of SFAS No. 125

( SFAS No. 140 ).

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method. Market is net realizable value
for finished goods and repair and replacement parts. For work in process, production parts and raw materials, market
is replacement cost. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had recorded $84.7 million and $79.7 million,
respectively, as adjustments for surplus and obsolete inventories. These adjustments are reflected within Inventories,

net.

Inventories, net at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

2006 2005
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Finished goods $ 4687
Repair and replacement parts 331.9
Work in process 59.8
Raw materials 204.5
Inventories, net $ 1,064.9

Cash flows related to the sale of inventories are reported within Cash flows from operating activities
Company s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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$ 4773

307.5

63.3

214.4

$ 1,062.5
within the
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AGCO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of ten to 40 years for buildings and improvements,
three to 15 years for machinery and equipment and three to ten years for furniture and fixtures. Expenditures for

maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment, net at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following (in millions):

2006 2005
Land $ 534 $ 473
Buildings and improvements 2594 220.2
Machinery and equipment 768.2 606.3
Furniture and fixtures 142.9 139.0
Gross property, plant and equipment 1,223.9 1,012.8
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (580.0) (451.4)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 6439 $ 5614

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ( SFAS No. 142 ), establishes a method of testing goodwill and
other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis or on an interim basis if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. The Company s
initial assessment and its annual assessments involve determining an estimate of the fair value of the Company s
reporting units in order to evaluate whether an impairment of the current carrying amount of goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets exists. Fair values are derived based on an evaluation of past and expected future
performance of the Company s reporting units. A reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below an
operating segment, for example, a component. A component of an operating segment is a reporting unit if the
component constitutes a business for which discrete financial information is available and the Company s executive
management team regularly reviews the operating results of that component. In addition, the Company combines and
aggregates two or more components of an operating segment as a single reporting unit if the components have similar
economic characteristics. The Company s reportable segments reported under the guidance of SFAS No. 131,
Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, are not its reporting units, with the exception of
its Asia/Pacific geographical segment.

The Company utilized a combination of valuation techniques, including a discounted cash flow approach and a market

multiple approach when making its annual and interim assessments. As stated above, goodwill is tested for
impairment on an annual basis and more often if indications of impairment exist. The results of the Company s
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analyses conducted as of October 1, 2005 and 2004 indicated that no reduction in the carrying amount of goodwill

was required. In 2006, sales and operating income of the Company s Sprayer operations declined significantly as
compared to prior years. In addition, the Company s projections for the Sprayer business did not result in a valuation
sufficient to support the carrying amount of the goodwill balance on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet. As a
result, the Company concluded that the goodwill associated with its Sprayer operations was impaired, and recognized
a write-down of the total amount of recorded goodwill of approximately $171.4 million during the fourth quarter of
2006. The results of the Company s analyses conducted as of October 1, 2006 associated with its other reporting units
indicated that no reduction in their carrying amounts of goodwill was required.
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AGCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Changes in the carrying amount of acquired intangible assets during 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows (in

millions):

Gross carrying amounts:

Balance as of December 31, 2004
Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31, 2005
Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31, 2006

Accumulated amortization:

Balance as of December 31, 2004
Amortization expense
Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31, 2005

Amortization expense
Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31, 2006

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:

Balance as of December 31, 2004

Trademarks
and
Tradenames
$ 32.9

0.2)

32.7

0.2

$ 32.9
Trademarks

and

Tradenames
$ 3.7
1.2
(0.1)

4.8

1.2

$ 6.0

Customer
Relationships

$ 81.7
0.2)

81.5
8.1

$ 89.6

Customer

Relationships

$ 94
8.3
17.7

8.6
2.0

$ 28.3

Patents
and
Technology Total
$ 51.4 $ 166.0
(6.3) (6.7)
45.1 159.3
5.0 13.3
$ 50.1 $ 1726
Patents
and
Technology Total
$ 7.8 $ 209
7.0 16.5
(1.3) (1.4)
13.5 36.0
7.1 16.9
1.9 3.9
$ 22.5 $ 56.8
Trademarks
and
Tradenames
$ 93.1

100



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

Foreign currency translation 4.9)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 88.2
Foreign currency translation 3.9
Balance as of December 31, 2006 $ 92.1

The Company amortizes certain acquired intangible assets primarily on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, which range from three to 30 years. The acquired intangible assets have a weighted average useful life as
follows:

Intangible Asset Weighted-Average Useful Life
Trademarks and tradenames 30 years
Technology and patents 7 years
Customer relationships 10 years

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, acquired intangible asset amortization was $16.9 million,
$16.5 million and $15.8 million, respectively. The Company estimates amortization of existing intangible assets will
be $17.0 million for 2007, $16.9 million for 2008, $16.8 million for 2009, $16.7 million for 2010 and $9.9 million for
2011.
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AGCO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company determined that two of its trademarks have an indefinite useful life.
The Massey Ferguson trademark has been in existence since 1952 and was formed from the merger of Massey-Harris
(established in the 1890 s) and Ferguson (established in the 1930 s). The Massey Ferguson brand is currently sold in
over 140 countries worldwide, making it one of the most widely sold tractor brands in the world. As a result of the
Company s acquisition of Valtra in January 2004 (Note 2), the Company identified the Valtra trademark as an
indefinite-lived asset. The Valtra trademark has been in existence since the late 1990 s, but is a derivative of the
Valmet trademark which has been in existence since 1951. Valtra and Valmet are used interchangeably in the
marketplace today and Valtra is recognized to be the tractor line of the Valmet name. The Valtra brand is currently
sold in approximately 50 countries around the world. Both the Massey Ferguson brand and the Valtra brand are
primary product lines of the Company s business and the Company plans to use these trademarks for an indefinite
period of time. The Company plans to continue to make investments in product development to enhance the value of
these brands into the future. There are no legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors that the
Company is aware of that the Company believes would limit the useful lives of the trademarks. The Massey Ferguson
and Valtra trademark registrations can be renewed at a nominal cost in the countries in which the Company operates.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are
summarized as follows (in millions). See Note 2 for further information regarding adjustments related to income
taxes:

North South Europe/Africa/

America America Middle East Consolidated
Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 165.5 $ 423 $ 123.9 $ 331.7
Acquisitions 68.8 289.6 358.4
Foreign currency translation 9.7 30.8 40.5
Balance as of December 31, 2004 165.5 120.8 4443 730.6
Adjustments related to income taxes 8.5 (3.8) 4.7
Foreign currency translation 16.2 (54.8) (38.6)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 174.0 137.0 385.7 696.7
Adjustments related to income taxes 3.1 13.4 10.3
Impairment of goodwill (170.9) 0.5 (171.4)
Foreign currency translation 12.5 44.0 56.5
Balance as of December 31, 2006 $ 3.1 $ 1464 $ 442.6 $ 592.1

Long-Lived Assets

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with the

102



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

provisions of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ( SFAS No. 144 ).
Under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss is recognized when the undiscounted future cash flows estimated to be
generated by the asset to be held and used are not sufficient to recover the unamortized balance of the asset. An
impairment loss would be recognized based on the difference between the carrying values and estimated fair value.
The estimated fair value is determined based on either the discounted future cash flows or other appropriate fair value
methods with the amount of any such deficiency charged to income in the current year. If the asset being tested for
recoverability was acquired in a business combination, intangible assets resulting from the acquisition that are related
to the asset are included in the assessment. Estimates of future cash flows are based on many factors, including current
operating results, expected market trends and competitive influences. The Company also evaluates the amortization
periods
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
assigned to its intangible assets to determine whether events or changes in circumstances warrant revised estimates of
useful lives. Assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less
estimated costs to sell. During 2004, the Company recorded a write-down of property, plant and equipment to its fair
value of $8.2 million in conjunction with assets related to the rationalization of its Randers, Denmark combine
manufacturing facility.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following (in millions):

2006 2005
Reserve for volume discounts and sales incentives $ 1347 $ 118.2
Warranty reserves 125.3 122.8
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 144.3 126.5
Accrued taxes 106.1 77.6
Other 119.3 116.7

$ 629.7 $ 561.8

Warranty Reserves

The warranty reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following (in
millions):

2006 2005 2004
Balance at beginning of the year $ 1228 $ 135.0 $ 985
Acquisitions 14.9
Accruals for warranties issued during the year 124.5 126.0 111.5
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the year (117.6) (128.1) (97.6)
Foreign currency translation 7.2 (10.1) 7.7
Balance at the end of the year $ 1369 $ 1228 $ 135.0

The Company s agricultural equipment products are generally under warranty against defects in material and
workmanship for a period of one to four years. The Company accrues for future warranty costs at the time of sale
based on historical warranty experience. Approximately $11.6 million of warranty reserves are included in Other
noncurrent liabilities in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006.
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Insurance Reserves

Under the Company s insurance programs, coverage is obtained for significant liability limits as well as those risks
required to be insured by law or contract. It is the policy of the Company to self-insure a portion of certain expected
losses related primarily to workers compensation and comprehensive general, product and vehicle liability. Provisions
for losses expected under these programs are recorded based on the Company s estimates of the aggregate liabilities for
the claims incurred.

Stock Incentive Plans
Stock Compensation Expense

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
( SFAS No. 123R ), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
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Compensation ( SFAS No. 123 ). During 2006, the Company recorded approximately $3.6 million of stock
compensation expense in accordance with SFAS No. 123R. Refer to Note 10 for additional information regarding the
Company s stock incentive plans that were in place during 2006. During 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded
approximately $0.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively, in accordance with APB No. 25. The stock compensation
expense was recorded as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Cost of goods sold $ 0.1 $ $
Selling, general and administrative expenses 35 0.4 0.5
Total stock compensation expense $ 3.6 $ 04 $ 05

Proforma disclosure under SFAS No. 123 for 2005 and 2004

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company accounted for all stock-based compensation awarded under its

former Non-employee Director Incentive Plan (the Director Plan ), Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP ) and Stock

Option Plan (the Option Plan ) as prescribed under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock

Issued to Employees ( APB No. 25 ), and provided the disclosures required under SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure ( SFAS No. 148 ). As discussed further in

Note 10, the Company s LTIP and Director Plan were terminated in December 2005. APB No. 25 required no

recognition of compensation expense for options granted under the Option Plan as long as certain conditions were

met. There was no compensation expense recorded under APB No. 25 for the Option Plan during 2005 and 2004.

APB No. 25 required recognition of compensation expense under the Director Plan and the LTIP at the time the award

was earned. There were no grants under the Option Plan during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

For disclosure purposes only, under SFAS No. 123, the Company estimated the fair value of grants under the

Company s Option Plan using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the Barrier option model for awards granted

under the Director Plan and the LTIP. Based on these models, the weighted average fair value of options granted

under the Option Plan and the weighted average fair value of awards granted under the Director Plan and the LTIP,

were as follows:

2005 2004
Director Plan $ 12.93 $ 17.67
LTIP 15.05 16.21
Option Plan
Weighted average assumptions under Black-Scholes and Barrier option models:
Expected life of awards (years) 4.4 4.7
Risk-free interest rate 4.0% 3.2%

106



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

Expected volatility 41.9% 48.6%
Expected dividend yield

The fair value of the grants and awards are amortized over the vesting period for stock options and awards earned
under the Director Plan and LTIP and over the performance period for unearned awards under the Director Plan and

LTIP. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per common
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share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148 (in
millions, except per share data):

Years Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Net income, as reported $ 316 $ 158.8
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of
related tax effects 0.2 0.3
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (17.6) (7.7)
Pro forma net income $ 142 $ 1514
Earnings per share:
Basic as reported $ 0.35 $ 1.84
Basic pro forma $ 0.16 $ 176
Diluted as reported $ 0.35 $ 171
Diluted pro forma $ 0.16 $ 1.63

The 2004 diluted as reported and pro forma earnings per share include the impact of the Company s 13/4%
contingently convertible senior subordinated notes. The 2005 pro forma earnings per share include the impact of the
cancellation of awards under the Director Plan and LTIP in December 2005 (Note 10).

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses are expensed as incurred and are included in engineering expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Adpvertising Costs
The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs are normally expensed at the
time the revenue is earned. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled

approximately $36.0 million, $35.8 million and $37.2 million, respectively.

Shipping and Handling Expenses
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All shipping and handling fees charged to customers are included as a component of net sales. Shipping and handling
costs are included as a part of cost of goods sold, with the exception of certain handling costs included in selling,
general and administrative expenses in the amount of $19.8 million, $18.6 million and $16.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Interest expense $ 714 $ 96.0 $ 923
Interest income (16.2) (16.0) (15.3)

$ 552 $ 800 $ 77.0
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method, as prescribed under the provisions of

SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( SFAS No. 109 ). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing

assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a

change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The computation, presentation and disclosure requirements for earnings (loss) per share are presented in accordance
with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income
(loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings (loss) per
common share assumes exercise of outstanding stock options, vesting of restricted stock and the appreciation of the
excess conversion value of the contingently convertible senior subordinated notes using the treasury stock method

when the effects of such assumptions are dilutive.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) reached a consensus on EITF Issue

No. 04-08, Accounting Issues Related to Certain Features of Contingently Convertible Debt and the Effect on Diluted
Earnings per Share ( EITF 04-08 ). EITF 04-08 requires that shares subject to issuance from contingently convertible
debt should be included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share using the if-converted method regardless of
whether a market price trigger has been met. The Company adopted EITF 04-08 during the fourth quarter of 2004 and
included approximately 9.0 million additional shares of common stock that may have been issued upon conversion of
the Company s former 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes in its diluted earnings per share calculation for the
year ended December 31, 2004 and through the six months ended June 30, 2005. In addition, diluted earnings per
share prior to the fourth quarter of 2004 was required to be restated for each period that the convertible debt was
outstanding. The Company s 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes were issued on December 23, 2003. As the
Company is not benefiting losses in the United States for tax purposes, the interest expense associated with the
convertible senior subordinated notes included in the diluted earnings per share calculation does not reflect a tax
benefit. On June 29, 2005, the Company completed an exchange of its $201.3 million aggregate principal amount of
13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes. The Company exchanged its existing convertible notes for new notes

that provide for (i) the settlement upon conversion in cash up to the principal amount of the converted new notes with
any excess conversion value settled in shares of the Company s common stock, and (ii) the conversion rate to be
increased under certain circumstances if the new notes are converted in connection with certain change of control
transactions occurring prior to December 10, 2010, but otherwise are substantially the same as the old notes. The
impact of the exchange resulted in a reduction in the diluted weighted average shares outstanding of approximately

9.0 million shares on a prospective basis. Dilution of weighted shares outstanding subsequent to the exchange depends
on the Company s stock price once the market price trigger or other specified conversion circumstances are met for the
excess conversion value using the treasury stock method (Note 7). The Company s 11/4% convertible senior
subordinated notes due 2036, issued in December of 2006, will also potentially impact the dilution of weighted shares
outstanding for the excess conversion value using the treasury stock method (Note 7). A reconciliation of net (loss)
income and weighted average common
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shares outstanding for purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is as follows (in millions,
except per share data):

2006 2005 2004
Basic net (loss) income per share:
Net (loss) income $ 649 $ 316 $ 158.8
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 90.8 90.4 86.2
Basic net (loss) income per share $ (0.71) $ 0.35 $ 184
Diluted net (loss) income per share:
Net (loss) income $ 649) $ 31.6 $ 158.8
After-tax interest expense on contingently convertible senior subordinated notes 4.6
Net (loss) income for purposes of determining dilutive net (loss) income per
share $ 649 $ 316 $ 163.4
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 90.8 90.4 86.2
Dilutive stock options and restricted stock awards 0.3 0.4
Weighted average assumed conversion of contingently convertible senior
subordinated notes 9.0
Weighted average number of common and common share equivalents
outstanding for purposes of computing diluted (loss) earnings per share 90.8 90.7 95.6
Diluted net (loss) income per share $ (0.71) $ 0.35 $ 171

Stock options and stock-settled stock appreciation rights ( SSARs ) to purchase 0.1 million shares for the year ended
December 31, 2006, and stock options to purchase 0.5 million and 0.5 million shares for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the calculation of weighted average
common and common equivalent shares outstanding because the option exercise prices were higher than the average
market price of the Company s common stock during the related period. In addition, the weighted average common
shares outstanding for purposes of computing diluted net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 do not
include the assumed conversion of the Company s 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes or the impact of
dilutive stock options and SSARs, as the impact would have been dilutive. The number of shares excluded from the
weighted average common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately
1.2 million shares and 4.4 million shares, respectively.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company reports comprehensive income (loss), defined as the total of net income (loss) and all other non-owner
changes in equity and the components thereof in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity. The
components of other comprehensive income (loss) and the related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 are as follows (in millions):

Additional minimum pension liability
Unrealized gain on derivatives

Unrealized loss on derivatives held by affiliates
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total components of other comprehensive income

Additional minimum pension liability
Unrealized gain on derivatives held by affiliates
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total components of other comprehensive loss

Additional minimum pension liability
Unrealized gain on derivatives held by affiliates
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total components of other comprehensive income

Before-tax
Amount
$ 7.8
0.1
(2.0)
136.7
$ 1426
Before-tax
Amount
$ (3.2
4.7
(39.6)
$ (38.1)
Before-tax
Amount
$ (274
6.3
69.3
$ 482

2006
Income
Taxes

$ (1.2

$ (1.2

2005
Income
Taxes

$ 04
(1.9

$ (L15)

2004
Income
Taxes

$ 85
(2.5)

$ 6.0

After-tax
Amount
$ 6.6
0.1
(2.0)
136.7
$ 1414
After-tax
Amount
$ (2.8)
2.8
(39.6)
$ (39.6)
After-tax
Amount
$ (189
3.8
69.3
$ 54.2
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Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets for Cash and cash equivalents,

Accounts and notes receivable and Accounts payable approximate fair value due to the immediate or short-term
maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amount of long-term debt under the Company s credit facility
(Note 7) approximates fair value based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with
similar terms and average maturities. At December 31, 2006, the estimated fair values of the Company s 67/8% senior
subordinated notes, 13/4% convertible notes (Note 7) and 11/4% convertible notes (Note 7), based on their listed
market values, were $274.2 million, $307.3 million and $199.5 million, respectively, compared to their carrying
values of $264.0 million, $201.3 million and $201.3 million, respectively. At December 31, 2005, the estimated fair
values of the Company s 67/8% senior subordinated notes and 13/4% convertible notes, based on their listed market
values, were $246.4 million and $187.2 million, respectively, compared to their carrying values of $237.0 million and
$201.3 million, respectively.

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of certain
receivables, payables and committed purchases and sales. These contracts are for periods consistent with the exposure

being hedged and generally have maturities of one year or less. At December 31, 2006 and
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2005, the Company had foreign currency forward contracts outstanding with gross notional amounts of $356.5 million
and $255.3 million, respectively. The Company had an unrealized gain of $1.2 million and an unrealized loss of
$0.3 million on foreign currency forward contracts at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which are reflected
in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. These foreign currency forward contracts do not subject the
Company s results of operations to risk due to exchange rate fluctuations because gains and losses on these contracts
generally offset gains and losses on the exposure being hedged. The Company does not enter into any foreign
currency forward contracts for speculative trading purposes.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company designated certain foreign currency option contracts as cash flow
hedges of expected sales. The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on these cash flow hedges were
recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into net sales as the sales were recognized.
These amounts offset the effect of the changes in foreign exchange rates on the related sale transactions. The amount
of the gain recorded in other comprehensive income that was reclassified to net sales during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was approximately $4.0 million on an after-tax basis. These contracts all expired prior to
December 31, 2006.

The notional amounts of foreign exchange forward contracts do not represent amounts exchanged by the parties and
therefore are not a measure of the Company s risk. The amounts exchanged are calculated on the basis of the notional
amounts and other terms of the contracts. The credit and market risks under these contracts are not considered to be
significant.

Accounting Changes

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, ( SFAS No. 159 ). SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
liabilities at fair value and to provide additional information that will help investors and other users of financial
statements to understand more easily the effect on earnings of the company s choice to use fair value. It also requires
companies to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the company has chosen to use fair value

on the face of the balance sheet. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 159 on January 1, 2008 and is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 159 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB 108. SAB 108 requires that public companies utilize a dual-approach to
assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income statement
focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual
financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. See Adoption of SEC Staff Accounting

Bulletin No. 108 for further information.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R) ( SFAS No. 158 ). SFAS No. 158
requires an employer that sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to (i) recognize the overfunded

or underfunded status of a benefit plan in its statement of financial position, (ii) recognize as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but

are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for
Pensions , or SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions , (iii) measure
defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer s fiscal year-end, and (iv) disclose in the
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notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal
year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition assets or
obligations. SFAS No. 158 is effective for the Company s year ended December 31, 2006. The adoption of

SFAS No. 158 had a $26.8 million impact to the Company s consolidated accumulated other
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comprehensive loss balance as of December 31, 2006, related to its underfunded defined benefit pension and
retirement health care plans, primarily in the United Kingdom and the United States. See Note 8 for a discussion of
the Company s defined benefit pension and postretirement health care benefit plans.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS No. 157 ). SFAS No. 157
establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to guidance regarding U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about
such fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 157 on its 2008 consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ( FSP ) AUG AIR-1 Accounting for Planned Major
Maintenance Activities ( FSP AUG AIR-1 ). FSP AUG AIR-1 amends the guidance on the accounting for planned
major maintenance activities; specifically it precludes the use of the previously acceptable accrue in advance method.
FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The implementation of this standard

is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations, as
the Company does not employ the accrue in advance method.

In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements, ( EITF 06-4 ), which
requires the application of the provisions of SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions ( SFAS No. 106 ), to endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements. SFAS No. 106 would require
the Company to recognize a liability for the discounted future benefit obligation that the Company will have to pay

upon the death of the underlying insured employee. An endorsement-type arrangement generally exists when the
Company owns and controls all incidents of ownership of the underlying policies. EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal

years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company may have certain policies subject to the provisions of this

new pronouncement, but does not believe the adoption of EITF 06-4 will have a material impact on its consolidated
results of operations or financial position during its 2008 fiscal year.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ( FIN 48 ). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and disclosure. FIN 48 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a

material effect on the Company s 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 140 ( SFAS No. 156 ). SFAS No. 156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or liability
each time it undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract in specified
situations. Such servicing assets or liabilities would be initially measured at fair value, if practicable, and subsequently
measured at amortized value or fair value based upon an election of the reporting entity. SFAS No. 156 also specifies
certain financial statement presentations and disclosures in connection with servicing assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006 and may be adopted earlier but only if

the adoption is in the first quarter of the fiscal year. The adoption of SFAS No. 156 is not expected to have a material
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effect on the Company s 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (that is,

71

118



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

AGCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Gross versus Net Presentation) ( EITF 06-3 ), which allows companies to adopt a policy of presenting taxes in the
income statement on either a gross or net basis. Taxes within the scope of this EITF would include taxes that are
imposed on a revenue transaction between a seller and a customer; for example, sales taxes, use taxes, value-added
taxes and some types of excise taxes. EITF 06-3 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2006. EITF 06-3 will not impact the method for recording and reporting these sales taxes in the
Company s consolidated results of operations or financial position as the Company s policy is to exclude all such taxes
from net sales and present such taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on a net basis.

In April 2005, the SEC adopted a new rule that changed the adoption date of SFAS No. 123R. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006, and is using the modified prospective method of adoption. The application
of the expensing provisions of SFAS No. 123R in 2006 resulted in pre-tax expense of approximately $3.6 million. See
Notes 1 and 10 where the Company s stock compensation plans are discussed.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs-An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4

( SFAS No. 151 ). SFAS No. 151 amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory
Pricing ( ARB No. 43 ), to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs,
and wasted material (spoilage). Among other provisions, the new rule requires that items such as idle facility expense,
excessive spoilage, double freight and rehandling costs be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether
they meet the criterion of so abnormal as stated in ARB No. 43. Additionally, SFAS No. 151 requires that the
allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production
facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company s adoption of

SFAS No. 151 in 2006 did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated results of operations or financial
position.

2. Acquisitions

On January 5, 2004, the Company acquired the Valtra tractor and diesel engine operations of Kone Corporation, a
Finnish company, for 604.6 million, net of approximately 21.4 million cash acquired (or approximately $760 million,
net). Valtra is a global tractor and off-road engine manufacturer in the Nordic region of Europe and Latin America.
The acquisition of Valtra provided the Company with the opportunity to expand its business in significant global
markets by utilizing Valtra s technology and productivity leadership in the agricultural equipment market. The results
of operations for the Valtra acquisition have been included in the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements as of
and from the date of acquisition. The Company completed the initial funding of the cash purchase price of Valtra
through the issuance of $201.3 million principal amount of 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes in December
2003, funds borrowed under revolving credit and term loan facilities that were entered into January 5, 2004, and
$100.0 million borrowed under an interim bridge facility that was also closed on January 5, 2004. The interim bridge
facility was subsequently repaid in April 2004 upon completion of a common stock offering (Note 9).
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The Valtra acquisition was accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and accordingly,
the Company allocated the purchase price to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their fair values

as of the acquisition date. The following table presents the allocation of the acquisition cost, including professional
fees and other related acquisition costs, to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based upon their fair value:

(in millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 27.1
Accounts receivable 146.2
Inventories 155.5
Other current and noncurrent assets 12.5
Property, plant and equipment 175.0
Intangible assets 156.9
Goodwill 358.4
Total assets acquired 1,031.6
Accounts payable 77.9
Accrued expenses 78.1
Other current liabilities 24.3
Pension and postretirement benefits 19.6
Other noncurrent liabilities 342
Total liabilities assumed 234.1
Net assets acquired $ 797.5

The net assets acquired included transaction costs incurred during 2004.

The Company recorded approximately $358.4 million of goodwill and approximately $156.9 million of other
identifiable intangible assets as follows (in millions):

Weighted-Average

Intangible Asset Amount Useful Life
Tradename $ 1.0 10 years
Tradename 36.9 Indefinite
Technology and patents 46.7 7 years
Customer relationships 72.3 10 years
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The acquired intangible assets have a weighted average useful life of approximately nine years.

At the date of acquisition, there were two components of tax-deductible goodwill specifically related to the operations
of Valtra Finland. The first component of tax deductible goodwill of approximately $201.1 million relates to goodwill
for financial reporting purposes, and this asset will generate deferred income taxes in the future as the asset is

amortized for income tax purposes. The second component of tax-deductible goodwill of approximately

$157.7 million relates to tax deductible goodwill in excess of goodwill for financial reporting purposes. The tax
benefits associated with this excess will be applied to reduce the amount of goodwill for financial reporting purposes

in the future, if and when such tax benefits are realized for income tax return purposes. During 2006, the Company
recorded additional goodwill of approximately 17.2 million (or approximately $22.7 million as of December 31, 2006)
associated with the reallocation of certain intangible assets to goodwill for income tax purposes in Finland as well as
additional pre-acquisition income tax
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contingencies identified at a Valtra European sales office. During 2006 and 2005, the Company realized
approximately $9.3 million and $3.8 million, respectively, in tax benefits associated with the excess tax basis
deductible goodwill, thus resulting in reductions of goodwill for financial reporting purposes.

At the date of acquisition, the Company identified certain income tax contingencies associated with the operations of
Valtra Brazil that related to pre-acquisition tax years. During 2006, it was determined that the identified contingencies
no longer existed. The Company therefore recognized a reduction in goodwill of approximately $3.1 million
associated with the reversal of such contingent liabilities.

3. Restructuring and Other Infrequent Expenses

The Company recorded restructuring and other infrequent expenses of $1.0 million, $0.0 million and $0.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The charges in 2006 include severance costs
associated with the rationalization of certain parts, sales, marketing and administrative functions in the United
Kingdom and Germany, as well as the rationalization of certain Valtra European sales offices located in Denmark,
Norway, Germany and the United Kingdom. The net charges in 2005 include a $1.5 million gain on the sale of
property, plant and equipment related to the completion of auctions of machinery and equipment associated with the
rationalization of the Randers, Denmark combine manufacturing operations. The gain was offset by $0.8 million of
employee retention payments and facility closure costs incurred associated with the Randers rationalization, as well as
$0.7 million of severance and other facility closure costs related to the rationalization of the Company s Finnish tractor
manufacturing, sales and parts operations. The Company did not record an income tax benefit or provision associated
with the charges or gain relating to the Randers rationalization during 2005. The 2004 net charges consisted of an
$8.2 million pre-tax write-down of property, plant and equipment associated with the Randers rationalization,

$3.3 million of severance and facility closure costs associated with the Randers rationalization, a $1.4 million charge
associated with the rationalization of certain administrative functions within the Company s Finnish tractor
manufacturing facility, as well as $0.5 million of charges associated with various rationalization initiatives in Europe
and the United States initiated in 2002, 2003 and 2004. These charges were offset by gains on the sale of the
Company s Coventry, England manufacturing facility and related machinery and equipment of $8.3 million,

$0.9 million of restructuring reserve reversals related to the Coventry closure and a reversal of $4.1 million of the
previously established provision related to the Company s U.K. pension plan. The Company did not record an income
tax benefit associated with the charges relating to the Randers rationalization during 2004, when the plan was
announced.

Coventry, United Kingdom European headquarters rationalization

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company initiated the restructuring of certain parts, sales, marketing and
administrative functions within its Coventry, United Kingdom European headquarters, resulting in the termination of
approximately 13 employees. The Company recorded severance costs of approximately $0.4 million associated with
the restructuring during 2006. All employees had been terminated and all severance costs had been paid as of

December 31, 2006.

German sales office rationalizations
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During the third quarter of 2006, the Company announced the closure of two of its sales offices located in Germany,
one of which was a Valtra sales office. The closures will result in the termination of approximately 16 employees. The
Company recorded severance costs of approximately $0.5 million associated with the closures during 2006. None of
the severance costs had been paid as of December 31, 2006 and none of the employees had been terminated. The
severance costs and related terminations are expected to be paid and completed during 2007.
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Valtra European sales office rationalizations

During the second quarter of 2005, the Company announced that it was changing its distribution arrangements for its
Valtra and Fendt products in Scandinavia by entering into a distribution agreement with a third-party distributor to
distribute Valtra and Fendt equipment in Sweden and Valtra equipment in Norway and Denmark. As a result of this
agreement and the decision to close other Valtra European sales offices, the Company initiated the restructuring and
closure of its Valtra sales offices located in the United Kingdom, Spain, Denmark and Norway, resulting in the
termination of approximately 24 employees. The Danish and Norwegian sales offices were transferred to the
third-party Scandinavian equipment distributor in October 2005, which included the transfer of certain employees,
assets and lease and supplier contracts. The Company recorded severance costs, asset write-downs and other facility
closure costs of approximately $0.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, related to these closures
during 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company completed the sale of property, plant and equipment
associated with the sales offices in the United Kingdom and Norway and recorded a gain of approximately

$0.2 million, which was reflected within Restructuring and other infrequent expenses within the Company s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company paid approximately $0.2 million and $0.4 million of severance
and other facility closure costs during 2005 and 2006, respectively. During the first quarter of 2006, the Company
recorded an additional $0.1 million of severance costs related to these closures. As of December 31, 2006, all of the
employees had been terminated and all severance and other facility closure costs had been paid.

Valtra Finland administrative and European parts rationalizations

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company initiated the restructuring of certain administrative functions within
its Finnish operations, resulting in the termination of approximately 58 employees. During 2004, the Company
recorded severance costs of approximately $1.4 million associated with this rationalization. The Company recorded an
additional $0.1 million of severance costs during the first quarter of 2005 associated with this rationalization and
incurred and paid approximately $0.8 million of severance costs during 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the
Company reversed $0.1 million of previously established provisions related to severance costs as severance claims
were finalized during the quarter. As of March 31, 2006, all of the 58 employees had been terminated. The

$0.6 million of severance payments accrued at December 31, 2006 are expected to be paid through 2009. In addition,
during 2005, we incurred and expensed approximately $0.3 million of contract termination costs associated with the
rationalization of our Valtra European parts distribution operations.
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Randers, Denmark Rationalization

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company announced and initiated a plan related to the restructuring of its
European combine manufacturing operations located in Randers, Denmark, to include the elimination of the facility s
component manufacturing operations, as well as the rationalization of the combine model range to be assembled in
Randers. The restructuring plan will reduce the cost and complexity of the Randers manufacturing operations, by
simplifying the model range. The Company now outsources manufacturing of the majority of parts and components to
suppliers and has retained critical key assembly operations at the Randers facility. Component manufacturing
operations ceased in February 2005. The components of the restructuring expenses are summarized in the following
table (in millions):

Write-down

of
Property, Employee Facility
Plant and Employee Retention Closure
Equipment  Severance  Payments Costs Total

2004 provision $ 82  § .13 21 $ 01  $ 115
Less: Non-cash expense 8.2 8.2
Cash expense 1.1 2.1 0.1 33
2004 cash activity (0.2) 0.4) (0.6)
Foreign currency translation 0.1 0.1
Balances as of December 31, 2004 0.9 1.8 0.1 2.8
2005 provision 0.6 0.3 0.9
2005 provision reversal 0.1 0.1
2005 cash activity (0.9) (2.1) 0.4) (3.4)
Foreign currency translation (0.2) 0.2)
Balances as of December 31, 2005 $ $ $ $ $

The write-down of certain property, plant and equipment within the component manufacturing operation represents
the impairment of real estate and machinery and equipment resulting from the restructuring, as the rationalization
eliminated a majority of the square footage utilized in the facility. The impairment charge was based upon the
estimated fair value of the assets compared to their carrying value. The estimated fair value of the property, plant and
equipment was based on current conditions in the market. The carrying value of the property, plant and equipment
was approximately $11.6 million before the $8.2 million impairment charge. The machinery, equipment and tooling
was disposed of or sold. A portion of the buildings, land and improvements are being marketed for sale. The impaired
property, plant and equipment associated with the Randers rationalization was reported within the Company s
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Europe/Africa/Middle East segment. During the second quarter of 2005, the Company completed auctions of
remaining machinery and equipment and recorded a gain of approximately $1.5 million associated with such actions.
The gain was reflected within Restructuring and other infrequent expenses within the Company s Consolidated
Statements of Operations. The severance costs relate to the termination of 298 employees. As of December 31, 2005,
all of the 298 employees had been terminated. The employee retention payments relate to incentives paid to Randers
employees who remained employed until certain future termination dates and were accrued over the term of the
retention period. During the third quarter of 2005, the Company reversed $0.1 million of previously established
provisions related to retention payments as employee retention claims were finalized during the quarter. The facility
closure costs included certain noncancelable operating lease terminations and other facility exit costs. The Company
also recorded a write-down of approximately $3.7 million of inventory, reflected in costs of goods sold, during 2004,
related to inventory that was identified as obsolete as a result of the rationalization.
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Coventry Rationalization

During the second quarter of 2002, the Company announced and initiated a restructuring plan related to the closure of
its tractor manufacturing facility in Coventry, England and the relocation of existing production at Coventry to the
Company s Beauvais, France and Canoas, Brazil manufacturing facilities. The closure of this facility was consistent
with the Company s strategy to reduce excess manufacturing capacity. This particular facility manufactured transaxles
and assembled tractors in the range of 50 to 110 horsepower. The trend towards higher horsepower tractors resulting
from the consolidation of farms had caused this product segment of the industry to decline over recent years, which
negatively impacted the facility s utilization. The components of the restructuring expenses incurred and paid during
2004 and 2005 are summarized in the following table (in millions):

Employee Facility

Employee Retention Closure

Severance Payments Costs Total
Balances as of December 31, 2003 $ 0.5 $ 2.0 $ 1.6 $ 4.1
2004 provision reversal 0.9) 0.5 0.9
2004 cash activity 0.5) (1.4) (0.8) 2.7)
Foreign currency translation 0.1 0.1 0.2
Balances as of December 31, 2004 0.3 0.4 0.7
2005 cash activity 0.3) 0.4) 0.7)
Balances as of December 31, 2005 $ $ $ $

On January 30, 2004, the Company sold the land, buildings and improvements of the Coventry facility for

approximately $41.0 million, and as a result of that sale, recognized a net gain, after selling costs, of approximately

$6.9 million. This gain was reflected in Restructuring and other infrequent expenses in the Company s Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. The Company leased part of the facility back from

the buyers through November 2006. The Company received approximately $34.4 million of the sale proceeds on

January 30, 2004 and the remaining $6.6 million on January 28, 2005. In addition, the Company completed the

auctions of the remaining machinery and equipment, as well as finalized the sale of the facility (and associated selling
costs) during the second quarter of 2004, and recorded an additional $1.4 million in net gains related to such actions.

The net gains were reflected in Restructuring and other infrequent expenses in the Company s Consolidated Statements
of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The employee severance costs relate to the termination of 1,049 employees. All employees had been terminated as of

December 31, 2004. The employee retention payments relate to incentives paid to Coventry employees who remained
employed until certain future termination dates and were accrued over the term of the retention period. The facility
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closure costs include certain noncancelable operating lease terminations and other facility exit costs. During 2004, the
Company reversed approximately $0.9 million of provisions related to the restructuring that had been previously
established. The reversals were necessary to adequately reflect more accurate estimates of remaining obligations
related to retention payments, lease termination payouts and other exit costs, as some employees had been redeployed
or had been terminated earlier than estimated, and as some supplier and rental contracts had been finalized and
terminated earlier than anticipated.

During 2004, Restructuring and other infrequent expenses in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations
included a credit of approximately £2.5 million (or approximately $4.1 million) due to a reduction in a previously
established reserve for benefits under the Company s U.K. pension plan. This reduction reflects a reassessment, based
upon an analysis of prior employee terminations in light of a U.K.
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Court of Appeals interpretation of the Company s U.K. pension plan, of the number of former employees entitled to
receive benefits.

DeKalb Rationalization

In March 2003, the Company announced the closure of the Challenger track tractor facility located in DeKalb, Illinois
and the relocation of production to its facility in Jackson, Minnesota. Production at the DeKalb facility ceased in May
2003 and was relocated and resumed in the Minnesota facility in June 2003. The DeKalb plant assembled Challenger
track tractors in the range of 235 to 500 horsepower. After a review of cost reduction alternatives, it was determined
that current and future production levels at that time were not sufficient to support a stand-alone track tractor site.

The Company sold the DeKalb facility real estate during the fourth quarter of 2004, for approximately $3.0 million
before associated selling costs, and recorded a net loss on the sale of the facilities of approximately $0.1 million. The
loss was reflected in Restructuring and other infrequent expenses in the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

2002, 2003 and 2004 Functional Rationalizations

During 2002 through 2004, the Company initiated several rationalization plans and recorded restructuring and other
infrequent expenses in total of approximately $5.0 million during 2002, 2003 and 2004. The expenses primarily
related to severance costs and certain lease termination and other exit costs associated with the rationalization of the
Company s European engineering and marketing personnel, certain components of the Company s German
manufacturing facilities located in Kempten and Marktoberdorf, Germany, the rationalization of the Company s
European combine engineering operations and the closure and consolidation of the Company s Valtra United States
and Canadian sales offices into its existing United States and Canadian sales organizations. The Company did not
record any costs associated with these rationalizations during 2005 and 2006. Of the $5.0 million of total costs,
approximately $4.0 million relate to severance costs associated with the termination of approximately 215 employees
in total. At December 31, 2005, all accrued expenses had been incurred and paid.

4. Accounts Receivable Securitization

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had accounts receivable securitization facilities in the United States,
Canada, and Europe totaling approximately $495.2 million and $480.3 million, respectively. In October 2006, the
Company s European securitization was renewed and restructured so that wholesale receivables are sold through a
qualifying special purpose entity (a QSPE ). In addition, the new securitization eliminates the requirement to maintain
certain debt rating levels from Standard and Poor s and Moody s Investor Services that was applicable to the previous
securitization facility. During 2004, the Company amended certain provisions of its United States and Canadian
receivable securitization facilities including the expansion of the facilities by an additional $30.0 million and

$10.0 million, respectively, and to eliminate the requirement to maintain certain debt rating levels from Standard and
Poor s and Moody s Investor Services. Outstanding funding under these facilities totaled approximately $429.6 million
at December 31, 2006 and $462.7 million at December 31, 2005. The funded balance has the effect of reducing
accounts receivable and short-term liabilities by the same amount. During 2006, the Company did not fully utilize its
securitization facility in the United States due to the Company s efforts to reduce dealer inventory levels, which
resulted in a reduction in wholesale accounts receivable available for sale.
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Under these facilities, wholesale accounts receivable are sold on a revolving basis to commercial paper conduits
through a wholly-owned special purpose U.S. subsidiary and a QSPE in the United Kingdom. The Company has
reviewed its accounting for its securitization facilities and its wholly-owned special purpose in the United States and
its QSPE in the United Kingdom in accordance with SFAS No. 140 and FIN 46R. In the
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United States, due to the fact that the receivables sold to the commercial paper conduits are an insignificant portion of
the conduits total asset portfolios and such receivables are not siloed, consolidation is not appropriate under FIN 46R,
as the Company does not absorb a majority of losses under such transactions. In Europe, the commercial paper
conduit that purchases a majority of the receivables is deemed to be the majority beneficial interest holder of the
QSPE, and thus consolidation by the Company is not appropriate under FIN 46R, as the Company does not absorb a
majority of losses under such transactions. In addition, these facilities are accounted for as off-balance sheet
transactions in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 140.

Losses on sales of receivables primarily from securitization facilities were $29.9 million in 2006, $22.4 million in

2005 and $15.6 million in 2004, and are included in other expense, net in the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations. The losses are determined by calculating the estimated present value of receivables sold compared to their
carrying amount. The present value is based on historical collection experience and a discount rate representing the
spread over LIBOR as prescribed under the terms of the agreements. Other information related to these facilities and
assumptions used in loss calculations are summarized below (dollar amounts in millions):

United States Canada Europe Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Unpaid balance of
receivables sold at
December 31 $ 266.6 $ 3334 $ 80.6 $ 9438 $ 1428 $ 1423 $ 4900 $ 5705

Retained interest
in receivables sold $ 26.2 $ 533 $ 20.6 $ 348 $ 13.6 $ 197 $ 604 $ 107.8
Credit losses on

receivablessold $ 2.0 $ 34 $ 13 $ 09 $ $ $ 33 $ 43
Average

liquidation period

(months) 3.1 3.7 3.1 3.7 2.5 2.1

Discount rate 5.7% 4.0% 4.7% 3.5% 3.4% 3.0%

The Company continues to service the sold receivables and maintains a retained interest in the receivables. No
servicing asset or liability has been recorded since the estimated fair value of the servicing of the receivables
approximates the servicing income. The retained interest in the receivables sold is included in the caption Accounts
and notes receivable, net in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company s risk of loss under the
securitization facilities is limited to a portion of the unfunded balance of receivables sold which is approximately 15%
of the funded amount. The Company maintains reserves for the portion of the residual interest it estimates is
uncollectible. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately $0.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively, of the
unpaid balance of receivables sold was past due 60 days or more. The fair value of the retained interest is
approximately $59.3 million and $105.9 million, respectively, compared to the carrying amount of $60.4 million and
$107.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and is based on the present value of the receivables
calculated in a method consistent with the losses on sales of receivables discussed above. Assuming a 10% and 20%
increase in the average liquidation period, the fair value of the residual interest would decline by $0.1 million and
$0.2 million, respectively. Assuming a 10% and 20% increase in the discount rate, the fair value of the residual
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interest would decline by $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. For 2006, the Company received approximately
$1,162.4 million from sales of receivables and $5.2 million for servicing fees. For 2005, the Company received
$1,272.4 million from sales of receivables and $6.4 million for servicing fees. For 2004, the Company received
approximately $1,270.2 million from sales of receivables and $5.6 million for servicing fees.

In May 2005, the Company completed an agreement to permit transferring, on an ongoing basis, the majority of its
wholesale interest-bearing receivables in North America to AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd., its
United States and Canadian retail finance joint ventures. The Company has a 49% ownership interest in these joint
ventures. The transfer of the receivables is without recourse to the Company, and the Company continues to service
the receivables. The Company does not maintain any direct retained interest in the receivables. No servicing asset or
liability has been recorded since the estimated fair value of
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the servicing of the receivables approximates servicing income. The initial transfer of the wholesale interest-bearing
receivables resulted in net proceeds of approximately $94 million, which were used to redeem the Company s
$250 million 91/2% senior notes (Note 7). As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the balance of interest-bearing
receivables transferred to AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd. under this agreement was
approximately $124.1 million and $109.9 million, respectively.

5. Investments in Affiliates

Investments in affiliates as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

2006 2005
Retail finance joint ventures $ 1755 $ 1504
Manufacturing joint venture 33 2.6
Other joint ventures 12.8 11.7

$ 191.6 $ 164.7

The manufacturing joint venture as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of a joint venture with a third party
manufacturer to produce engines in South America. The other joint ventures represent minority investments in farm
equipment manufacturers, distributors and licensees.

The Company s equity in net earnings of affiliates for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Retail finance joint ventures $ 25.8 $ 22.0 $ 18.3
Manufacturing and other joint ventures 2.0 0.6 2.3

$ 278 $ 226 $ 20.6

Summarized combined financial information of the Company s retail finance joint ventures as of December 31, 2006
and 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as follows (in millions):

As of December 31,
2006 2005
Total assets $ 3,642.0 $ 3,046.6
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Total liabilities 3,283.6 2,739.4
Partners equity 358.4 307.2
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Revenues $ 2322 $ 187.3 $ 175.1
Costs 152.3 114.0 113.9
Income before income taxes $ 799 $ 733 $ 612

The majority of the assets of the Company s retail finance joint ventures represent finance receivables. The majority of
the liabilities represent notes payable and accrued interest. Under the various joint venture agreements, Rabobank or

its affiliates are obligated to provide financing to the joint venture companies. The Company does not guarantee the
debt obligations of the retail finance joint ventures (Note 13).
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The portion of the Company s retained earnings balance which represents undistributed retained earnings of equity
method investees is approximately $105.4 million as of December 31, 2006.
6. Income Taxes

The sources of (loss) income before income taxes and equity in net earnings of affiliates were as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
United States $ 267.1) $ (504) $ (18.6)
Foreign 2479 210.5 243.0
(Loss) income before income taxes and equity in net earnings of affiliates $ (19.2) $ 160.1 $ 2244

The provision for income taxes by location of the taxing jurisdiction for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 consisted of the following (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Current:
United States:
Federal $ 6.1 $ G4 $ 3.9
State 0.1
Foreign 69.0 48.7 75.5
62.9 43.2 71.7
Deferred:
United States:
Federal 3.9 90.8 0.6
State
Foreign 14.5 17.1 13.9
10.6 107.9 14.5

$ 735 $ 151.1 $ 86.2

At December 31, 2006, the Company s foreign subsidiaries had approximately $1.4 billion of undistributed earnings.
These earnings are considered to be indefinitely invested, and, accordingly, no income taxes have been provided on
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these earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred taxes on these earnings is not practical;
however, unrecognized foreign tax credits would be available to reduce a portion of the tax liability.

On October 22, 2004, the United States enacted the American Jobs Creation Act ( AJCA ) of 2004. The AJCA provides
multi-national companies an election to deduct from taxable income 85% of eligible dividends repatriated from

foreign subsidiaries. The AJCA generally allowed companies to take advantage of this special deduction from

November 2004 through the end of calendar year 2005. The Company did not propose a qualifying plan of

repatriation for 2005 or 2004.

81

136



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

AGCO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A reconciliation of income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory income tax rate (35%) to the

provision for income taxes reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (in millions):

2006 2005 2004

(Benefit) provision for income taxes at United States federal statutory rate of

35% $ 67 $ 560 $ 785
State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit (3.8) (0.6) (0.6)
Taxes on foreign income which differ from the United States statutory rate 14.8 (4.8) 2.8
Tax effect of permanent differences 32.4 (10.2) 7.5
Change in valuation allowance 36.7 110.8 3.1
Other 0.1 0.1) 1.1

$ 735 $ 151.1 $ 86.2

The significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows
(in millions):

2006 2005
Deferred Tax Assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 246.6 $ 1929
Sales incentive discounts 43.0 42.5
Inventory valuation reserves 19.6 23.2
Pensions and postretirement health care benefits 81.6 77.1
Warranty and provisions 41.7 61.6
Other 40.0 325
Total gross deferred tax assets 472.5 429.8
Valuation allowance (291.4) (252.8)
Total net deferred tax assets 181.1 177.0
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Tax over book depreciation and amortization 171.7 140.8
Other 114 9.3
Total deferred tax liabilities 183.1 150.1
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Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets

Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Deferred tax assets current

Deferred tax assets noncurrent

Other current liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities

Form DEF 14A

$ (0
$ 368
105.5

(29.4)

(114.9)

$ (0

$ 269
$ 397
84.1
(8.8)
(88.1)
$ 269

The Company has recorded a net deferred tax liability of $2.0 million as of December 31, 2006 and a net deferred tax
asset of $26.9 million as of December 31, 2005. As reflected in the preceding table, the Company
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established a valuation allowance of $291.4 million and $252.8 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The change in the valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was an increase of
$38.6 million, $109.9 million, and $1.2 million, respectively. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company
recognized a non-cash deferred income tax charge of $90.8 million related to increasing the valuation allowance
against its United States deferred tax assets. SFAS No. 109 requires the establishment of a valuation allowance when
it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In accordance with
SFAS No. 109, the Company assessed the likelihood that its deferred tax assets would be recovered from estimated
future taxable income and available tax planning strategies and determined that the adjustment to the valuation
allowance at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was appropriate. In making this assessment, all available evidence
was considered including the current economic climate, as well as reasonable tax planning strategies. The Company
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the remaining deferred tax assets, net of the valuation
allowance, in future years.

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards of $693.4 million as of December 31, 2006, with expiration dates
as follows: 2011  $8.0 million, and thereafter or unlimited =~ $685.4 million. These net operating loss carryforwards
include United States net loss carryforwards of $396.0 million and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of
$297.4 million. The Company paid income taxes of $43.6 million, $55.9 million, and $83.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

7. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in millions):

2006 2005

Credit facility $ 1114 $ 401.5
13/4% Convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033 201.3 201.3
11/4% Convertible senior subordinated notes due 2036 201.3
67/8% Senior subordinated notes due 2014 264.0 237.0
Other long-term debt 7.0 8.3

785.0 848.1
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (6.3) (6.3)
13/4% Convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033 (201.3)
Total long-term debt, less current portion $ 5774 $ 841.8

On December 4, 2006, the Company issued $201.3 million of 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due
December 15, 2036 and received proceeds of approximately $196.4 million, after related fees and expenses. The notes
are unsecured obligations and are convertible into cash and shares of the Company s common stock upon satisfaction
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of certain conditions, as discussed below. The notes provide for (i) the settlement upon conversion in cash up to the
principal amount of the notes with any excess conversion value settled in shares of the Company s common stock, and
(i1) the conversion rate to be increased under certain circumstances if the notes are converted in connection with

certain change of control transactions occurring prior to December 15, 2013. Pursuant to EITF 00-19, Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company s Own Stock, ( EITF 00-19 ), the
embedded conversion feature has been classified as equity. Interest is payable on the notes at 11/4% per annum,

payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on June 15 and December 15 of each year, beginning on June 15, 2007. The
notes are convertible into shares of the Company s common stock at an effective price of $40.73 per share, subject to
adjustment. Holders may convert the notes only under the following circumstances: (1) during any fiscal quarter, if the
closing sales price of the Company s common stock exceeds 120% of the conversion price for at
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least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quarter;
(2) during the five business day period after a five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per note
for each day of that period was less than 98% of the product of the closing sale price of the Company s common stock
and the conversion rate; (3) if the notes have been called for redemption; or (4) upon the occurrence of certain
corporate transactions. Beginning December 15, 2013, the Company may redeem any of the notes at a redemption
price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest. Holders of the notes may require the Company to
repurchase the notes at a repurchase price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest, on December 15,
2013, 2016, 2021, 2026 and 2031. Holders may also require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of the notes
upon a fundamental change, as defined in the indenture, at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the notes to be repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest. The notes are senior subordinated obligations and
are subordinated to all of the Company s existing and future senior indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all
debt and other liabilities of the Company s subsidiaries. The notes are equal in right of payment with the Company s
67/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and its 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2033.

The Company used the net proceeds received from the issuance of the 11/4% convertible senior subordinated notes, as
well as available cash, to repay $196.9 million of its outstanding United States dollar denominated term loan and

79.1 million of its outstanding Euro denominated term loan. In addition, the Company recorded interest expense of
approximately $2.0 million for the proportionate write-off of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the term
loan balances that were repaid. The Company s United States dollar denominated and Euro denominated term loans are
discussed further below.

The Company s credit facility provides for a $300.0 million multi-currency revolving credit facility, a $300.0 million
United States dollar denominated term loan and a 120.0 million Euro denominated term loan. The maturity date of the
revolving credit facility is December 2008 and the maturity date for the term loan facility is June 2009. The Company
is required to make quarterly payments towards the United States dollar denominated term loan and Euro denominated
term loan of $0.75 million and 0.3 million, respectively (or an amortization of one percent per annum until the
maturity date of each term loan). The revolving credit and term loan facilities are secured by a majority of the
Company s United States, Canadian, Finnish and U.K. based assets and a pledge of a portion of the stock of its
domestic and material foreign subsidiaries. Interest accrues on amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility,
at the Company s option, at either (1) LIBOR plus a margin ranging between 1.25% and 2.0% based upon the
Company s senior debt ratio or (2) the higher of the administrative agent s base lending rate or one-half of one percent
over the federal funds rate plus a margin ranging between 0.0% and 0.75% based on the Company s senior debt ratio.
Interest accrues on amounts outstanding under the term loans at LIBOR plus 1.75%. The credit facility contains
covenants restricting, among other things, the incurrence of indebtedness and the making of certain payments,
including dividends. The Company also must fulfill financial covenants including, among others, a total debt to
EBITDA ratio, a senior debt to EBITDA ratio and a fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined in the facility. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company had total borrowings of $111.4 million under the credit facility, which included
$73.3 million under the United States dollar denominated term loan facility, 28.9 million (approximately
$38.1 million) under the Euro denominated term loan facility and no amounts outstanding under the multi-currency
revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had availability to borrow $292.2 million under the
revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had total borrowings of $401.5 million under the
credit facility, which included $272.5 million under the United States dollar denominated term loan facility,

108.9 million (approximately $129.0 million) under the Euro denominated term loan facility and no amounts
outstanding under the multi-currency revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had
availability to borrow $292.9 million under the revolving credit facility.
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On June 29, 2005, the Company exchanged its $201.3 million of 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes due
2033 for new notes which provide for (i) the settlement upon conversion in cash up to the principal
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amount of the converted new notes with any excess conversion value settled in shares of the Company s common
stock, and (ii) the conversion rate to be increased under certain circumstances if the new notes are converted in
connection with certain change of control transactions occurring prior to December 10, 2010, but otherwise are
substantially the same as the old notes. Pursuant to EITF 00-19, the embedded conversion feature has been classified
as equity. The notes are unsecured obligations and are convertible into cash and shares of the Company s common
stock upon satisfaction of certain conditions, as discussed below. Interest is payable on the notes at 13/4% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on June 30 and December 31 of each year. The notes are convertible into
shares of the Company s common stock at an effective price of $22.36 per share, subject to adjustment. Holders may
convert the notes only under the following circumstances: (1) during any fiscal quarter, if the closing sales price of the
Company s common stock exceeds 120% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive
trading days ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quarter; (2) during the five business day period after
a five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per note for each day of that period was less than 98%
of the product of the closing sale price of the Company s common stock and the conversion rate; (3) if the notes have
been called for redemption; or (4) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions. Beginning January 1, 2011,
the Company may redeem any of the notes at a redemption price of 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued
interest. Holders of the notes may require the Company to repurchase the notes at a repurchase price of 100% of their
principal amount, plus accrued interest, on December 31, 2010, 2013, 2018, 2023 and 2028. The impact of the
exchange completed in June 2005, as discussed above, will reduce the diluted weighted average shares outstanding in
future periods. The reduction in the diluted shares was approximately 9.0 million shares on a prospective basis and
will vary in the future based on the Company s stock price, once the market price trigger or other specified conversion
circumstances have been met.

As of December 31, 2006, the closing sales price of the Company s common stock had exceeded 120% of the
conversion price of $22.36 per share for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days ending

December 31, 2006, and, therefore, the Company classified the 13/4% convertible senior subordinated notes as a
current liability. Future classification of the notes between current and long-term debt is dependent on the closing

sales price of the Company s common stock during future quarters. The Company believes it is unlikely the holders of
the notes would convert the notes under the provisions of the indenture agreement, thereby requiring the Company to
repay the principal portion in cash. In the event the notes were converted, the Company believes it could repay the
notes with available cash on hand, funds from the Company s existing $300.0 million multi-currency revolving credit
facility, or a combination of these sources.

On June 23, 2005, the Company completed the redemption of its $250 million 91/2% senior notes due 2008. The
Company redeemed the notes at a price of approximately $261.9 million, which included a premium of 4.75% over
the face amount of the senior notes. The premium of approximately $11.9 million and the write-off of the remaining
balance of deferred debt issuance costs of approximately $2.2 million were recognized in interest expense, net during
the second quarter of 2005. The funding source for the redemption was a combination of cash generated from the
transfer of North American wholesale interest-bearing receivables to the Company s United States and Canadian retail
finance joint ventures, AGCO Finance LLC and AGCO Finance Canada, Ltd., as well as from revolving credit facility
borrowings and available cash on hand (Note 4).

On April 23, 2004, the Company sold 200.0 million of 67/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and received
proceeds of approximately $234.0 million, after offering related fees and expenses. The 67/8% senior subordinated
notes are unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to the Company s existing or future senior
indebtedness. Interest is payable on the notes at 67/8% per annum, payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15
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of each year, beginning October 15, 2004. Beginning April 15, 2009, the Company may redeem the notes, in whole or
in part, initially at 103.438% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest, declining to 100% of their principal
amount, plus accrued interest, at any time on or after April 15, 2012. In addition, before April 15, 2009, the Company
may redeem the notes, in whole or in part, at
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a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued interest plus a make-whole premium. Before
April 15, 2007, the Company also may redeem up to 35% of the notes at 106.875% of their principal amount using the
proceeds from sales of certain kinds of capital stock. The notes include certain covenants restricting the incurrence of
indebtedness and the making of certain restrictive payments, including dividends.

At December 31, 2006, the aggregate scheduled maturities of long-term debt, excluding the current portion of
long-term debt are as follows (in millions):

2008 $ 5.4
2009 103.1
2010 0.8
2011 0.9
2012 0.8
Thereafter 466.4

$ 5774

Cash payments for interest were $70.5 million, $97.8 million and $95.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company has arrangements with various banks to issue standby letters of credit or similar instruments, which
guarantee the Company s obligations for the purchase or sale of certain inventories and for potential claims exposure
for insurance coverage. At December 31, 2006, outstanding letters of credit issued under the revolving credit facility
totaled $7.8 million.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has defined benefit pension plans covering certain employees, principally in the United States, the
United Kingdom, Germany, Finland, Norway, France, Australia, Argentina and Brazil. The Company also provides
certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for certain employees principally in the United States.

Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. The
key changes under the new Statement are as follows:

Recognition of funded status in the statement of financial position. SFAS No. 158 requires an employer that sponsors
one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a benefit
plan, measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit obligation (the projected benefit
obligation for defined benefit pension plans and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for other
postretirement plans) in its statement of financial position.

Recognition of unamortized amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. SFAS No. 158 requires that
companies recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service
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costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant

to SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for Pensions ( SFAS No. 87 ), or SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions ( SFAS No. 106 ). In other words, the change in funded status of the plan

in the year in which the change occurs is reflected through a combination of the net annual pension cost (which is a
component of net income) and a company s accumulated other comprehensive income or loss (which is a component

of stockholder s equity).

Elimination of use of early measurement date. SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure defined benefit plan
assets and obligations as of the date of the company s fiscal year-end. The measurement provision
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of SFAS No. 158 will be effective for years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company has not yet adopted
the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006. Upon adoption, this change will only impact
the measurement of the Company s U.K. pension plan.

Additional disclosures. Last, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to disclose in the notes to financial statements
additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed
recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition asset or obligation. In addition,
companies must disclose the current and noncurrent components of the assets and liabilities of its defined benefit
pension and other postretirement plans.

Prior to the adoption of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company accounted for its defined benefit
pension plans under SFAS No. 87 and its postretirement health care plans under SFAS No. 106, as well as the
disclosure provisions under SFAS No. 132(R), Employers Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 and 106 ( SFAS No. 132(R) ). SFAS No. 87 required that a
liability (referred to as the additional minimum pension liability) be recorded when the accumulated benefit obligation
exceeded the fair value of plan assets. Adjustments were recorded as non-cash charges to the Company s accumulated
other comprehensive loss within stockholders equity reflected as additional minimum liability adjustments.

SFAS No. 106 required that the liability recorded should represent the actuarial present value of all future benefits
attributable to an employee s service rendered to date, with no requirement to reflect an additional minimum liability
for the difference between the accumulated benefit obligation and plan assets, if any. Upon adoption of the recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company recognized the difference between the projected benefit obligation (which
includes the impact of future salary increases) and the accumulated benefit obligation related to its defined pension
benefit plans, as well as the entire obligation related to its unfunded postretirement health care and life insurance
benefit plans in the United States. This resulted in an increase to accumulated other comprehensive loss of
approximately $26.8 million, net of taxes, an increase to liabilities of approximately $37.5 million, an increase to
other noncurrent assets of approximately $1.6 million and an increase to noncurrent deferred tax assets of
approximately $9.1 million.

SFAS No. 158 is effective for periods ending on or after December 15, 2006 and retroactive application is not
permitted. Therefore, the disclosures below for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the provisions under
SFAS No. 158, and the disclosures for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 reflect the requirements under
SFAS No. 132(R).

Net annual pension costs for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are set forth below (in millions):

Pension benefits 2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ 5.0 $ 49 $ 438
Interest cost 40.4 38.7 37.1
Expected return on plan assets (38.6) (33.0) (31.3)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 19.8 16.7 16.9
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 0.2) 0.1 0.5
Curtailment and other gain 0.4) 2.3)
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Special termination benefits “4.1)

Net annual pension cost $ 260 $ 2409 $ 239
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net annual pension costs for the Company s pension plans for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

All plans: 2006 2005 2004
Weighted average discount rate 5.0% 5.6% 5.7%
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.1% 7.1% 7.1%
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.0-4.0% 3.0-4.0% 3.0-4.0%
U.S. based plans:

Weighted average discount rate 5.5% 5.75% 6.25%
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A N/A N/A

Net annual postretirement costs for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are set forth below (in
millions, except percentages):

Postretirement benefits 2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ 02 $ 07 $ 07
Interest cost 1.7 2.2 2.6
Amortization of prior service cost 0.1 0.2 (0.6)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss 0.6 1.1 1.2
Other 1.9
Curtailment gain (1.9

Net annual postretirement cost $ 24 $ 23 $ 5.8
Weighted average discount rate 5.5% 5.75% 6.25%

The following tables set forth reconciliations of the changes in benefit obligation, plan assets and funded status as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in millions):

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
Change in benefit obligation 2006 2005 2006 2005
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 776.3 $ 751.2 $ 332 $ 45.1
Service cost 5.0 49 0.2 0.7
Interest cost 40.4 38.7 1.7 2.2

Plan participants contributions 1.4 0.8
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Actuarial (gain) loss (17.9) 101.4 (5.8) 4.4)

Divestiture of business (1.1)

Amendments 0.5 (2.3)

Curtailment gain 0.7) “4.7)

Benefits paid (41.9) 42.1) (2.6) 3.4)

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 96.7 (77.4)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 858.9 $ 776.3 $ 26.7 $ 332
88
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Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
Change in plan assets 2006 2005 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 5279 $ 499.7 $ $
Actual return on plan assets 40.3 85.6
Employer contributions 26.6 27.3 2.6 34
Plan participants contributions 1.4 0.8
Benefits paid (41.9) (37.0) (2.6) 3.4)
Other 1.7
Divestiture of business (0.8)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 66.8 (50.2)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 6203 $ 5279 $ $
Funded status $ (238.6) $ (2484) $ (26.7) $ (33.2)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 241.4 251.3 3.7 10.1
Unrecognized prior service credit 3.0) (2.9 0.4) 0.5
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (238.4) (216.4) 3.3) N/A
Net amount recognized $ (238.6) $ (2164) $ (26.7) $ (23.6)
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Other long-term asset $ 1.6 N/A $ N/A
Other current liabilities (6.6) N/A 2.1 N/A
Pensions and postretirement health care benefits (noncurrent) (233.6) (216.4) (24.6) (23.6)
Net amount recognized $ (238.6) $ (2164) $ (26.7) $ (23.6)

Accrued pension costs of approximately $5.1 million and $4.4 million have been classified as current liabilities within
Accrued expenses in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
related to the Company s phased retirement plan obligations in Germany.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company s accumulated other comprehensive loss included a net actuarial loss of
approximately $241.4 million and a net prior service credit of approximately $3.0 million related to the Company s
defined benefit pension plans. The estimated net actuarial loss and net prior service credit for defined benefit pension
plans that will be amortized from the Company s accumulated other comprehensive loss during the year ended
December 31, 2007 are approximately $15.0 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company s accumulated other comprehensive loss included a net actuarial loss of
approximately $3.7 million and a net prior service credit of approximately $0.4 million related to the Company s

U.S. postretirement health care benefit plans. The estimated net actuarial loss and net prior service credit for
postretirement health care benefit plans that will be amortized from the Company s accumulated other comprehensive

151



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

loss during the year ended December 31, 2007 are approximately $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively.
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation for the Company s pension plans as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

All plans: 2006 2005
Weighted average discount rate 5.1% 5.0%
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.1% 7.1%
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.0-4.0% 3.0-4.0%
U.S. based plans:

Weighted average discount rate 5.8% 5.5%
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.0% 8.0%
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A N/A

The aggregate projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for pension
and other postretirement plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $881.4 million,
$817.8 million and $609.3 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2006 and $770.0 million, $732.3 million and
$515.8 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2005. The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets for the Company s U.S. based pension plans were $49.7 million, $49.7 million
and $43.7 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2006, and $52.1 million, $52.1 million and $41.7 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2005. In accordance with SFAS No. 158, at December 31, 2006, the Company s
accumulated comprehensive loss reflects a reduction to equity of $241.7 million, net of taxes of $74.1 million,
primarily related to the Company s U.K. and U.S. pension plans where the projected benefit obligation exceeded the
plan assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 87, at December 31, 2005, the Company s accumulated comprehensive loss
reflects a reduction to equity of $216.4 million, net of taxes of $66.3 million, related to the recording of a minimum
pension liability primarily related to the Company s U.K. pension plan where the accumulated benefit obligation
exceeded plan assets.

The Company utilizes a September 30 measurement date to determine the pension benefit measurements for the
Company s U.K. pension plan. The Company utilizes a December 31 measurement date to determine the pension and
postretirement benefit measurements for the Company s plans in the United States and the rest of the world.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company based the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit
obligation for its U.S. pension plans, postretirement health care benefit plans and Executive Nonqualified Pension
Plan ( ENPP ) by matching the projected cash flows of its plans to the Citibank pension discount curve. Prior to
December 31, 2006, the Company based the discount rate used to determine the projected benefit obligation for its
U.S. pension plans on the Moody s Investor Service Aa bond yield as of December 31 of each year. For its

non-U.S. plans, the Company bases the discount rate on comparable indices within each of those countries, such as the
15-year iBoxx AA corporate bond yield in the United Kingdom. The indices used in the United States, the United
Kingdom and other countries were chosen to match the expected plan obligations and related expected cash flows.

The weighted average asset allocation of the Company s U.S. pension benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005
are as follows:
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Large cap domestic equity securities
International equity securities
Domestic fixed income securities
Other investments

Total
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2006

43%
15%
19%
23%

100%

2005

47%
12%
28%
13%

100%
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The weighted average asset allocation of the Company s non- U.S. pension benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and
2005 are as follows:

Asset Category 2006 2005

Equity securities 49% 51%
Fixed income securities 31% 38%
Other investments 20% 11%
Total 100% 100%

All tax-qualified pension fund investments in the United States are held in the AGCO Corporation Master Pension
Trust. The Company s global pension fund strategy is to diversify investments across broad categories of equity and
fixed income securities with appropriate use of alternative investment categories to minimize risk and volatility. The
Company s U.S. target allocation of retirement fund investments is 50% large cap domestic equity securities, 10%
international equity securities, 20% domestic fixed income securities, and 20% invested in other investments. The
Company has noted that over very long periods, this mix of investments would achieve an average return in excess of
9%. In arriving at the choice of an expected return assumption of 8% for its U.S. based plans, the Company has
tempered this historical indicator with lower expectations for returns on equity investments in the future, as well as
considered administrative costs of the plans. To date, the Company has not invested pension funds in its own stock,
and has no intention of doing so in the future. The Company s non-U.S. target allocation of retirement fund
investments is 50% equity securities, 30% fixed income securities and 20% percent invested in other investments. The
majority of the Company s non-U.S. pension fund investments are related to the Company s pension plan in the United
Kingdom. The Company has noted that over very long periods, this target mix of investments would achieve an
average return in excess of 7.5%. In arriving at the choice of an expected return assumption of 7% for its U.K.-based
pension plan, the Company has tempered this historical indicator with a slightly lower expectation of future returns on
equity investments, as well as plan expenses.

The weighted average discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation for the Company s postretirement benefit
plans for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 5.8% and 5.5%, respectively.

For measuring the expected postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2006, a 9% health care cost trend rate
was assumed for 2007, decreasing 1.0% per year to 5.0% and remaining at that level thereafter. For measuring the
expected postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2005, a 9% health care cost trend rate was assumed for
2006, decreasing 1.0% per year to 5.0% and remaining at that level thereafter. Changing the assumed health care cost
trend rates by one percentage point each year and holding all other assumptions constant would have the following
effect to service and interest cost for 2007 and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31,
2006 (in millions):

One Percentage One Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease
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Effect on service and interest cost $ $
Effect on accumulated benefit obligation $ 2.7 $ (2.3)
In December 2003, the United States Congress enacted the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 that provides a prescription drug subsidy, beginning in 2006, to companies that sponsor
postretirement health care plans that provide drug benefits. Based upon the final regulations released in January 2005,
during the third quarter of 2005, the Company reviewed the provisions of its postretirement health care plans with its
actuaries to determine whether the benefits offered by its plans met the statutory definition of actuarially equivalent
prescription drug benefits that qualify for the federal subsidy. Based upon this review, the Company believes that two

of its plans qualify for the subsidy. In accordance with FSP
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No. 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription, Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003, the Company began reflecting the impact of the anticipated subsidies as of July 1, 2005
on a prospective basis, and revalued its projected benefit obligation as of July 1, 2005.

During 2005, the Company recognized a curtailment of two of its postretirement health care plans, resulting in a
$1.9 million decrease to its net postretirement cost.

The Company currently estimates its minimum contributions and benefit payments for 2007 to its U.S.  based defined
pension plans and postretirement health care and life insurance benefit plans will aggregate approximately

$1.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively. The Company currently estimates its minimum contributions for
underfunded plans and benefit payments for unfunded plans for 2007 to its non-U.S.-based defined pension plans will
aggregate approximately $26.2 million, of which approximately $21.1 million relates to its U.K. pension plan.

During 2006, approximately $41.9 million of benefit payments were made related to the Company s pension plans. At
December 31, 2006, the aggregate expected benefit payments for all of the Company s pension plans are as follows (in
millions):

2007 $ 421
2008 43.0
2009 43.8
2010 44.4
2011 44.8
2012 through 2016 2425

$ 460.6

During 2006, approximately $2.6 million of benefit payments were made related to the Company s U.S. postretirement
benefit plans. At December 31, 2006, the aggregate expected benefit payments for the Company s U.S. postretirement
benefit plans are as follows (in millions):

2007 $ 22
2008 1.8
2009 1.7
2010 1.6
2011 1.5
2012 through 2016 9.1

$ 179
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The Company s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ( SERP ) is an unfunded plan that provides Company
executives with retirement income for a period of ten years based on a percentage of their final base salary, reduced by
the executive s social security benefits and 401(k) employer matching contributions account. Prior to January 1, 2007,
the benefit paid to the executive was equal to 3% of the final base salary times credited years of service, with a
maximum benefit of 60% of the final base salary. Benefits under the SERP vested at age 65 or, at the discretion of the
Company s Board of Directors, at age 62 reduced by a factor to recognize early commencement of the benefit
payments.

On November 3, 2006, the Company entered into an Executive Nonqualified Pension Plan, effective January 1, 2007
(the 2007 ENPP ), which is intended to amend and restate the Company s existing SERP plan to provide senior
Company executives with an appropriate retirement benefit. The 2007 ENPP provides a group of senior Company
executives with retirement income for a period of 15 years based on a percentage of
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their average final salary and bonus, reduced by the executive s social security benefits and 401(k) employer matching
contributions account. The benefit paid to the executives ranges from 2.25% to 3% of the average of the last three
years of their base salary plus bonus prior to their termination of employment ( final earnings ) times credited years of
service, with a maximum benefit of 45% to 60% of the final earnings, depending on the level of the executive.
Benefits under the 2007 ENPP vest if the participant has attained age 50 with at least ten years of service (five years
of which include years of participation in the 2007 ENPP), but are not payable until the participant reaches age 65 or
upon termination of services because of death or disability, adjusted to reflect payment prior to age 65.

Net annual ENPP and SERP cost and the measurement assumptions for the plans for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 are set forth below (in millions):

2006 2005 2004

Service cost $ 09 $ 0.6 $ 06
Interest cost 0.5 0.4 0.4
Amortization of prior service cost 0.4 0.3 0.3
Recognized actuarial gain 0.1
Net annual ENPP/SERP costs $ 1.8 $ 13 $ 1.2
Discount rate 5.5% 5.75% 6.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

The following tables set forth reconciliations of the changes in benefit obligation and funded status as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in millions):

Change in benefit obligation 2006 2005
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 8.1 $ 74
Service cost 0.9 0.6
Interest cost 0.5 04
Actuarial (gain) loss (1.4) 0.1
Amendments 2.6

Benefits paid 0.4) 0.4)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 103 $ 8.1
Funded status $ (10.3) $ (8.1
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (1.8) 0.3)
Unrecognized prior service cost 4.5 23
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 2.7 N/A
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Net amount recognized $ (10.3) $ (6.1)
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Other current liabilities $ (04 N/A
Pensions and postretirement health care benefits (noncurrent) 9.9 $ (6.1
Net amount recognized $ (10.3) $ (6.1)

The weighted average discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation for the Company s 2007 ENPP and SERP
plans for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 5.8% and 5.5%, respectively.
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At December 31, 2006, the Company s accumulated other comprehensive loss included a net actuarial gain of
approximately $1.8 million and a net prior service cost of approximately $4.5 million related to the Company s ENPP
plan. The estimated net actuarial gain and net prior service cost related to the ENPP that will be amortized from the
Company s accumulated other comprehensive loss during the year ended December 31, 2007 are approximately

$0.1 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 158, at December 31, 2006, the Company recorded a reduction to equity of
$2.7 million, related to the unfunded projected benefit obligation of the Company s ENPP. As the Company is not
benefiting losses for tax purposes in the United States, there was no tax impact to this charge.

During 2006, approximately $0.4 million of benefit payments were made related to the Company s ENPP plan. At
December 31, 2006, the aggregate expected benefit payments for the Company s ENPP plan are as follows (in
millions):

2007 $ 04
2008 0.5
2009 0.5
2010 0.7
2011 0.8
2012 through 2016 54

$ 83

The Company maintains separate defined contribution plans covering certain employees primarily in the United
States, the United Kingdom and Brazil. Under the plans, the Company contributes a specified percentage of each
eligible employee s compensation. The Company contributed approximately $8.5 million, $8.3 million and

$7.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

9. Common Stock

At December 31, 2006, the Company had 150.0 million authorized shares of common stock with a par value of
$0.01 per share, with approximately 91.2 million shares of common stock outstanding, approximately 1.9 million
shares reserved for issuance under the Company s 2001 Stock Option Plan (Note 10), and approximately 3.5 million
shares reserved for issuance under the 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plan ) (Note 10).

On April 7, 2004, the Company sold 14,720,000 shares of its common stock in an underwritten public offering, and
received net proceeds of approximately $300.1 million. The Company used the net proceeds to repay a $100.0 million

interim bridge loan facility, to repay borrowings under its credit facility and to pay offering related fees and expenses.

The Company has a stockholder rights plan, which was adopted in April 1994 following stockholder approval. The
plan provides that each share of common stock outstanding will have attached to it the right to purchase a
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one-hundredth of a share of Junior Cumulative Preferred Stock, with a par value $0.01 per share. The purchase price

per a one-hundredth of a share is $100.00, subject to adjustment. The rights will be exercisable only if a person or

group ( acquirer ) acquires 20% or more of the Company s common stock or announces a tender offer or exchange offer
that would result in the acquisition of 20% or more of the Company s common stock or, in some circumstances, if
additional conditions are met. Once they are exercisable, the plan allows stockholders, other than the acquirer, to

purchase the Company s common stock or securities of the acquirer with a then current market value of two times the
exercise price of the right. The rights are redeemable for $0.01 per right, subject to adjustment, at the option of the
Company s board of
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directors. The rights will expire on April 26, 2014, unless they are extended, redeemed or exchanged by the Company
before that date.

10. Stock Incentive Plans

At the Company s April 2006 annual stockholders meeting, the Company obtained stockholder approval for the 2006
Plan under which up to 5,000,000 shares of common stock may be issued. The 2006 Plan allows the Company, under
the direction of the Board of Director s Compensation Committee, to make grants of performance shares, stock
appreciation rights, stock options and stock awards to employees, officers and non-employee directors of the

Company. The Company s Board of Directors approved the grants of awards during 2006 effective under the employee
and director stock incentive plans described below.

Employee Plans

The Company s Board of Directors approved two new stock incentive plans to Company executives and key managers.
The primary long-term incentive plan is a performance share plan that provides for awards of shares of common stock
based on achieving financial targets, such as targets for earnings per share and return on invested capital, as
determined by the Company s Board of Directors. The stock awards are earned over a performance period, and the
number of shares earned is determined based on the cumulative or average results for the period, depending on the
measurement. Performance periods are consecutive and overlapping three-year cycles and performance targets are set
at the beginning of each cycle. In order to transition to the new performance share plan, the Company established
award targets in 2006 for both a one-year and two-year performance period in addition to the normal three-year

period. The plan provides for participants to earn from 33% to 200% of the target awards depending on the actual
performance achieved with no shares earned if performance is below the established minimum target. Awards earned
under the performance share plan will be paid in shares of common stock at the end of each performance period.
Participants may elect to forfeit a portion of the earned award in order to fully satisfy federal, state and employment
taxes which are payable at the time the shares are earned. The Company recorded stock compensation expense of
approximately $1.4 million associated with these awards during 2006. Compensation expense recorded was based on
the price of the Company s common stock on April 27, 2006 (the date of the Company s annual stockholder meeting)
with respect to the initial grants under the plan, and based upon the stock price as of the grant date for subsequent
grants made during the third quarter of 2006. The compensation expense associated with these awards is being
amortized ratably over the vesting or performance period based on the Company s projected assessment of the level of
performance that will be achieved and earned. No compensation expense was recorded associated with the Company s
one-year performance period transition plan, as no shares were earned. The weighted average grant-date fair value of
performance awards granted under the 2006 Plan during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $23.86. Performance
award transactions during the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows and are presented as if the Company
were to achieve its target levels of performance under the plan:

Shares awarded 742,000
Shares forfeited or unearned (99,917)
Shares earned

Shares awarded but not earned at December 31 642,083
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In addition to the performance share plan, certain executives and key managers will be eligible to receive grants of
SSARs or incentive stock options depending on the participant s country of employment. The SSARs provide a
participant with the right to receive the aggregate appreciation in stock price over the market price of the Company s
common stock at the date of grant, payable in shares of the Company s common stock. The participant may exercise
his or her SSAR at any time after the grant is vested but no later than seven years
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after the date of grant. The SSARs vest ratably over a four-year period from the date of grant. SSAR award grants
made to certain executives and key managers under the 2006 Plan were made with the base price equal to the price of
the Company s common stock on the date of grant. The Company recorded stock compensation expense of
approximately $0.3 million associated with SSAR award grants during 2006. The compensation expense associated
with these awards is being amortized ratably over the vesting period. There are no awards currently exercisable as of
December 31, 2006. The Company estimated the fair value of the grants using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The weighted average grant-date fair value of SSARs granted under the 2006 Plan and the weighted average
assumptions under the Black-Sholes option model were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006

SSARs $ 8.78
Weighted average assumptions under Black-Scholes option model:
Expected life of awards (years) 5.5
Risk-free interest rate 5.0%
Expected volatility 41.5%
Expected dividend yield
SSAR transactions during the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:
SSARs granted 229,250
SSARs exercised
SSARs canceled or forfeited (7,500)
SSARs outstanding at December 31 221,750
SSAR price ranges per share:
Granted $ 23.80-26.00
Exercised
Canceled or forfeited $ 23.80
Weighted average SSAR exercise prices per share:
Granted $ 23.89
Exercised
Canceled or forfeited 23.80
Outstanding at December 31 23.89

At December 31, 2006, the weighted average remaining contractual life of SSARs outstanding was approximately six
years.

As of December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to unvested SSARs not yet recognized was
approximately $1.7 million and the weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is
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approximately three years. As of December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to unearned performance
awards not yet recognized, assuming minimum thresholds of performance are achieved, was approximately
$3.7 million, and the weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is approximately two years.

On February 15, 2007, the Company granted 515,000 performance award shares (if the Company were to achieve the
target levels of performance) and 224,500 SSARs under the 2006 Plan.
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Director Restricted Stock Grants

The Company s Board of Directors approved a plan to provide $25,000 in annual restricted stock grants to all
non-employee directors effective on the first day of each calendar year. The shares are restricted as to transferability
for a period of three years, but are not subject to forfeiture. In the event a director departs from the Company s Board
of Directors, the non-transferability period would expire immediately. The plan allows for the director to have the
option of forfeiting a portion of the shares awarded in lieu of a cash payment contributed to the participant s tax
withholding to satisfy the participant s statutory minimum federal, state, and employment taxes which would be
payable at the time of grant. The January 1, 2006 grant equated to 11,550 shares of common stock, of which

8,832 shares of common stock were issued, after shares were withheld for withholding taxes. The Company recorded
stock compensation expense of approximately $0.3 million during 2006 associated with these grants.

As of December 31, 2006, of the 5,000,000 shares reserved for issuance under the 2006 Plan, 3,485,251 shares were
available for grant, assuming the maximum number of shares are earned related to the performance award grants
discussed above.

On January 1, 2007, the Company granted 8,080 shares of common stock under the 2006 Plan, of which 6,346 shares
of common stock were issued, after shares were withheld for withholding taxes.

Former Non-employee Director Stock Incentive Plan and Long-Term Incentive Plan

In December 2005, the Company s Board of Directors elected to terminate the Company s LTIP and Director Plan, and
the outstanding awards under those plans were cancelled. The decision to terminate the plans and related cancellations
was made primarily to avoid recognizing compensation cost in the Company s future financial statements upon
adoption of SFAS No. 123R for these awards and to establish a new long-term incentive program. The new
accounting provisions of SFAS No. 123R do not allow for the reversal of previously recognized compensation
expense if market-based performance awards, such as stock price targets, are not met. The new long-term incentive
program has performance-based targets. As of December 31, 2005, 75,000 awarded but unearned shares under the
Director Plan were cancelled. The remaining 15,000 awarded but unearned shares under the Director Plan were
cancelled during January 2006. As of December 31, 2005, 857,000 awarded but unearned shares under the LTIP were
cancelled. The remaining 135,000 shares were cancelled in January 2006. Awards cancelled prior to December 31,
2005 did not result in any compensation expense under the provisions of APB No. 25. However, awards cancelled
after January 1, 2006 are subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, and, therefore, the Company recorded
approximately $1.3 million of stock compensation expense during the first quarter of 2006 associated with those
cancellations.

Former Non-employee Director Stock Incentive Plan

The Company s former Director Plan provided for restricted stock awards to non-employee directors based on
increases in the price of the Company s common stock. The awarded shares were earned in specified increments for
each 15% increase in the average market value of the Company s common stock over the initial base price established
under the plan. When an increment of the awarded shares was earned, the shares were issued to the participant in the
form of restricted stock which vested at the earlier of 12 months after the specified performance period or upon
departure from the Company s Board of Directors. When the restricted shares were earned, a cash bonus equal to 40%

167



Edgar Filing: YP CORP - Form DEF 14A

of the value of the shares on the date the restricted stock award was earned was paid by the Company to satisfy a
portion of the estimated income tax liability to be incurred by the participant. In addition, as of December 31, 2006,
there were 8,999 shares that had been earned but were not vested under the Director Plan.
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Former Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company s former LTIP provided for restricted stock awards to executives based on increases in the price of the
Company s common stock. The awarded shares were earned over a five-year performance period in specified
increments for each 20% increase in the average market value of the Company s common stock over the established
initial base price. For all restricted stock awards prior to 2000, earned shares were issued to the participant in the form
of restricted stock which generally carried a five-year vesting period with one-third of each earned award vesting at
the end of the third, fourth and fifth year after each award was earned. In 2000, the LTIP was amended to replace the
vesting schedule with a non-transferability period for all future grants. Accordingly, for restricted stock awards in
2000 through 2005, earned shares were subject to a non-transferability period, which expired over a five-year period
with the transfer restrictions lapsing in one-third increments at the end of the third, fourth and fifth year after each
award was earned. During the non-transferability period, participants were restricted from selling, assigning,
transferring, pledging or otherwise disposing of any earned shares, but earned shares were not subject to forfeiture. In
the event a participant terminated employment with the Company, the non-transferability period was extended by two
years. When the earned shares had been vested and were no longer subject to forfeiture, the Company was obligated to
pay a cash bonus equal to 40% of the value of the shares on the date the shares were earned in order to satisfy a
portion of the estimated income tax liability to be incurred by the participant.

For awards granted in 2000 and thereafter, the Company recorded the entire compensation expense relating to the
market value of the earned shares and related cash bonus in the period in which the award was earned. For awards
granted prior to 2000, the market value of awards earned was added to common stock and additional paid-in capital
and an equal amount was deducted from stockholders equity as unearned compensation. The LTIP unearned
compensation and the amount of cash bonus paid when the awarded shares became vested were amortized to expense
ratably over the vesting period.

The Company recognized compensation expense associated with the former LTIP and Director Plan of $0.1 million,
$0.4 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, consisting of
compensation expense relating to earned shares, amortization of stock awards for earned shares issued prior to 2000
and the related cash bonuses.

In 2001, the former LTIP was amended to permit a participant to elect to forfeit a portion of an earned award in order
to fully satisfy federal, state and employment taxes which were payable at the time the shares and the related cash
bonus were earned. The number of shares of common stock equal to the value of the participant s tax liability, net of
the cash bonus, were thereby forfeited in lieu of an additional cash payment contributed to the participant s tax
withholding. In 2005 and 2004, zero and 1,513 earned shares, respectively, were forfeited in this manner.

For awards granted prior to 2000, the number of shares vested during the years 2006, 2005 and 2004 were 15,000,
15,000 and 4,166, respectively. All awards granted after 2000 vest immediately upon being earned.

Stock Option Plan
The Company s Option Plan provides for the granting of nonqualified and incentive stock options to officers,

employees, directors and others. The stock option exercise price is determined by the Company s Board of Directors
except in the case of an incentive stock option for which the purchase price shall not be less than 100% of the fair
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market value at the date of grant. Each recipient of stock options is entitled to immediately exercise up to 20% of the
options issued to such person, and the remaining 80% of such options vest ratably over a four-year period and expire

no later than ten years from the date of grant. There were no grants under the Option Plan during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The Company estimated the fair value of grants under the Company s Option Plan
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model for disclosure purposes only prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R.
The fair value of the grants were amortized over the applicable
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vesting period. As a result of applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, the Company recognized $0.2 million of

stock compensation expense associated with stock options that vested during 2006.

Stock option transactions during the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:

2006
Options outstanding at January 1 1,249,058
Options granted
Options exercised (660,850)
Options canceled (77,038)
Options outstanding at December 31 511,170
Options available for grant at December 31 1,919,837
Option price ranges per share:
Granted $
Exercised 10.06-22.31
Canceled 22.31-25.50
Weighted average option prices per share:
Outstanding at January 1 $ 18.02
Granted
Exercised 16.39
Canceled 25.46
Outstanding at December 31 18.71

At December 31, 2006, the outstanding options had a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately
three years and there were 505,170 options currently exercisable with option prices ranging from $8.50 to $31.25 and
with a weighted average exercise price of $18.68 and an aggregate intrinsic value of $6.2 million.

The following table sets forth the exercise price range, number of shares, weighted average exercise price, and
remaining contractual lives by groups of similar price:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Remaining Average as of Average
Number Contractual
of Life Exercise December 31, Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares (Years) Price 2006 Price
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$850 $11.88 141,700 36 $ 1097 141,700 $ 10.97

$15.12  $22.31 278,500 37 $ 1870 272,500 $ 18.65

$23.00 $31.25 90,970 05 $ 3078 90,970 $ 30.78
511,170 505,170

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
approximately $7.0 million, $0.7 million and $1.6 million, respectively, and the total fair value of shares vested during
the same periods was approximately $0.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.8 million, respectively. There were 6,000 stock
options that were not vested as of December 31, 2006. Cash proceeds received from stock option exercises during
2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $10.8 million, $1.4 million and $3.3 million, respectively. The Company did
not realize a tax benefit from the exercise of these options.

11. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
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Certain Hedging Activities An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. All derivatives are recognized on the
consolidated balance sheets at fair value. On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company designates
the derivative as either (1) a fair value hedge of a recognized liability, (2) a cash flow hedge of a forecasted
transaction, (3) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, or (4) a non-designated derivative instrument. The
Company primarily engages in derivatives that are designated as non-designated derivative instruments. Changes in
the fair value of non-designated derivative contracts are reported in current earnings.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as the risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company formally assesses, both
at the hedge s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. When it is determined that a
derivative is no longer highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued on a prospective basis.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has significant manufacturing operations in the United States, France, Germany, Finland, Brazil and
Denmark, and it purchases a portion of its tractors, combines and components from third-party foreign suppliers,
primarily in various European countries and in Japan. The Company also sells products in over 140 countries
throughout the world. The Company s most significant transactional foreign currency exposures are the Euro, Brazilian
real and the Canadian dollar in relation to the United States dollar.

The Company attempts to manage its transactional foreign exchange exposure by hedging foreign currency cash flow
forecasts and commitments arising from the settlement of receivables and payables and from future purchases and
sales. Where naturally offsetting currency positions do not occur, the Company hedges certain, but not all, of its
exposures through the use of foreign currency forward contracts. The Company s hedging policy prohibits foreign
currency forward contracts for speculative trading purposes.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to economically hedge receivables and payables on the
Company and its subsidiaries balance sheets that are denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional
currency. These forward contracts are classified as non-designated derivatives instruments. Gains and losses on such
contracts are historically substantially offset by losses and gains on the remeasurement of the underlying asset or
liability being hedged. Changes in the fair value of non-designated derivative contracts are reported in current
earnings.

During 2006, the Company designated certain foreign currency option contracts as cash flow hedges of expected sales.
The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on these cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
loss and subsequently reclassified into net sales as the sales are recognized. These amounts offset the effect of the
changes in foreign exchange rates on the related sale transactions. The amount of the gain recorded in other
comprehensive loss that were reclassified to net sales during the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately
$4.0 million on an after-tax basis. These contracts all expired prior to December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes the activity in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to the derivatives held

by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2006 (in millions). There were no derivatives held by the
Company accounted for as hedges during 2005 or 2004:

Before-Tax Income After-Tax

Amount Tax Amount
Accumulated derivative net gains as of December 31, 2005 $ $ $
Net changes in fair value of derivatives 4.1 4.1
Net gains reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
income 4.0 4.0
Accumulated derivative net gains as of December 31, 2006 $ 0.1 $ $ 0.1

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to economically hedge receivables and payables on the
Company and its subsidiaries balance sheets that are denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional
currency. These forward contracts are classified as non-designated derivatives instruments. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded a net gain of approximately $13.4 million and net losses
of approximately $0.3 million and $37.6 million, respectively, under the caption of other expense, net. These gains or
losses were substantially offset by losses or gains on the remeasurement of the underlying asset or liability being
hedged.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company may use interest rate swap agreements to manage its exposure to interest rate changes. Currently, the
Company has no interest rate swap agreements outstanding.
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